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BASE PROSPECTUS

¢ UniCredit

UNICREDIT S.p.A.

(incorporated with limited liability as a Societa per Azioni in the Republic of Italy under registered number 00348170101)

and

UNICREDIT BANK IRELAND p.l.c.

(incorporated with limited liability in Ireland under registered number 240551)

and

UNICREDIT INTERNATIONAL BANK (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.

(incorporated as a public limited liability company (société anonyme) under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and
registered with the Luxembourg trade and companies register under number B.103.341)

unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

UNICREDIT S.p.A.

in the case of Notes issued by UniCredit Bank Ireland p.l.c. and UniCredit International Bank
(Luxembourg) S.A.

€60,000,000,000 EURO MEDIUM TERM NOTE PROGRAMME

Under the €60,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme (the Programme) described in this document
(the Base Prospectus), UniCredit S.p.A. (UniCredit or the Parent), UniCredit Bank Ireland p.l.c. (UniCredit
Ireland) and UniCredit International Bank (Luxembourg) S.A. (UniCredit International Luxembourg) (each
an Issuer and together the Issuers) may from time to time issue notes (the Notes) denominated in any currency
agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer (as defined below). The payment of all amounts due
in respect of Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland and by UniCredit International Luxembourg (the Guaranteed
Notes) will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by UniCredit (in such capacity, the Guarantor).

Notes may be issued in bearer or registered form (respectively Bearer Notes and Registered Notes). The
maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding under the Programme will not
exceed €60,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies calculated as described herein), subject to increase
as described herein.

The Notes may be issued on a continuing basis to one or more of the Dealers specified under “Overview of the
Programme” and any additional Dealer appointed under the Programme from time to time by the Issuer (each a
Dealer and together the Dealers), which appointment may be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis.
References in this Base Prospectus to the relevant Dealer shall, in the case of an issue of Notes being (or
intended to be) subscribed by more than one Dealer, be to all Dealers agreeing to subscribe for such Notes.

An investment in Notes issued under the Programme involves certain risks. For a discussion of these risks
see “Risk Factors”.

Applications have been made to the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the CSSF) in its
capacity as competent authority under the laws of Luxembourg, for the approval of this document as three base
prospectuses in accordance with Article 5.4 of Directive 2003/71/EC (the Prospectus Directive) as amended
(which includes the amendments made by Directive 2010/73/EU (the 2010 PD Amending Directive) to the
extent that such amendments have been implemented in a relevant Member State of the European Economic
Area) and Article 8.4 of the Luxembourg Act dated 10 July 2005 on prospectuses for securities (the Prospectus
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Act 2005). The CSSF assumes no responsibility as to the economic and financial soundness of the transactions
contemplated by this Base Prospectus or the quality or solvency of the Issuers in accordance with Article 7.7 of
the Prospectus Act 2005. Application has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Notes issued
under the Programme to be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s regulated market (as
contemplated by Directive 2004/39/EC) and to be listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange. Application may also be made for notification to be given to competent authorities in other Member
States of the European Economic Area in order to permit Notes issued under the Programme to be offered to the
public and admitted to trading on regulated markets in such other Member States in accordance with the
procedures under Article 18 of the Prospectus Directive.

References in this Base Prospectus to Notes being listed (and all related references) shall mean that such Notes
have been admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market and have been admitted to
the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market is a
regulated market for the purposes of the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (Directive 2004/39/EC).

The requirement to publish a prospectus under the Prospectus Directive only applies to Notes which are to be
admitted to trading on a regulated market in the European Economic Area and/or offered to the public in the
European Economic Area other than in circumstances where an exemption is available under Article 3.2 of the
Prospectus Directive (as implemented in the relevant Member State(s)). References in this Base Prospectus to
Exempt Notes are to Notes for which no prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus Directive.
The CSSF has neither approved nor reviewed information contained in this Base Prospectus in connection with
Exempt Notes.

Notice of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes, interest (if any) payable in respect of Notes, the issue price of
Notes and certain other information which is applicable to each Tranche (as defined under “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes”) of Notes will (other than in the case of Exempt Notes, as defined above) be set out in a
final terms document (the Final Terms) which will be filed with the CSSF. Copies of Final Terms in relation to
Notes to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange will also be published on the website of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu). In the case of Exempt Notes, notice of the aggregate nominal amount of
Notes, interest (if any) payable in respect of Notes, the issue price of Notes and certain other information which
is applicable to each Tranche will be set out in a pricing supplement document (the Pricing Supplement).

The Programme provides that Notes may be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on such other or
further stock exchange(s) or markets as may be agreed between the Issuers, the Guarantor and the relevant
Dealer. The Issuers may also issue unlisted Notes and/or Notes not admitted to trading on any market. The
CSSF has neither approved nor reviewed information contained in this Base Prospectus in connection with
Exempt Notes.

As more fully set out in “Terms and Conditions of the Notes — Taxation”, in the case of payments by UniCredit
as Issuer or (in the case of Guaranteed Notes) as Guarantor, additional amounts will not be payable to holders of
the Notes or of the interest coupons appertaining to the Notes (the Coupons) with respect to any withholding or
deduction pursuant to Italian Legislative Decree No. 239 of 1 April 1996 (as amended or supplemented) and
related regulations of implementation which have been or may subsequently be enacted (Decree 239). In
addition, certain other (more customary) exceptions to the obligation of the relevant Issuer and (in the case of
Guaranteed Notes) the Guarantor to pay additional amounts to holders of the Notes with respect to the
imposition of withholding or deduction from payments relating to the Notes also apply, also as more fully set
out in “Terms and Conditions of the Notes — Taxation”.

Except with respect to the information set out in this Base Prospectus under the heading “Book Entry Clearance
Systems”, each of UniCredit and (insofar as the contents of this Base Prospectus relate to it) UniCredit Ireland
and UniCredit International Luxembourg, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirms that this Base
Prospectus contains or incorporates all information which is material in the context of the issuance and offering
of Notes, that the information contained or incorporated in this Base Prospectus is true and accurate in all
material respects and is not misleading, that the opinions and intentions expressed in this Base Prospectus are
honestly held and that there are no other facts the omission of which would make this Base Prospectus or any of
such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading. UniCredit, UniCredit Ireland
and UniCredit International Luxembourg accept responsibility accordingly.

The information relating to each of the Depository Trust Company (DTC), Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V.
(Euroclear) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (Clearstream, Luxembourg) has been accurately
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reproduced from information published by each of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg respectively.
So far as each of UniCredit, UniCredit Ireland and UniCredit International Luxembourg is aware and is able to
ascertain from information published by the Clearing Systems, no facts have been omitted which would render
the reproduced information misleading.

The rating of certain Series of Notes to be issued under the Programme may be specified in the applicable Final
Terms. Whether or not each credit rating applied for in relation to a relevant Series of Notes will be issued by a
credit rating agency established in the European Union and registered under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as
amended) (the CRA Regulation), and whether such credit rating agency is included in the list of credit rating
agencies published by the European Securities and Markets Authority on its website (at
http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-CRAs) in accordance with the CRA Regulation,
will be disclosed in the Final Terms (or Pricing Supplement, in the case of Exempt Notes). Please also refer to
“Credit ratings assigned to the Issuers, the Guarantor or any Notes may not reflect all the risks associated with
an investment in those Notes” in the “Risk Factors” section of this Base Prospectus.

Arranger
UBS INVESTMENT BANK

Co-Arranger
UNICREDIT BANK

Dealers
Barclays BNP PARIBAS
BofA Merrill Lynch Crédit Agricole CIB
Credit Suisse Deutsche Bank
Goldman Sachs International J.P. Morgan
Morgan Stanley The Royal Bank of Scotland
Société Générale Corporate UBS Investment Bank

& Investment Banking
UniCredit Bank

The date of this Base Prospectus is 5 July 2013.




IMPORTANT INFORMATION

This document constitutes three base prospectuses in respect of all Notes other than Exempt Notes issued
under the Programme: (a) the base prospectus for UniCredit in respect of non-equity securities within the
meaning of Article 22 No. 6 (4) of the Commission Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004 of 29 April 2004, as
amended (Non-Equity Securities); (b) the base prospectus for UniCredit Ireland in respect of Non-Equity
Securities; and (c) the base prospectus for UniCredit International Luxembourg in respect of Non-Equity
Securities (together, the Prospectus).

The Issuers and the Guarantor (the Responsible Persons) accept responsibility for the information
contained in this Base Prospectus and the Final Terms for each Tranche of Notes issued under the
Programme. To the best of the knowledge of the Responsible Persons, each having taken all reasonable
care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in this Base Prospectus is in accordance
with the facts and contains no omissions likely to affect its import.

This Base Prospectus is to be read in conjunction with all documents which are deemed to be
incorporated herein by reference (see “Documents Incorporated by Reference”). This Base Prospectus
shall be read and construed on the basis that such documents are incorporated and form part of this Base
Prospectus.

No representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made by any of the Dealers or any of
their respective affiliates or the Trustee and no responsibility or liability is accepted by any of the Dealers
or by any of their respective affiliates or the Trustee as to the accuracy or completeness of the
information contained or incorporated in this Base Prospectus or of any other information provided by
the Issuers or the Guarantor in connection with the Programme. No Dealer or any of their respective
affiliates or the Trustee accepts any liability in relation to the information contained or incorporated by
reference in this Base Prospectus or any other information provided by the Issuers or the Guarantor in
connection with the Programme.

This Base Prospectus contains industry and customer-related data as well as calculations taken from
industry reports, market research reports, publicly available information and commercial publications. It
is hereby confirmed that (a) to the extent that information reproduced herein derives from a third party,
such information has been accurately reproduced and (b) insofar as the Issuers are aware and are able to
ascertain from information derived from a third party, no facts have been omitted which would render
the information reproduced inaccurate or misleading.

Commercial publications generally state that the information they contain originates from sources
assumed to be reliable, but that the accuracy and completeness of such information is not guaranteed,
and that the calculations contained therein are based on a series of assumptions. External data have not
been independently verified by the Issuers.

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuers, the Guarantor or the Trustee to give any information
or to make any representation not contained in or not consistent with this Base Prospectus or any other
information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such
information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuers, the
Guarantor, the Dealers or the Trustee.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or
with any Notes (a) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (b) should be
considered as a recommendation by the Issuers, the Guarantor, any of the Dealers or the Trustee that any
recipient of this Base Prospectus or of any other information supplied in connection with the Programme
or any Notes should purchase any Notes. Each investor contemplating purchasing any Notes should make
its own independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the
creditworthiness, of the relevant Issuer and/or the Guarantor. Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other
information supplied in connection with the Programme or the issue of any Notes constitutes an offer or
invitation by or on behalf of the Issuers, the Guarantor, any of the Dealers or the Trustee to any person to
subscribe for or to purchase any Notes.




Neither the delivery of this Base Prospectus nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Notes shall in any
circumstances imply that the information contained herein concerning the Issuers and the Guarantor is
correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection
with the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing
the same. The Dealers and the Trustee expressly do not undertake to review the financial condition or
affairs of the Issuers or the Guarantor during the life of the Programme or to advise any investor in the
Notes of any information coming to their attention. Investors should review, inter alia, the most recently
published documents incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus when deciding whether or not
to purchase any Notes.




IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATING TO NON-EXEMPT OFFERS OF NOTES
Restrictions on Non-exempt offers of Notes in Relevant Member States

Certain Tranches of Notes with a denomination of less than €100,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency)
may be offered in circumstances where there is no exemption from the obligation under the Prospectus Directive
to publish a prospectus. Any such offer is referred to as a Non-exempt Offer. This Base Prospectus has been
prepared on a basis that permits Non-exempt Offers of Notes. However, any person making or intending to
make a Non-exempt Offer of Notes in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has
implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a Relevant Member State) may only do so if this Base Prospectus
has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State (or, where appropriate, approved
in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant Member State) and
published in accordance with the Prospectus Directive, provided that the Issuers have consented to the use of
this Base Prospectus in connection with such offer as provided under "Consent given in accordance with Article
3.2 of the Prospectus Directive (Retail Cascades)" and the conditions specified in or attached to that consent are
complied with by the person making the Non-exempt Offer of such Notes.

Save as provided above, none of the Issuers, the Guarantor and any Dealer have authorised, nor do they
authorise, the making of any Non-exempt Offer of Notes in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the
Issuers or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

Consent given in accordance with Article 3.2 of the Prospectus Directive (Retail Cascades)

In the context of a Non-exempt Offer of such Notes, the Issuers and the Guarantor accept responsibility, in the
jurisdictions to which the consent to use the Base Prospectus extends, for the content of this Base Prospectus
under Article 6 of the Prospectus Directive in relation to any person (an Investor) who acquires any Notes in a
Non-exempt Offer made by any person to whom the relevant Issuer has given consent to the use of this Base
Prospectus (an Authorised Offeror) in that connection, provided that the conditions attached to that consent are
complied with by the Authorised Offeror. The consent and conditions attached to it are set out under " Consent"
and "Common Conditions to Consent™ below.

None of the Issuers, the Guarantor or any Dealer makes any representation as to the compliance by an
Authorised Offeror with any applicable conduct of business rules or other applicable regulatory or securities law
requirements in relation to any Non-exempt Offer and none of the Issuers or any Dealer has any responsibility
or liability for the actions of that Authorised Offeror.

Save as provided below, none of the Issuers, the Guarantor and any Dealer has authorised the making of
any Non-exempt Offer by any offeror and the Issuers have not consented to the use of this Base
Prospectus by any other person in connection with any Non-exempt Offer of Notes. Any Non-exempt
Offer made without the consent of the relevant Issuer is unauthorised and none of the relevant Issuer,
and, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor and each and any Dealer accepts any
responsibility or liability for the actions of the persons making any such unauthorised offer. If, in the
context of a Non-exempt Offer, an Investor is offered Notes by a person which is not an Authorised Offeror, the
Investor should check with that person whether anyone is responsible for this Base Prospectus for the purposes
of Article 6 of the Prospectus Directive in the context of the Non-Exempt Offer and, if so, who that person is. If
the Investor is in any doubt about whether it can rely on this Base Prospectus and/or who is responsible for its
contents it should take legal advice.

Consent

In connection with each Tranche of Notes and subject to the conditions set out below under "Common
Conditions to Consent":

€)] the relevant Issuer and, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor, each consent to the use of
this Base Prospectus (as supplemented as at the relevant time, if applicable) in connection with a Non-
exempt Offer of such Notes by the relevant Dealer and by:

0] any financial intermediary named as an Initial Authorised Offeror in the applicable Final
Terms; and




(b)

(i) any financial intermediary appointed after the date of the applicable Final Terms and whose
name is published on the lIssuers' website (www.unicreditgroup.eu) and identified as an
Authorised Offeror in respect of the relevant Non-exempt Offer;

if (and only if) Part B of the applicable Final Terms specifies "General Consent™ as "Applicable”, the
relevant Issuer and, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor, each hereby offer to grant their
consent to the use of this Base Prospectus (as supplemented as at the relevant time, if applicable) in
connection with a Non-exempt Offer of Notes by any financial intermediary which satisfies the
following conditions:

(M it is authorised to make such offers under applicable legislation implementing the Markets in
Financial Instruments Directive (Directive 2004/39/EC); and

(i) it accepts such offer by publishing on its website the following statement (with the
information in square brackets completed with the relevant information) (the Acceptance
Statement):

"We, [insert legal name of financial intermediary], refer to the [insert title of relevant Notes] (the
Notes) described in the Final Terms dated [insert date] (the Final Terms) published by [UniCredit
S.p.A/UniCredit Bank Ireland p.l.c./UniCredit International Bank (Luxembourg) S.A.] (the
Issuer)[and unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by UniCredit S.p.A. (the Guarantor)]. We
hereby accept the offer by the Issuer of its consent to our use of the Base Prospectus (as defined in the
Final Terms) in connection with the offer of the Notes in accordance with the Authorised Offeror
Terms and subject to the conditions to such consent, each as specified in the Base Prospectus, and we
are using the Base Prospectus accordingly."

The consent referred to above relates to Non-exempt offers occurring within 12 months from the date
of this Base Prospectus.

The Authorised Offeror Terms are that the relevant financial intermediary:

(A) will, and it agrees, represents, warrants and undertakes for the benefit of the Issuers, the
Guarantor and the relevant Dealer that it will, at all times in connection with the relevant Non-
exempt Offer:

n act in accordance with, and be solely responsible for complying with, all applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidance of any applicable regulatory bodies (the Rules)
from time to time including, without limitation and in each case, Rules relating to
both the appropriateness or suitability of any investment in the Notes by any person
and disclosure to any potential Investor, and will immediately inform the relevant
Issuer, and if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor, and the relevant Dealer
if at any time such financial intermediary becomes aware or suspects that it is or may
be in violation of any Rules and take all appropriate steps to remedy such violation
and comply with such Rules in all respects;

(m comply with the restrictions set out under "Subscription and Sale" in this Base
Prospectus which would apply as if it were a Dealer;

(nn ensure that any fee (and any other commissions or benefits of any kind) received or
paid by that financial intermediary in relation to the offer or sale of the Notes does
not violate the Rules and, to the extent required by the Rules, is fully and clearly
disclosed to Investors or potential Investors;

(v) hold all licences, consents, approvals and permissions required in connection with
solicitation of interest in, or offers or sales of, the Notes under the Rules;

V) comply with applicable anti-money laundering, anti-bribery, anti-corruption and
"know your client” Rules (including, without limitation, taking appropriate steps, in
compliance with such Rules, to establish and document the identity of each potential
Investor prior to initial investment in any Notes by the Investor), and will not permit




(Vi)

V)

(Vi)

(1X)

any application for Notes in circumstances where the financial intermediary has any
suspicions as to the source of the application monies;

retain Investor identification records for at least the minimum period required under
applicable Rules, and shall, if so requested, make such records available to the
relevant Dealer, the relevant Issuer and, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the
Guarantor or directly to the appropriate authorities with jurisdiction over the relevant
Issuers, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor and/or the relevant Dealer
in order to enable the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the
Guarantor and/or the relevant Dealer to comply with anti-money laundering, anti-
bribery, anti-corruption and "know your client”" Rules applying to the relevant Issuer,
if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor and/or the relevant Dealer;

ensure that no holder of Notes or potential Investor in Notes shall become an indirect
or direct client of the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the
Guarantor or the relevant Dealer for the purposes of any applicable Rules from time
to time, and to the extent that any client obligations are created by the relevant
financial intermediary under any applicable Rules, then such financial intermediary
shall perform any such obligations so arising;

co-operate with the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor
and the relevant Dealer in providing such information (including, without limitation,
documents and records maintained pursuant to paragraph ((\V1)) above) upon written
request from the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor or
the relevant Dealer as is available to such financial intermediary or which is within
its power and control from time to time, together with such further assistance as is
reasonably requested by the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the
Guarantor or the relevant Dealer:

0] in connection with any request or investigation by any regulator in relation
to the Notes, the relevant Issuer, the if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes,
Guarantor or the relevant Dealer; and/or

(i) in connection with any complaints received by the relevant Issuer, if the
Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor and/or the relevant Dealer
relating to the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the
Guarantor and/or the relevant Dealer or another Authorised Offeror
including, without limitation, complaints as defined in rules published by
any regulator of competent jurisdiction from time to time; and/or

(iii) which the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor
or the relevant Dealer may reasonably require from time to time in relation
to the Notes and/or as to allow the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are
Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor or the relevant Dealer fully to comply with
its own legal, tax and regulatory requirements,

in each case, as soon as is reasonably practicable and, in any event, within any time
frame set by any such regulator or regulatory process;

during the primary distribution period of the Notes: (i) only sell the Notes at the Issue
Price specified in the applicable Final Terms (unless otherwise agreed with the
relevant Dealer); (ii) only sell the Notes for settlement on the Issue Date specified in
the relevant Final Terms; (iii) not appoint any sub-distributors (unless otherwise
agreed with the relevant Dealer); (iv) not pay any fee or remuneration or
commissions or benefits to any third parties in relation to the offering or sale of the
Notes (unless otherwise agreed with the relevant Dealer); and (v) comply with such
other rules of conduct as may be reasonably required and specified by the relevant
Dealer;




(B)

(©)

(X) either (i) obtain from each potential Investor an executed application for the Notes, or
(ii) keep a record of all requests such financial intermediary (x) makes for its
discretionary management clients, (y) receives from its advisory clients and (z)
receives from its execution-only clients, in each case prior to making any order for
the Notes on their behalf, and in each case maintain the same on its files for so long
as is required by any applicable Rules;

(X ensure that it does not, directly or indirectly, cause the relevant Issuer, if the Notes
are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor or the relevant Dealer to breach any Rule or
subject the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, Guarantor or the
relevant Dealer to any requirement to obtain or make any filing, authorisation or
consent in any jurisdiction;

(XI1)  comply with the conditions to the consent referred to under "Common conditions to
consent” below and any further requirements relevant to the Non-exempt Offer as
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

(XII) make available to each potential Investor in the Notes the Base Prospectus (as
supplemented as at the relevant time, if applicable), the applicable Final Terms and
any applicable information booklet provided by the Issuer for such purpose, and not
convey or publish any information that is not contained in or entirely consistent with
the Base Prospectus; and

(X1V) if it conveys or publishes any communication (other than the Base Prospectus or any
other materials provided to such financial intermediary by or on behalf of the
relevant Issuer for the purposes of the relevant Non-exempt Offer) in connection with
the relevant Non-exempt Offer, it will ensure that such communication (A) is fair,
clear and not misleading and complies with the Rules, (B) states that such financial
intermediary has provided such communication independently of the relevant Issuer,
that such financial intermediary is solely responsible for such communication and
that none of the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor and
the relevant Dealer accepts any responsibility for such communication and (C) does
not, without the prior written consent of the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are
Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor or the relevant Dealer (as applicable), use the legal
or publicity names of the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the
Guarantor or the relevant Dealer or any other name, brand or logo registered by an
entity within their respective groups or any material over which any such entity
retains a proprietary interest, except to describe the relevant Issuer as issuer of the
relevant Notes and the Guarantor as the guarantor of the relevant Notes on the basis
set out in the Base Prospectus;

agrees and undertakes to indemnify each of the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed
Notes, the Guarantor and the relevant Dealer (in each case on behalf of such entity and its
respective directors, officers, employees, agents, affiliates and controlling persons) against any
losses, liabilities, costs, claims, charges, expenses, actions or demands (including reasonable
costs of investigation and any defence raised thereto and counsel’s fees and disbursements
associated with any such investigation or defence) which any of them may incur or which may
be made against any of them arising out of or in relation to, or in connection with, any breach
of any of the foregoing agreements, representations, warranties or undertakings by such
financial intermediary, including (without limitation) any unauthorised action by such
financial intermediary or failure by such financial intermediary to observe any of the above
restrictions or requirements or the making by such financial intermediary of any unauthorised
representation or the giving or use by it of any information which has not been authorised for
such purposes by the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor or the
relevant Dealer; and

agrees and accepts that:

0] the contract between the relevant Issuer and the financial intermediary formed upon
acceptance by the financial intermediary of the relevant Issuer’s offer to use the Base




Prospectus with its consent in connection with the relevant Exempt Offer (the
Authorised Offeror Contract), and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or
in connection with the Authorised Offeror Contract, shall be governed by, and
construed in accordance with, English law;

(m subject to (IV) below, the English courts have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any
dispute arising out of or in connection with the Authorised Offeror Contract
(including any dispute relating to any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in
connection with the Authorised Offeror Contract) (a Dispute) and the relevant Issuer
and the financial intermediary submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English
courts;

(1) for the purposes of (C)(I1) and (1V), the relevant Issuer and the financial intermediary
waive any objection to the English courts on the grounds that they are an
inconvenient or inappropriate forum to settle any dispute;

(v) this paragraph (IV) is for the benefit of the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are
Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor and each relevant Dealer. To the extent allowed by
law, the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor and each
relevant Dealer may, in respect of any Dispute or Disputes, take (i) proceedings in
any other court with jurisdiction; and (ii) concurrent proceedings in any number of
jurisdictions; and

V) the relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor and each
relevant Dealer will, pursuant to the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999, be
entitled to enforce those provisions of the Authorised Offeror Contract which are, or
are expressed to be, for their benefit, including the agreements, representations,
warranties, undertakings and indemnity given by the financial intermediary pursuant
to the Authorised Offeror Terms.

Any financial intermediary who is an Authorised Offeror falling within (b) above who
meets all of the conditions set out in (b) and the other conditions stated in "*Common
Conditions to Consent™ below and who wishes to use this Base Prospectus in connection
with a Non-exempt Offer is required, for the duration of the relevant Offer Period, to
publish on its website the Acceptance Statement (duly completed) specified at paragraph
(b)(ii) above.

Common Conditions to Consent

The conditions to the relevant Issuer's, and if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor's consent are (in

addition to the conditions described in paragraph (b) above if Part B of the applicable Final Terms specifies

"General Consent™ as "Applicable™) that such consent:

0] is only valid during the Offer Period specified in the applicable Final Terms;

(i) only extends to the use of this Base Prospectus to make Non-exempt Offers of the relevant Tranche of
Notes in the Republic of Italy, Ireland, Luxembourg, the Federal Republic of Germany and Austria as
specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

(iii) the consent is subject to any other conditions set out in Part B of the applicable Final Terms.

Each Tranche of Notes may only be offered to Investors as part of a Non-exempt Offer in each Relevant

Member States specified in the applicable Final Terms, or otherwise in circumstances in which no obligation

arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

ARRANGEMENTS BETWEEN INVESTORS AND AUTHORISED OFFERORS

AN INVESTOR INTENDING TO ACQUIRE OR ACQUIRING ANY NOTES IN A NON-EXEMPT

OFFER FROM AN AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL DO SO, AND OFFERS AND SALES OF SUCH
NOTES TO AN INVESTOR BY SUCH AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL BE MADE, IN
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ACCORDANCE WITH ANY TERMS AND OTHER ARRANGEMENTS IN PLACE BETWEEN SUCH
AUTHORISED OFFEROR AND SUCH INVESTOR INCLUDING AS TO PRICE, ALLOCATIONS
AND SETTLEMENT ARRANGEMENTS. THE ISSUER AND THE GUARANTOR (IF THE NOTES
ARE GUARANTEED NOTES) WILL NOT BE A PARTY TO ANY SUCH ARRANGEMENTS WITH
SUCH INVESTORS IN CONNECTION WITH THE NON-EXEMPT OFFER OR SALE OF THE
NOTES CONCERNED AND, ACCORDINGLY, THIS BASE PROSPECTUS AND ANY FINAL
TERMS WILL NOT CONTAIN SUCH INFORMATION. THE INVESTOR MUST LOOK TO THE
AUTHORISED OFFEROR AT THE TIME OF SUCH OFFER FOR THE PROVISION OF SUCH
INFORMATION AND THE AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SUCH
INFORMATION. THE RELEVANT INFORMATION WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE AUTHORISED
OFFEROR AT THE TIME OF SUCH OFFER. NONE OF THE ISSUER, THE GUARANTOR (IF THE
NOTES ARE GUARANTEED NOTES) AND ANY DEALER (EXCEPT WHERE SUCH DEALER IS
THE RELEVANT AUTHORISED OFFEROR) HAS ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY TO AN
INVESTOR IN RESPECT OF THE INFORMATION DESCRIBED ABOVE.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATING TO THE USE OF THIS BASE PROSPECTUS AND
OFFERS OF NOTES GENERALLY

This Base Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any Notes in
any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction.
The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted by law in certain
jurisdictions. The Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers and the Trustee do not represent that this Base
Prospectus may be lawfully distributed, or that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with
any applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption
available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In
particular, unless specifically indicated to the contrary in the applicable Final Terms, no action has been
taken by the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers or the Trustee which is intended to permit a public
offering of any Notes or distribution of this Base Prospectus in any jurisdiction where action for that
purpose is required. Accordingly, no Notes may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this
Base Prospectus nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in any
jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and
regulations. Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus or any Notes may come must inform
themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and the
offering and sale of Notes. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus
and the offer or sale of Notes in the United States, Japan, Hong Kong and the People's Republic of China
and the European Economic Area (including the United Kingdom, the Republic of Italy, Ireland, France,
the Federal Republic of Germany, Luxembourg and Austria). See “Subscription and Sale and Transfer
and Selling Restrictions”.

The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors. Each potential investor in the Notes must
determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own circumstances. In particular, each potential
investor may wish to consider, either on its own or with the help of its financial and other professional advisers,
whether it:

(i) has sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Notes, the merits and
risks of investing in the Notes and the information contained or incorporated by reference in this Base
Prospectus or any applicable supplement;

(i) has access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its particular
financial situation, an investment in the Notes and the impact the Notes will have on its overall
investment portfolio;

(iii) has sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Notes,
including Notes with principal or interest payable in one or more currencies, or where the currency for
principal or interest payments is different from the potential investor's currency;

(iv) understands thoroughly the terms of the Notes and is familiar with the behaviour of any relevant
indices and financial markets; and
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is able to evaluate possible scenarios for economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment
and its ability to bear the applicable risks.

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or to review
or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine
whether and to what extent (a) Notes are legal investments for it, (b) Notes can be used as collateral for various
types of borrowing and (c) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any Notes. Financial institutions
should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate treatment of Notes
under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the Securities Act), and are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain exceptions,
Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons (see “Subscription
and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions”). See “Form of the Notes” for a description of the manner
in which Notes will be issued. Registered Notes are subject to certain restrictions on transfer, see
“Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions”.

This Base Prospectus has not been submitted for clearance to the Autorité des Marchés financiers in
France.

U.S. INFORMATION

The Notes have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or
any other securities commission or other regulatory authority in the United States, nor have the foregoing
authorities approved this Base Prospectus or confirmed the accuracy or determined the adequacy of the
information contained in this Base Prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

This Base Prospectus may be distributed on a confidential basis in the United States to a limited number of
“qualified institutional buyers” within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act (QIBS) or
Institutional Accredited Investors (each as defined under “Form of the Notes™) for informational use solely in
connection with the consideration of the purchase of the Notes being offered hereby. Its use for any other
purpose in the United States is not authorised. It may not be copied or reproduced in whole or in part nor may it
be distributed or any of its contents disclosed to anyone other than the prospective investors to whom it is
originally submitted.

The Bearer Notes are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the
United States or its possessions or to United States persons, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S.
Treasury regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code and the Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder.

Registered Notes may be offered or sold within the United States only to QIBs or to Institutional Accredited
Investors, in either case in transactions exempt from registration under the Securities Act in reliance on Rule
144A under the Securities Act (Rule 144A) or any other applicable exemption. Each U.S. purchaser of
Registered Notes is hereby notified that the offer and sale of any Registered Notes to it may be being made in
reliance upon the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 144A.
Prospective purchasers are hereby notified that sellers of the Notes may be relying on the exemption from the
provisions of Section 5 of the Securities Act provided by Rule 144A.

Purchasers of Definitive Al Registered Notes will be required to execute and deliver an 1Al Investment Letter
(as defined under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes™). Each purchaser or holder of Definitive IAI Registered
Notes, Notes represented by a Rule 144A Global Note or of any Notes issued in registered form in exchange or
substitution therefor (together, the Legended Notes) will be deemed, by its acceptance or purchase of any such
Legended Notes, to have made certain representations and agreements intended to restrict the resale or other
transfer of such Notes as set out in “Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions”. Unless
otherwise stated, terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them in “Form of the Notes”.

Notice to New Hampshire Residents

NEITHER THE FACT THAT A REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN APPLICATION FOR A LICENSE
HAS BEEN FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B OF THE NEW HAMPSHIRE REVISED STATUTES WITH
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THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE NOR THE FACT THAT A SECURITY IS EFFECTIVELY
REGISTERED OR A PERSON IS LICENSED IN THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE CONSTITUTES A
FINDING BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE THAT ANY DOCUMENT FILED
UNDER CHAPTER 421-B IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING. NEITHER ANY SUCH FACT
NOR THE FACT THAT AN EXEMPTION OR EXCEPTION IS AVAILABLE FOR A SECURITY OR A
TRANSACTION MEANS THAT THE SECRETARY OF STATE HAS PASSED IN ANY WAY UPON THE
MERITS OR QUALIFICATIONS OF, OR RECOMMENDED OR GIVEN APPROVAL TO, ANY PERSON,
SECURITY OR TRANSACTION. IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE, OR CAUSE TO BE MADE, TO ANY
PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER, CUSTOMER OR CLIENT ANY REPRESENTATION INCONSISTENT
WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH.

Available Information

To permit compliance with Rule 144A in connection with any resales or other transfers of Notes that are
“restricted securities” within the meaning of the Securities Act, the Issuers and the Guarantor have undertaken in
a deed poll dated 5 July 2013 (the Deed Poll) to furnish, upon the request of a holder of such Notes or of any
beneficial interest therein, to such holder or to a prospective purchaser designated by him, the information
required to be delivered under Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act if, at the time of the request, any of the
Notes remain outstanding as “restricted securities” within the meaning of Rule 144A(a)(3) of the Securities Act
and the relevant Issuer is neither a reporting company under Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)
thereunder.

Service of Process and Enforcement of Civil Liabilities

The Issuers and the Guarantor are corporations organised under the laws of Ireland (in the case of UniCredit
Ireland), Luxembourg (in the case of UniCredit International Luxembourg) and the Republic of Italy (in the case
of UniCredit). All of the officers and directors named herein reside outside the United States and all or a
substantial portion of the assets of each Issuer and the Guarantor and of such officers and directors are located
outside the United States. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process outside
Ireland (in relation to UniCredit Ireland), Luxembourg (in relation to UniCredit International Luxembourg) or
the Republic of Italy (in relation to UniCredit) upon the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor or such persons, or to
enforce judgments against them obtained in courts outside Ireland (in relation to UniCredit Ireland),
Luxembourg (in relation to UniCredit International Luxembourg) or the Republic of Italy (in relation to
UniCredit) predicated upon civil liabilities of such Issuer or the Guarantor or of such directors and officers
under laws other than Irish law (in relation to UniCredit Ireland), Luxembourg law (in relation to UniCredit
International Luxembourg) or Italian law (in relation to UniCredit), including any judgment predicated upon
United States federal securities laws.

Presentation of information

Investors should consult the Issuers should they require a copy of the ISDA 2006 Definitions, the ISDA 2003
Credit Derivatives Definitions or the ISDA 2009 Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees, Auction
Settlement and Restructuring Supplement to the 2003 ISDA Credit Derivatives Definitions published on 14 July
20009, as applicable.

In this Base Prospectus, all references to:

. U.S. dollars, U.S.$ and $ refer to United States dollars;
) to Sterling, GBP and £ refer to pounds sterling; and
. euro and € refer to the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and

monetary union pursuant to the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as amended;

. Renminbi, RMB and CNY refers to the currency of the People's Republic of China. All references to
the PRC are to the People's Republic of China excluding the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the People's Republic of China (Hong Kong), the Macau Special Administrative Region of
the People's Republic of China and Taiwan.
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STABILISATION

In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the
Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in the applicable Final
Terms may over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Notes
at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurance that the
Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of a Stabilising Manager) will undertake stabilisation
action. Any stabilisation action or over-allotment may begin on or after the date on which adequate
public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche of Notes is made and, if begun, will be
carried out in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations and may be ended at any time, but it
must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the relevant Tranche of Notes and 60
days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of Notes. Any stabilisation action or over-
allotment must be conducted by the relevant Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any
Stabilising Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.
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Summary of the Programme

Summaries are made up of disclosure requirements known as “Elements”. These Elements are numbered in
Sections A—E (A.1-E.7).

This Summary contains all the Elements required to be included in a summary for the Notes, the Issuers and the
Guarantor. Because some Elements are not required to be addressed, there may be gaps in the numbering
sequence of the Elements.

Even though an Element may be required to be inserted in a summary because of the type of securities and
issuer, it is possible that no relevant information can be given regarding the Element. In this case a short
description of the Element is included in the summary with the mention of "not applicable".

Section A — Introduction and warnings

Element
Al Warnings ° This summary should be read as an introduction to the Base
Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms.

o Any decision to invest in any Notes should be based on a
consideration of this Base Prospectus as a whole, including any
documents incorporated by reference and the applicable Final
Terms.

. Where a claim relating to information contained in the Base
Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms is brought before a court
in a Member State of the European Economic Area, the plaintiff
may, under the national legislation of the Member State where the
claim is brought, be required to bear the costs of translating the
Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms before the legal
proceedings are initiated.

o Civil liability will attach only to the persons who have tabled this
summary including any translation thereof, but only if the summary
is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with
the other parts of this Base Prospectus or it does not provide, when
read together with the other parts of this Base Prospectus, key
information in order to aid investors when considering whether to
invest in the Notes.

A2 Consent Certain Tranches of Notes with a denomination of less than €100,000 (or its
equivalent in any other currency) may be offered in circumstances where
there is no exemption from the obligation under the Prospectus Directive to
publish a prospectus. Any such offer is referred to as a Non-exempt Offer.
[Not Applicable — the Notes are not being offered to the public as a part of a
Non-exempt Offer] [Consent: Subject to the conditions set out below, [each
of] the Issuer [and the Guarantor] consent[s] to the use of this Base
Prospectus in connection with a Non-exempt Offer of Notes by the
Managers[, [names of specific financial intermediaries listed in final terms,]
[and] [each financial intermediary whose name is published on the Issuer’s
website (www.unicreditgroup.eu) and identified as an Authorised Offeror in
respect of the relevant Non-exempt Offer] [and any financial intermediary
which is authorised to make such offers under [the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000, as amended, or other Japplicable legislation implementing
the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (Directive 2004/39/EC) and
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Summary of the Programme

Element

publishes on its website the following statement (with the information in
square brackets being completed with the relevant information):

"We, [insert legal name of financial intermediary], refer to the [insert title of
relevant Notes] (the Notes) described in the Final Terms dated [insert date]
(the Final Terms) published by [ ] (the Issuer). We hereby accept
the offer by [each of] the Issuer [and the Guarantor] of its consent to our use
of the Base Prospectus (as defined in the Final Terms) in connection with the
offer of the Notes in accordance with the Authorised Offeror Terms and
subject to the conditions to such consent, each as specified in the Base
Prospectus, and we are using the Base Prospectus accordingly."

(each an Authorised Offeror).

Offer period: The Issuer's consent referred to above is given for Non-exempt
Offers of Notes during [offer period for the issue to be specified here] (the
Offer Period).

Conditions to consent: The conditions to the Issuer’s [and the Guarantor's]
consent (in addition to the conditions referred to above) are that such consent
(@) is only valid during the Offer Period; (b) only extends to the use of this
Base Prospectus to make Non-exempt Offers of the relevant Tranche of
Notes in [specify each Relevant Member State in which the particular
Tranche of Notes can be offered] and (c) [specify any other conditions
applicable to the Non-exempt Offer of the particular Tranche, as set out in
the Final Terms].

AN INVESTOR INTENDING TO ACQUIRE OR ACQUIRING ANY
NOTES IN A NON-EXEMPT OFFER FROM AN AUTHORISED
OFFEROR WILL DO SO, AND OFFERS AND SALES OF SUCH
NOTES TO AN INVESTOR BY SUCH AUTHORISED OFFEROR
WILL BE MADE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY TERMS AND
OTHER ARRANGEMENTS IN PLACE BETWEEN SUCH
AUTHORISED OFFEROR AND SUCH INVESTOR INCLUDING AS
TO PRICE, ALLOCATIONS AND SETTLEMENT
ARRANGEMENTS. THE RELEVANT INFORMATION WILL BE
PROVIDED BY THE AUTHORISED OFFEROR AT THE TIME OF
SUCH OFFER.

Section B — Issuers and Guarantor

Element

Title

[B.1

Legal and commercial | UniCredit S.p.A. (UniCredit)

name of the Issuer

B.2

Domicile/ legal

form/ | UniCredit is a Societa per Azioni incorporated under the laws of the

legislation/  country  of | Republic of Italy and domiciled in the Republic of Italy with

incorporation

registered office at Via A. Specchi 16, 00186, Rome, Italy.
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Summary of the Programme

Element

Title

B.4b

Trend information

Not Applicable - There are no known trends, uncertainties, demands,
commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material
effect on the Issuer's prospects for its current financial year.

B.5

Description of the Group

The UniCredit Banking Group, registered with the Register of
Banking Groups held by the Bank of Italy pursuant to Article 64 of
the Banking Law under number 02008.1 (the Group or the
UniCredit Group) is a leading financial services group with a well
established network in 22 countries, including Italy, Germany,
Austria, Poland and several other Central and Eastern European
(CEE) countries. The Group’s portfolio of activities is highly
diversified by segments and geographical areas, with a strong focus
on commercial banking. Its wide range of banking, financial and
related activities includes deposit-taking, lending, asset management,
securities trading and brokerage, investment banking, international
trade finance, corporate finance, leasing, factoring and the
distribution of certain life insurance products through bank branches
(bancassurance).

B.9

Profit forecast or estimate

Not Applicable - No profit forecasts or estimates have been made in
the Base Prospectus.

B.10

Audit report qualifications

Not Applicable - No qualifications are contained in any audit or
review report included in the Base Prospectus.

B.12

Selected historical key financial information:

Income Statement

The table below sets out summary information extracted from the audited consolidated annual
financial statements as at and for each of the financial years ended 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011 for the UniCredit Group:

€ millions Year ended 31 December 2012 Year ended 31 December
2011
Operating income 25,049 25,013
of which:
- net interest 14,285 15,252
- dividends and other income 397 380
from equity investments
- net fees and commissions 7,793 8,048
Operating costs (14,979) (15,431)
Operating profit 10,070 9,582
Profit (loss) before tax 317 2,195
Net profit (loss) attributable 865 (9,206)
to the Group
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Element

Title

The table below sets out summary information extracted from the consolidated interim report as at 31
March 2013 and 31 March 2012 for the UniCredit Group:

€ millions 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Operating income 6,080 7,110
of which:

- net interest 3,314 3,744
- dividends and other income 46 54

from equity investments

- net fees and commissions 2,000 1,985
Operating costs (l10ss) (3,760) (3,831)
Operating profit 2,320 3,279
Profit before tax 997 1,876
Net profit attributable to the 449 914
Group

Statement of Financial Position

The table below sets out summary information extracted from UniCredit Group's audited statement of
financial positions as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011:

Year ended 31 December
€ millions Year ended 31 December 2012 2011
Total assets 926,827 913,567
Financial assets held for 107,119 120,374
trading
Loans and receivables with 547,144 555,946
customers
of which:
- impaired loans 44,058 38,806
Financial liabilities held for 99,123 111,386
trading
Deposits from customers and 579,965 557,448
debt securities in issue
of which:
- deposits from customers 409,514 395,288
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Element Title
- securities in issue 170,451 162,160
Shareholders' Equity 62,784 51,479
The table below sets out summary information extracted from the consolidated interim report as at 31
March 2013 and audited statement of financial positions as at 31 December 2012 for the UniCredit

Group:
31 March 2013 31 December 2012

Total assets 912,921 926,838
Financial assets held for 98,593 107,119
trading
Loans and receivables with 537,462 547,144
customers
of which:
- impaired loans 45,535 44,058
Financial liabilities held for 92,361 99,123
trading
Deposits from customers and 569,498 579,965
debt securities in issue
of which:
- deposits from customers 407,769 409,514
- securities in issue 161,729 170,451
Shareholders' Equity 62,382 61,579
The figures in these tables refer to reclassified balance sheet
Please note that on 1 January 2013 the amendments to IAS 19 ("I1AS 19R") came into force. The first
time application on the accounting standard required the restatement of previous periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2012.
Statements of no significant or material adverse change
There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of UniCredit and the Group
since 31 March 2013 and there has been no material adverse change in the prospects of UniCredit and
the Group since 31 December 2012.

B.13 Events impacting the | Not Applicable - There are no recent events particular to the Issuer
Issuer’'s solvency which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of the

Issuer's solvency.
B.14 Dependence upon other | UniCredit is the parent company of the UniCredit Group and carries

group entities out, in addition to banking activities, organic policy, governance and
control functions vis-a-vis its subsidiary banking, financial and
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Element Title
instrumental companies.
Please also see Element B.5 above
B.15 Principal activities UniCredit, as a bank which undertakes management and co-
ordination activities for the UniCredit Group, pursuant to the
provisions of Article 61 of Legislative Decree No. 385 of 1
September 1993, as amended (the Italian Banking Act), issues,
when exercising these management and co-ordination activities,
instructions to the other members of the banking group in respect of
the fulfilment of requirements laid down by the Bank of Italy in the
interest of the banking group’s stability.
B.16 Controlling shareholders Not Applicable - No individual or entity controls the Issuer within
the meaning provided for in Article 93 of the Legislative Decree No.
58 of 24 February 1998, as amended.
B.17 Credit ratings UniCredit S.p.A. has been rated:
Description Standard Moody's Fitch
& Poor's ratings
Short Term Counterparty Credit A-2 p-2 F2
Rating
Long Term Counterparty Credit BBB+ BBB+ BBB+
Rating
Outlook negative negative negative
Standalone Rating bbb+ C- bbb+
[The Notes [have been/are expected to be] rated [specify rating(s) of
Tranche being issued] by [specify rating agent(s)].]
[A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal
at any time by the assigning rating agency.]
[No ratings have been assigned to the Notes at the request of or with
the co-operation of the Issuer in the rating process.]]
Element Title
[B.1 Legal and commercial | UniCredit Bank Ireland p.l.c. (UniCredit Ireland)
name of the Issuer
B.2 Domicile/  legal ~ form/ | UniCredit Ireland is a limited liability company incorporated under
legislation/  country  of | the laws of Ireland and domiciled in Ireland with registered office at
incorporation La Touche House, International Financial Services Centre, Dublin 1,
Ireland.
B.4b Trend information Not Applicable - There are no known trends, uncertainties, demands,

commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material
effect on the Issuer's prospects for its current financial year.
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Element

Title

B.5

Description of the Group

The UniCredit Banking Group, registered with the Register of
Banking Groups held by the Bank of Italy pursuant to Article 64 of
the Banking Law under number 02008.1 (the Group or the
UniCredit Group) is a leading financial services group with a well
established network in 22 countries, including Italy, Germany,
Austria, Poland and several other Central and Eastern European
(CEE) countries. The Group’s portfolio of activities is highly
diversified by segments and geographical areas, with a strong focus
on commercial banking. Its wide range of banking, financial and
related activities includes deposit-taking, lending, asset management,
securities trading and brokerage, investment banking, international
trade finance, corporate finance, leasing, factoring and the
distribution of certain life insurance products through bank branches
(bancassurance).

B.9

Profit forecast or estimate

Not Applicable - No profit forecasts or estimates have been made in
the Base Prospectus.

B.10

Audit report qualifications

Not Applicable - No qualifications are contained in any audit or
review report included in the Base Prospectus.

B.12

Selected historical key financial information:

Income Statement

The table below sets out summary information extracted from the audited consolidated annual
financial statements as at and for each of the financial years ended 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011 for UniCredit Ireland:

UniCredit Ireland As at
€ millions Year ended Year ended
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Operating income 105 159
of which:
- net interest 102 153
- dividends and other income - -
from equity investments
- net fees and commissions (14) (2)
Operating costs (7) (6)
Operating profit 98 152
Profit (loss) before tax 95 145
Net profit (loss) attributable 82 141
to the Group
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Element Title
Statement of Financial Position
The table below sets out summary information extracted from for UniCredit Ireland audited statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011:
€ millions Year ended Year ended
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Total assets 27,154 22,221
Financial assets held for 35 94
trading
Loans and receivables with 2,002 2,462
customers
of which:
- impaired loans - -
Financial liabilities held for 1 52
trading
Deposits from customers and 6,389 5,148
debt securities in issue
of which:
- deposits from customers 1,646 1,475
- securities in issue 4,743 3,673
Shareholders' Equity 1,765 1,106
Statements of no significant or material adverse change
There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of UniCredit Ireland since 31
December 2012 and there has been no material adverse change in the prospects of UniCredit Ireland
since 31 December 2012.
B.13 Events impacting  the | Not Applicable - There are no recent events particular to the Issuer
Issuer’s solvency which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of the
Issuer's solvency.
B.14 Dependence upon other | UniCredit Ireland is an autonomous operating unit within the wider
group entities Group and as a fully owned subsidiary is subject to the coordination
and support of the parent entity. This support extends to UniCredit
Ireland’s financial dependence as evidenced by UniCredit's injection
of €2.2 billion in share capital and capital contributions to facilitate
its ongoing trading activities.
Please also see Element B.5 above
B.15 Principal activities UniCredit Ireland is engaged in the business of banking and

provision of financial services. Its main business areas include credit
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Element

Title

and structured finance (including investing in loans, bonds,
securitisation and other forms of asset financing), treasury activities
(money market, repurchase agreements or “repos”, Euro Over Night
Index Average (EONIA) and other interest rate swaps, foreign
exchange and futures) and the issue of certificates of deposit and
structured notes.

B.16

Controlling shareholders

UniCredit Ireland is a wholly owned subsidiary of UniCredit S.p.A.

B.17

Credit ratings

The Issuer is not rated.

[The Notes [have been/are expected to be] rated [specify rating(s) of
Tranche being issued] by [specify rating agent(s)].]

[A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal
at any time by the assigning rating agency.]

[No ratings have been assigned to the Notes at the request of or with
the co-operation of the Issuer in the rating process.]]

Element

Title

[B.1

Legal and commercial
name of the Issuer

UniCredit International Bank (Luxembourg) S.A. (UniCredit
International Luxembourg).

B.2

Domicile/
legislation/
incorporation

legal form/
country  of

UniCredit International Luxembourg is a public limited liability
company (société anonyme) incorporated under the laws of the
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and domiciled in Luxembourg with
registered office at 8-10 rue Jean Monnet, L-2180 Luxembourg.

B.4b

Trend information

Not Applicable - There are no known trends, uncertainties, demands,
commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material
effect on the Issuer's prospects for its current financial year.

B.5

Description of the Group

The UniCredit Banking Group, registered with the Register of
Banking Groups held by the Bank of Italy pursuant to Article 64 of
the Banking Law under number 02008.1 (the Group or the
UniCredit Group) is a leading financial services group with a well
established network in 22 countries, including Italy, Germany,
Austria, Poland and several other Central and Eastern European
(CEE) countries. The Group’s portfolio of activities is highly
diversified by segments and geographical areas, with a strong focus
on commercial banking. Its wide range of banking, financial and
related activities includes deposit-taking, lending, asset management,
securities trading and brokerage, investment banking, international
trade finance, corporate finance, leasing, factoring and the
distribution of certain life insurance products through bank branches
(bancassurance).

B.9

Profit forecast or estimate

Not Applicable - No profit forecasts or estimates have been made in
the Base Prospectus.

B.10

Audit report qualifications

Not Applicable - No qualifications are contained in any audit or
review report included in the Base Prospectus.
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B.12 Selected historical key financial information:
Income Statement
The table below sets out summary information extracted from the audited consolidated annual

financial statements as at and for each of the financial years ended 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011 for UniCredit Luxembourg:

UniCredit Luxembourg As at
€ millions Year ended Year ended 31 December
31 December 2012 2011
Operating income of which: 13 13
-net interest 12 13
Operating costs (5) (5) Operating
Profit 8 8
Profit (loss) before tax 8 8
Net profit (loss) attributable 6 6
to the Group

Statement of Financial Position

The table below sets out summary information extracted from for UniCredit Luxembourg's audited
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011:

€ millions Year ended Year ended
31 December 2012 31 December 2011

Total assets 3,030 3,850

Financial assets held for 1 -

trading

Loans and receivables with 105 99

customers

Financial liabilities held for 1 -

trading

Deposits from customers and 2,278 3,181

debt securities in issue of

which:

- deposits from customers 303 436

- securities in issue 1,974 2,745
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Shareholders' Equity 244 214
Statements of no significant or material adverse change
There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of UniCredit International
Luxembourg since 31 December 2011 and there has been no material adverse change in the prospects
of UniCredit International Luxembourg since 31 December 2012.
B.13 Events impacting  the | Not Applicable - There are no recent events particular to the Issuer
Issuer's solvency which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of the
Issuer's solvency.
B.14 Dependence upon other | UniCredit International Luxembourg is a wholly owned subsidiary of
group entities UniCredit and owns a 100 per cent. interest in a subsidiary named
UniCredit Luxembourg Finance S.A., whose principal object is the
issue of securities in the US market under a USD 10 billion medium
term note programme guaranteed by UniCredit S.p.A.
Please also see Element B.5 above
B.15 Principal activities UniCredit International Luxembourg is engaged in the business of
banking and the provision of financial services. Its main business
areas include treasury activities (money market, repurchase
agreements or “repos”, interest rate swaps, foreign exchange), issue
of certificates of deposit and structured notes, selective investments
for its own account, treasury services for institutional and corporate
counterparties, management of the remaining credit portfolio.
B.16 Controlling shareholders UniCredit International Luxembourg is a wholly owned subsidiary of
UniCredit.
B.17 Credit ratings The Issuer is not rated.
[The Notes [have been/are expected to be] rated [specify rating(s) of
Tranche being issued] by [specify rating agent(s)].]
[A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal
at any time by the assigning rating agency.]
[No ratings have been assigned to the Notes at the request of or with
the co-operation of the Issuer in the rating process.]]
[B.18 Description of the | [The Notes issued by [UniCredit Ireland] [UniCredit International
Guarantee Luxembourg] will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

the Guarantor.]

[[To include in the case of Senior Notes:]The obligations of the
Guarantor under its guarantee will be direct, unconditional and
unsecured obligations of the Guarantor and will rank pari passu and
(save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law) equally
with all other unsecured obligations (other than subordinated
obligations, if any) of the Guarantor from time to time outstanding.]

[[To include in the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit
Ireland:]The obligations of the Guarantor under its guarantee will
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constitute, direct, unsecured and subordinated obligations of the
Guarantor.]

[Not Applicable]]

[B.19

Information about the

Guarantor

B.19B.1

Legal and commercial
name of the Guarantor

UniCredit S.p.A. (UniCredit)

B.19B.2

Domicile/
legislation/
incorporation

legal  form/
country  of

The Guarantor is a Societa per Azioni incorporated under the laws of
the Republic of Italy and domiciled in the Republic of Italy with
registered office at Via A. Specchi 16, 00186, Rome, Italy.

B.19 B.4b

Trend information

Not Applicable - There are no known trends, uncertainties, demands,
commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material
effect on the Guarantor's prospects for its current financial year.

B.19B.5

Description of the Group

The UniCredit Banking Group, registered with the Register of
Banking Groups held by the Bank of Italy pursuant to Article 64 of
the Banking Law under number 02008.1 (the Group or the
UniCredit Group) is a leading financial services group with a well
established network in 22 countries, including Italy, Germany,
Austria, Poland and several other Central and Eastern European
(CEE) countries. The Group’s portfolio of activities is highly
diversified by segments and geographical areas, with a strong focus
on commercial banking. Its wide range of banking, financial and
related activities includes deposit-taking, lending, asset management,
securities trading and brokerage, investment banking, international
trade finance, corporate finance, leasing, factoring and the
distribution of certain life insurance products through bank branches
(bancassurance).

B.19B.9

Profit forecast or estimate

Not Applicable - No profit forecasts or estimates have been made in
the Base Prospectus.

B.19 B.10

Audit report qualifications

Not Applicable - No qualifications are contained in any audit or
review report included in the Base Prospectus.

B.19 B.12

Selected historical key financial information:

Income Statement

The table below sets out summary information extracted from the audited consolidated annual
financial statements as at and for each of the financial years ended 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011 for the UniCredit Group:

€ millions

Year ended 31 December 2012 | Year ended 31 December 2011

Operating income
of which:

- net interest

25,049 25,013

14,285 15,252
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- dividends and other income 397 380
from equity investments

- net fees and commissions 7,793 8,048
Operating costs (14,979) (15,431)
Operating profit 10,070 9,582
Profit (loss) before tax 317 2,195
Net profit (loss) attributable 865 (9,206)

to the Group

The table below sets out summary information extracted from the consolidated interim report as at 31
March 2013 and 31 March 2012 for the UniCredit Group:

€ millions 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Operating income 6,080 7,110
of which:

- net interest 3,314 3,744
- dividends and other income 46 54
from equity investments

- net fees and commissions 2,000 1,985
Operating costs (l0ss) (3,760) (3,831)
Operating profit 2,320 3,279
Profit before tax 997 1,876
Net profit attributable to the 449 914

Group

Statement of Financial Position

The table below sets out summary information extracted from UniCredit Group's audited statement of

financial positions as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011:

€ millions Year ended 31 December 2012 | Year ended 31 December 2011
Total assets 926,827 913,567

Financial assets held for 107,119 120,374

trading

Loans and receivables with 547,144 555,946

customers

of which:
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- impaired loans 44,058 38,806
Financial liabilities held for 99,123 111,386
trading

Deposits from customers and 579,965 557,448
debt securities in issue

of which:

- deposits from customers 409,514 395,288
- securities in issue 170,451 162,160
Shareholders' Equity 62,784 51,479

The table below sets out summary information extracted from the consolidated interim report as at 31
March 2013 and audited statement of financial positions as at 31 December 2012 for the UniCredit

Group:
31 March 2013 31 December 2012

Total assets 912,921 926,838
Financial assets held for 98,593 107,119
trading
Loans and receivables with 537,462 547,144
customers
of which:
- impaired loans 45,535 44,058
Financial liabilities held for 92,361 99,123
trading
Deposits from customers and 569,498 579,965
debt securities in issue
of which:
- deposits from customers 407,769 409,514
- securities in issue 161,729 170,451
Shareholders' Equity 62,382 61,579

The figures in these tables refer to reclassified balance sheet

Please note that on 1 January 2013 the amendments to 1AS 19 ("IAS 19R") came into force. The first
time application on the accounting standard required the restatement of previous periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2012.
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Statements of no significant or material adverse change
There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of UniCredit and the Group
since 31 March 2013 and there has been no material adverse change in the prospects of UniCredit and
the Group since 31 December 2012.
B.19B.13 | Events impacting the | Not Applicable - There are no recent events particular to the
Guarantor's solvency Guarantor which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of
the Guarantor's solvency.
B.19B.14 | Dependence upon other | The Guarantor is the parent company of the UniCredit Group and
Group entities carries out, in addition to banking activities, organic policy,
governance and control functions vis-a-vis its subsidiary banking,
financial and instrumental companies.
Please also see Element B.19 B.5 above
B.19B.15 | The Guarantor's Principal | The Guarantor, as a bank which undertakes management and co-
activities ordination activities for the UniCredit Group, pursuant to the
provisions of Article 61 of Legislative Decree No. 385 of 1
September 1993, as amended (the Italian Banking Act), issues,
when exercising these management and co-ordination activities,
instructions to the other members of the banking group in respect of
the fulfilment of requirements laid down by the Bank of Italy in the
interest of the banking group’s stability.
B.19 B.16 | Controlling shareholders Not Applicable - No individual or entity controls the Guarantor
within the meaning provided for in Article 93 of the Legislative
Decree No. 58 of 24 February 1998, as amended.
B.19 B.17 | Credit ratings UniCredit S.p.A. has been rated:
Description Standard Moody's Fitch
& Poor's ratings
Short Term Counterparty Credit Rating A-2 P-2 F2
Long Term Counterparty Credit Rating BBB+ Baa2 BBB+
Outlook negative negative negative
Standalone Rating bbb+ C- bbb+]
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Title

C1

Description of Notes/ISIN

The Notes to be issued may be Fixed Rate Notes, Floating
Rate Notes, Zero Coupon Notes, Inflation Linked Interest
Notes or CMS Linked Interest Notes.

The Notes are [®] per cent. [Fixed Rate/Floating Rate/Zero
Coupon/Inflation  Linked Interest Notes/fCMS Linked
Interest][®] Notes due [®] [unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by UniCredit S.p.A.]

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN): [@®]
Common Code: [®]

[CUSIP: [®]]

[CINS: [®]]

C.2

Currency

Subject to compliance with all applicable laws, regulations
and directives, Notes may be issued in any currency agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer at the time of issue.

The currency of this Series of Notes is [Pounds Sterling
(£)/Euro (€)/U.S. dollars (U.S.$)/Renminbi (CNY), which is
the currency of the People's Republic of China/Other ([®])].

C5

Restrictions on
transferability

The Notes may not be transferred prior to the Issue Date.
Selling restrictions apply to offers, sales or transfers of the
Notes under the applicable laws in various jurisdictions. A
purchaser of the Notes is required to make certain agreements
and representations as a condition to purchasing the Notes.

C8

Rights attached to the Notes,
including ranking and
limitations on those rights

Notes issued under the Programme will have terms and
conditions relating to, among other matters:

Governing law

The rights of the investors in connection with the Notes and
any non-contractual obligations will be governed by English
law[, except for the right of the investors in connection with
the status of the [Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit]
[Subordinated Guarantee (in case of Subordinated Notes
issued by UniCredit Ireland)] and any non-contractual
obligations arising out thereof which shall be governed by,
and construed in accordance with, Italian law]. [The rights of
the investors and any non-contractual obligations arising out
of or in connection with the status of the Subordinated Notes
issued by UniCredit Ireland shall be governed by, and
construed in accordance with, the laws of Ireland.]

Status[ and Subordination]

[[Insert in the case of Senior Notes]The Notes issued on a
Senior basis constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated
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and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and will rank pari
passu among themselves and (save for certain obligations
required to be preferred by law) equally with all other
unsecured obligations (other than subordinated obligations, if
any) of the Issuer, from time to time outstanding.]

[Insert in the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit
S.p.A.] Early redemption may occur only at the option of
UniCredit and with the prior approval of the Bank of Italy.]

[Insert in the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit
Ireland] Notes having a stated maturity (which must be at
least five years) may be redeemed on their Maturity Date or, if
of indeterminate duration, may be redeemed where five years’
notice of redemption has been given. Otherwise Subordinated
Notes may only be redeemed with the Central Bank of
Ireland’s consent, which will only be given where the request
is made at UniCredit Ireland’s initiative and UniCredit
Ireland’s solvency is not in question.]

This Series of the Notes is issued on a [Senior/ Subordinated]
basis.

Events of default
[Insert in the case of Senior Notes] [The terms of the Senior

Notes will contain, amongst others, the following events of
default:

. default in payment of any principal or interest due in
respect of the Notes, continuing for a specified period
of time;

. non-performance or non-observance by the Issuers

[or, in the case of Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor]
of any of its other obligations under the conditions of
the Notes or the Trust Deed, in certain cases
continuing for a specified period of time;

. if either (i) any indebtedness for Borrowed Money in
excess of €35,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other
currency or currencies) of the Issuer [or (in the case
of Guaranteed Notes) the Guarantor] shall become
repayable prior to the due date for payment thereof
by reason of default by the Issuer [or, as the case may
be, the Guarantor] or shall not be repaid at maturity
as extended by any applicable grace period therefor
and, in either case, steps shall have been taken to
obtain repayment, or (ii) any guarantee given by the
Issuer [or (in the case of Guaranteed Notes) the
Guarantor] of any indebtedness for Borrowed Money
in excess of €35,000,000 (or its equivalent in any
other currency or currencies) shall not be honoured
when due and called;

. events relating to the insolvency, winding up or
cessation of business of the Issuers[, (in the case of
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Guaranteed Notes) the Guarantor];

. certain final judgments for the payment of
indebtedness remain unsatisfied for a specific period
of time; and

. (in the case of Guaranteed Notes) the Guarantee

ceases to be in full force and effect.

upon of the occurrence of the above, the Trustee, at its
discretion, may, and if so requested in writing by the holders
of at least one quarter in principal amount of the Notes then
outstanding, or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution
of the Noteholders, shall give notice to the Issuer [and, in the
case of the Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor] that each Note
is, and each Note shall thereupon immediately become, due
and repayable at its Early Redemption Amount together with
accrued interest.]

[Insert in the case of Subordinated Notes] [The terms of the
Subordinated Notes will contain, amongst others, the
following events of default:

[Insert the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit]

o UniCredit becoming subject to Liquidazione Coatta
Amministrativa as defined in Legislative Decree No.
385 of 1 September 1993 of the Republic of Italy;

[Insert the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit
Ireland]

. events relating to the insolvency or winding up of
UniCredit Ireland.

upon of the occurrence of the above, the Trustee, at its
discretion, may, and if so requested in writing by the holders
of at least one quarter in principal amount of the Notes then
outstanding, or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution
of the Noteholders, shall give notice to the Issuer and, in the
case of the Guaranteed Notes, the Guarantor that each Note is,
and each Note shall thereupon immediately become, due and
repayable at its Early Redemption Amount together with
accrued interest]

Meetings

The terms of the Notes will contain provisions for calling
meetings of holders of such Notes to consider matters
affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit
defined majorities to bind all holders, including holders who
did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and holders
who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

Taxation

All payments in respect of Notes will be made without
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deduction for or on account of withholding taxes imposed by
(@) the Republic of Italy, in the case of Notes issued by
UniCredit and Guaranteed Notes, (b) Ireland, in the case of
Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland and (c) Luxembourg, in the
case of Notes issued by UniCredit International Luxembourg.
In the event that any such deduction is made, the Issuers or, as
the case may be, the Guarantor will, save in certain limited
circumstances, be required to pay additional amounts to cover
the amounts so deducted.

Payments of any amount in respect of Notes, Receipts or
Coupons will be subject in all cases to (i) any fiscal or
other laws and regulations applicable thereto in any
jurisdiction and (ii) any withholding or deduction required
pursuant to an agreement described in Section 1471(b) of
the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the Code) or
otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474
of the Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any
official interpretations thereof, or law implementing an
intergovernmental approach thereto.

Prescription

The Notes (whether in bearer or registered form), Receipts
and Coupons will become void unless presented for payment
within a period of ten years (in the case of principal) and five
years (in the case of interest) after the date on which such
payment first becomes due.

C9

Interest/Redemption

Interest

Notes may or may not bear interest. Interest-bearing Notes
will either bear interest payable at a fixed rate or a floating
rate or calculated by reference the relevant inflation Index.

[Payments (in respect of principal and interest) in respect of
Notes denominated in Renminbi will be made in Renminbi,
except in the case where “RMB Currency Event” is specified
in the Final Terms and if by reason of a RMB Currency Event,
as determined by the relevant Issuer acting in good faith and
in a commercially reasonable manner, the relevant Issuer is
not able to pay any amount in respect of the Notes, the
relevant Issuer’s obligation to make payment in Renminbi
shall be replaced by an obligation to pay such amount in the
Relevant Currency converted using the Spot Rate.]

Interest Rate

[[Insert in the case of Fixed Rate Notes:] The Notes bear
interest [from their date of issue/from [®]] at the fixed rate of
[®]% per annum.

The yield in respect of the Notes is [ ®]%.

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of the
relevant Issue Price
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Interest will be paid [annually/semi-annually/quarterly] in
arrear on [®] in each year. The first interest payment will be
made on [@]]

[[Insert in the case of Floating Rate Notes:][The Notes bear
interest [from their date of issue/from [@®]] at floating rates
calculated by reference to [e]-Euribor] [[e]-Libor] [insert
CMS rate] [for the relevant interest period[s][.][in the case of
a margin insert:][, plus][, minus] the margin of [®]% per
annum][.] [In the case of a factor insert:], multiplied with a
factor of [Insert factor]] for the relevant interest period.
Interest will be paid [annually/semi-annually/quarterly] in
arrear on [®], and [®] in each year, subject to adjustment for
non-business days. The first interest payment will be made on

[®]]

[[Insert in the case of Inflation Linked Interest Notes:]The
Notes bear interest [from their date of issue/from [®]]. The
interest rate is dependent on the performance of the
[HICP][GRCP2000] [FRCPxTOB][®] [for each interest
period][.]J[[In the case of a margin, insert:][, plus][, minus] the
margin of [insert percentage]% for the relevant interest
period][.] [[In the case of a factor insert:], multiplied with a
factor of [insert factor] for the relevant interest period. Interest
will be paid [annually/semi-annually/quarterly] in arrear on
[®], and [®] in each year, subject to adjustment for non-
business days. The first interest payment will be made on [@®]]

[In the case of a minimum and/or maximum rate of interest,
insert:]The amount of interest payable on the Notes is subject
to [insert the minimum/maximum rate of interest].]

[The Notes do not bear any interest [and will be offered and
sold at a discount to their nominal amount].]

Underlyings

[Not Applicable. Interest on the Notes is not based on an
underlying.]

[Insert in the case of CMS Linked Notes:][insert CMS Rate(s)]
[Insert in the case of Zero Coupon Notes:]Not Applicable.]
[Insert in the case of Inflation Linked Interest Notes:]The
value of the Notes may be affected by the [performance of
[insert the relevant inflation index].

[The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of
Inflation Linked Interest Notes, for each interest period, shall
be determined in accordance with the following formula:

Rate of Interest = [[Index Factor]*YoY Inflation] + Margin

Index Factor has the meaning given to it in the applicable
Final Terms, provided that if Index Factor is specified as "Not
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Applicable", the Index Factor shall be deemed to be equal to
one;

Inflation Index has the meaning given to it in the applicable
Final Terms;

Inflation Index (t) means the value of the Inflation Index for
the Reference Month in the calendar year in which the
relevant Specified Interest Payment Date (as specified in the
Final Terms) falls;

Inflation Index (t-1) means the value of the Inflation Index
for the Reference Month in the calendar year preceding the
calendar year in which the relevant Specified Interest Payment
Date (as specified in the Final Terms) falls;

Margin has the meaning given to it in the applicable Final
Terms;

Reference Month has the meaning given to it in the
applicable Final Terms; and

YoY Inflation (t) means in respect of the Specified Interest
Payment Date (as specified in the Final Terms) falling in
month (t), the value calculated in accordance with the
following formula:

{ Inflationindex(t) 1

Inflationindex(t —1)

Redemption

The terms under which Notes may be redeemed (including the
maturity date and the price at which they will be redeemed on
the maturity date as well as any provisions relating to early
redemption) will be agreed between the Issuer and the
relevant Dealer at the time of issue of the relevant Notes.

[Insert in the case of Inflation Linked Interest Notes:]
[Inflation Linked Interest Notes may be redeemed before their
stated maturity at the option of the relevant Issuer, if the Index
ceases to be published or any changes are made to it which, in
the opinion of an Expert, constitute a fundamental change in
the rules governing the Index and the change would, in the
opinion of the Expert, be detrimental to the interests of the
Noteholders.]

Subject to any purchase and cancellation or early redemption,
the Notes will be redeemed on [®] at par.

The Notes may be redeemed early [for tax reasons] [or] [for
regulatory reasons] [or][at the option of the Issuer] [or] [at the
option of the Noteholders]] at [specify the early redemption
price and any maximum or minimum redemption amounts].
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Repayment Procedure

[Payments of principal in respect of definitive Bearer Notes
will (subject as provided below) be made only against
presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of
any sum due, endorsement) of definitive Bearer Notes, and
payments of interest in respect of definitive Bearer Notes will
(subject as provided below) be made as aforesaid only against
presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of
any sum due, endorsement) of Coupons, in each case at the
specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States
(which expression, as used herein, means the United States of
America (including the States and the District of Columbia, its
territories, its possessions and other areas subject to its
jurisdiction)).]

[Payments of principal and interest (if any) in respect of Notes
represented by any Global Note in bearer form will be made
in the manner specified above in relation to definitive Bearer
Notes and otherwise in the manner specified in the relevant
Global Note against presentation or surrender, as the case may
be, of such Global Note at the specified office of the Principal
Paying Agent. A record of each payment made against
presentation or surrender of any Global Note in bearer form,
distinguishing between any payment of principal and any
payment of interest, will be made on such Global Note by the
Principal Paying Agent and such record shall be prima facie
evidence that the payment in question has been made.]

[Payments of principal in respect of each Registered Note
(whether or not in global form) will be made against
presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of
any sum due, endorsement) of the Registered Note at the
specified office of the Registrar or any of the Paying Agents.

Payments of interest and principal in respect of each
Registered Note (whether or not in global form) will be made
by a cheque in the Specified Currency drawn on a Designated
Bank and mailed by uninsured mail on the business day in the
city where the specified office of the Registrar is located
immediately preceding the relevant due date to the holder (or
the first named of joint holders) of the Registered Note
appearing in the Register.]

Representative of holders

The Issuer has appointed Citicorp Trustee Company Limited
(the Trustee) to act as trustee for the holders of Notes. The
trustee may, without the consent of any holders and without
regard to the interests of particular holders, agree to (i) any
modification of, or to the waiver or authorisation of any
breach or proposed breach of, any of the provisions of the
Notes or (ii) determine without the consent of any holders that
an event of default or potential event of default shall not be
treated as such or (iii) the substitution of another company as
principal debtor under the Notes in place of the Issuer.
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Please also refer to Element C.8.

C.10 Derivative component in the | [Interest payments under the Floating Rate Notes depend on

interest payments the development of the [insert [®]-Euribor] [insert [®]-

Libor] [insert CMS rate] for the relevant interest period.]
[Interest payments under the Inflation Linked Interest Notes
are linked to the performance of the
[HICP][GRCP2000][FRCPXTOB][®].]
[Not applicable — There is no derivative component in the
interest payments.]
Please also refer to Element C.9.

Cc.11 Listing and Admission to | Notes issued under the Programme may be listed and admitted

trading

to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange or such other
stock exchange or regulated market specified below, or may
be issued on an unlisted basis.

[Application [has been][is expected to be] made by the Issuer
(or on its behalf) for the Notes to be admitted to trading on the
regulated market of the [Luxembourg Stock Exchange.] [The
Notes are not intended to be admitted to trading on any
market.]
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D.2 Key risks regarding the | In purchasing Notes, investors assume the risk that the Issuers
Issuers and the Guarantor and the Guarantor may become insolvent or otherwise be

unable to make all payments due in respect of the Notes.
There is a wide range of factors which individually or together
could result in the Issuers and the Guarantor becoming unable
to make all payments due in respect of the Notes. It is not
possible to identify all such factors or to determine which
factors are most likely to occur, as the Issuers and the
Guarantor may not be aware of all relevant factors and certain
factors which they currently deem not to be material may
become material as a result of the occurrence of events
outside the Issuers' and the Guarantor's control. The Issuers
and the Guarantor have identified a number of factors which
could materially adversely affect their businesses and ability
to make payments due under the Notes. These factors

include:

. risks concerning liquidity which could affect the
Group’s ability to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due;

. the UniCredit Group’s results of operations, business

and financial condition have been and will continue
to be affected by adverse macroeconomic and market
conditions;

. the European sovereign debt crisis has adversely
affected, and may continue to, adversely affect the
Group’s results of operations, business and financial

condition;
. the Group has exposure to European sovereign debt;
o financial regulators have requested that UniCredit

Group companies reduce their credit exposure to
other UniCredit Group entities, particularly their
upstream exposure to UniCredit, which could have a
material adverse effect on the way in which the
UniCredit Group funds its operations and provides
liquidity to members of the Group;

. systemic risk could adversely affect the Group’s
business;
. risks connected to an economic slowdown and

volatility of the financial markets — credit risk;

o the economic conditions of the geographic markets in
which the Group operates have had, and may
continue to have, adverse effects on the Group’s
results of operations, business and financial
condition;

. the fair values of the Group’s structured credit

39




Summary of the Programme

Element

Title

products have been and may continue to be
significantly reduced;

. deteriorating asset valuations resulting from poor
market conditions may adversely affect the Group’s
future earnings;

. intense competition, especially in the Italian market,
where the Group has a substantial part of its
businesses, could have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s results of operations and financial
condition;

. non-traditional banking activities expose the Group
to additional credit risks;

. unidentified or unanticipated risks, by their nature,
might not be captured in the current Group's risk
management policies;

. fluctuations in interest and exchange rates may affect
the Group’s results;

. changes in the Italian and European regulatory
framework could adversely affect the Group’s
business;

. the Group may be subject to increased capital
requirements;

. the Group may be subject to the provisions of the
Recovery and Resolution Directive, once finalised
and implemented, in the future;

. Operational and IT risks are inherent in the Group’s
business;

o any rating downgrades of UniCredit or other entities
of the Group would increase the re-financing costs of
the Group and may limit its access to the financial
markets and other sources of liquidity;

. as at the date of this Base Prospectus, there are
certain legal proceedings pending against UniCredit
and other companies belonging to the Group;

. the Group is involved in pending tax proceedings;
and

. the Group may be unable to fully implement its
2010-2015 Strategic Plan.

D.3

Key
Notes

risks

regarding

the

There are also risks associated with the Notes. These include
a range of market risks (including that there may be no or only
a limited secondary market in the Notes, that the value of an
investor's investment may be adversely affected by exchange
rate movements where the Notes are not denominated in the
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investor's own currency, that any credit rating assigned to the
Notes may not adequately reflect all the risks associated with
an investment in the Notes and that changes in interest rates
will affect the value of Notes which bear interest at a fixed
rate), the fact that the conditions of the Notes may be
modified without the consent of the holder in certain
circumstances, that the holder may not receive payment of the
full amounts due in respect of the Notes as a result of amounts
being withheld by the Issuer in order to comply with
applicable law and that investors are exposed to the risk of
changes in law or regulation affecting the value of Notes held
by them.

Key risks regarding to certain types of Notes

Notes subject to optional redemption by the relevant Issuer:
the relevant Issuer may be expected to redeem Notes when its
cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate on the Notes.
At those times, an investor generally would not be able to
reinvest the redemption proceeds at an effective interest rate
as high as the interest rate on the Notes being redeemed and
may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate.
Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light
of other investments available at that time.

If the relevant Issuer has the right to convert the interest rate
on any Notes from a fixed rate to a floating rate, or vice versa,
this may affect the secondary market and the market value of
the Notes concerned.

Notes which are issued at a substantial discount or premium
may experience price volatility in response to changes in
market interest rates.

There are certain risks associated with investing in
Subordinated Notes. These risks include:

. an investor in Subordinated Notes assumes an
enhanced risk of loss in the event of the relevant
Issuer's insolvency as UniCredit and UniCredit
Ireland obligations under Subordinated Notes will be
unsecured and subordinated and will rank junior in
priority of payment to Senior Liabilities;

. under the Subordinated Guarantee, in the event of
winding-up, dissolution, liquidation or bankruptcy
(including, inter alia, Liquidazione coatta
amministrativa, as described in Articles 80 to 94 of
the Italian Banking Act) of UniCredit, the
Subordinated Guarantee will rank in right of payment
after unsubordinated unsecured creditors (including
depositors) of UniCredit;

. the regulatory classification of the Notes - although it
is the Issuers’ expectation that the Notes qualify as
“Lower Tier II capital” or, as appropriate, "Tier 2
capital” there can be no representation that this is or
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will remain the case during the life of the Notes or
that the Notes will be, if appropriate, grandfathered
under the implementation of future EU capital
requirement regulations; and

. loss absorption - investors should be aware that
Subordinated Notes may be subject to a write-down
or conversion into common shares at the point of
non-viability should the Bank of Italy, the Central
Bank of Ireland or other authority or authorities
having oversight of the relevant Issuer at the relevant
time (the Relevant Authority) be given the power to
do so, whether as a result of the implementation of
RRD or otherwise. The Subordinated Notes issued
under the Programme include provisions setting out
that the obligations of the relevant Issuer under
Subordinated Notes are subject to the powers of the
Relevant Authority pursuant to applicable law and/or
regulation in force from time to time.

There are certain risks associated with investing in Inflation
Linked Interest Notes. These risks include:

. potential investors in any such Notes should be
aware that depending on the terms of the Inflation
Linked Interest Notes they may receive no interest or
a limited amount of interest;

. Inflation Linked Interest Notes may be subject to
certain disruption provisions or extraordinary event
provisions and If the Calculation Agent determines
that any such event has occurred this may delay
valuations under and/or settlements in respect of the
Notes and consequently adversely affect the value of
the Notes;

o the market price of Inflation Linked Interest Notes
may be volatile and may depend on the time
remaining to the maturity date or expiration and the
volatility of the level of the inflation or consumer
price index or indices; and

. the level of the inflation or consumer price index or
indices may be affected by the economic, financial
and political events in one or more jurisdictions or
areas.

There are certain risks associated with investing in Renminbi
Notes. These risks include:

o the Renminbi is not freely convertible and there are
significant restrictions on the remittance of the
Renminbi into and outside the PRC which may affect
the liquidity of the Notes;

. there is only limited availability of Renminbi outside
the PRC, which may affect the liquidity of the Notes
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and the relevant Issuer's ability to source Renminbi
outside the PRC to service the Renminbi Notes;

. an investment in Renminbi Notes is subject to
exchange rate risk and interest rate risk;

. an investment in Renminbi Notes is subject to
interest rate risk;

. an investment in Renminbi Notes is subject to risk of
change in the regulatory regime governing the
issuance of Renminbi Notes;

. payments in respect of the Renminbi Notes will only
be made to investors in the manner specified in the
Renminbi Notes.

The value of Fixed Rate Notes may be adversely affected by
movements in market interest rates.

Credit ratings assigned to the Issuers, the Guarantor or any
Notes may not reflect all the risks associated with an
investment in those Notes.

Section E — Offer

Element

Title

E.2b

Use of proceeds

The net proceeds from each issue of Notes will be applied by
the Issuers for their general corporate purposes, which include
making a profit. If in respect of any particular issue, there is a
particular identified use of proceeds, this will be stated in the
applicable Final Terms.

[The net proceeds from the issue of Notes will be applied by
the Issuer for its general corporate purposes, which include
making a profit [and[®]].

E.3

Terms and conditions of the
offer

The Notes may be offered to the Public as a public offer in one
or more specified Public Offer Jurisdictions.

The terms and conditions of each offer of Notes will be
determined by agreement between the Issuer and the relevant
Dealers at the time of issue. An Investor intending to acquire
or acquiring any Notes in a Public Offer from an Authorised
Offeror will do so, and offers and sales of such Notes to an
Investor by such Authorised Offeror will be made, in
accordance with any terms and other arrangements in place
between such Authorised Offeror and such Investor including
as to price, allocations and settlement arrangements.

[Not Applicable — The Notes are not being offered to the
public as part of a Non-Exempt Offer]

[This issue of Notes is being offered in a Non-Exempt Offer in

[e]].
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The issue price of the Notes is [®] per cent. of their nominal
amount.

[Summarise any public offer, copying the language from
paragraphs [8viii] and [9] of Part B of the Final Terms.]]

E.4

Interest of natural and legal
persons involved in the
issue/offer

The relevant Dealer may be paid fees in relation to any issue
of Notes under the Programme. Any such Dealer and its
affiliates may also have engaged, and may in the future
engage, in investment banking and/or commercial banking
transactions with, and may perform other services for, the
Issuers and the Guarantor and their affiliates in the ordinary
course of business.

[Other than as mentioned above,[ and save for [®],] so far as
the Issuers are aware, no person involved in the issue of the
Notes has an interest material to the offer, including
conflicting interests.]

E.7

Expenses charged to the
investor by the Issuer or an
Offeror

[Offer price: Issue Price.] [Authorised Offerors (as defined
above) may, however, charge expenses to investors.]

[Selling Concession: [Insert selling concession.]]
[Other Commissions: [Insert other commissions.]]

[Not applicable. No such expenses will be charged to the
investor by the Issuer or a dealer.]
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Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its
obligations under Notes issued under the Programme. All of these factors are contingencies which may or
may not occur and neither the Issuers nor the Guarantor is in a position to express a view on the likelihood
of any such contingency occurring.

In addition, factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with Notes
issued under the Programme are also described below.

Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor believes that the factors described below represent the material
risks inherent in investing in Notes issued under the Programme, but the inability of the Issuers or the
Guarantor to pay interest, principal or other amounts on or in connection with any Notes may occur for
other reasons. The Issuers and the Guarantor have identified in this Base Prospectus a number of factors which
could materially adversely affect their businesses and ability to make payments due under the Notes.
Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Base Prospectus
and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

The risk factors relating to the Group are deemed to cover the Issuers and the Guarantor.

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT THE RELEVANT ISSUER’S ABILITY TO FULFIL ITS
OBLIGATIONS UNDER NOTES ISSUED UNDER THE PROGRAMME - FACTORS THAT
MAY AFFECT THE GUARANTOR’S ABILITY TO FULFIL ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE
GUARANTEE

Risks concerning liquidity which could affect the Group’s ability to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due

The UniCredit Group (as defined in the section headed “Description of UniCredit and the UniCredit
Group”) is subject to liquidity risk, which can be split between funding liquidity risk and market liquidity
risk. Funding liquidity risk is the risk that the bank will be unable to meet its obligations, including funding
commitments and deposit withdrawals, as they fall due. In this context, the procurement of liquidity for
business activities and the ability to access long-term financing are necessary to enable the Group to meet
its payment obligations in cash, scheduled or unscheduled, and avoid prejudice to its current activities and
financial situation.

The global financial crisis and resulting financial instability have significantly reduced the levels and
availability of liquidity provided by private placements which led to a significant intervention of
government guaranteed bonds that have been pledged with the European Central Bank to access open
market operations.

The perception of banking industry riskiness remained high even though reduced interbank lending implies
a lower funding liquidity risk. It should be noted that market speculative behaviours, in particular towards
peripheral countries, has been successfully dealt with by government intervention. Should this government
support vanish, the Group would be forced to rely on higher recourse to the wholesale market, which
seems to be feasible in case of a normalisation of the macroeconomic conditions. Also retail customers are
expected to benefit from a more stable liquidity context. Indeed retail customers are interwoven with the
banking system, since they invest in network bonds as well as place the deposits and other funding sources
which grew significantly in the last period.

In this context, the Group has announced, as part of its Strategic Plan (as defined below), its intention to
decrease the proportion of wholesale funding in favour of retail funding. However, reduced customer
confidence could result in the Group’s inability to access retail funding and to increased deposit outflows,
which in turn could further limit the Group’s ability to fund its operations and meet its minimum liquidity
requirements. This strategy is in line with the expected requirements of the Basel Committee which favours
banks to leverage on more stable funding sources such as core-retail.
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UniCredit also borrows from the European Central Bank (the ECB). Thus, any adverse change to the
ECB’s lending policy, including changes to collateral requirements (particularly those with retroactive
effect), or any changes to the funding requirements set by the ECB, could significantly affect the Group’s
results of operations, business and financial condition.

In terms of market liquidity, the effects of the immediate liquidity of the assets held as cash reserves should
be considered. Sudden changes in market conditions (interest rates and creditworthiness in particular) can
impact significantly on the time to sell even for high quality assets such as government bonds. “Size
effects” play an important role for the Group as it is likely that a liquidation of significant amounts of
assets, even if high quality ones, would affect the overall market conditions. Additionally possible ratings
downgradings and the resulting effects on the securities value as well as the consequent difficulty in
ensuring immediate liquidity in unfavourable economic conditions could also affect the Group's ability to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

Finally, it must be noted that the Group, in the management of short-term liquidity, adopted metrics that
preserve its stability over a period of three months, while maintaining adequate liquidity reserves in terms
of eligible and marketable securities. As defined in the Strategic Plan, the Group expects to achieve the
objectives of compliance with the liquidity indicators that are going to be defined by Basel 3 regulations
(i.e. Liquidity Coverage Ratio and Net Stable Funding Ratio) by 2015. The observation period related to
the application of the rules, was delayed by one year, from 2013 to 2014, subject to the entry into force of
the first part of the legislation in 2015, with a gradual phase-in which will be completed in 2019 (when
LCR requirement will be 100%).

The UniCredit Group’s results of operations, business and financial condition have been and will
continue to be affected by adverse macroeconomic and market conditions

The Group’s performance is influenced by the financial markets conditions and the macroeconomic
situations of the countries in which it operates. In recent years, the global financial system has been subject
to considerable turmoil and uncertainty and, as at the date of this Base Prospectus, the short and medium
term outlook for the global economy remains uncertain.

The recent repricing of sovereign risk and the restructuring of Greek debt have contributed to keep
volatility and uncertainty high, weighing negatively on the global financial system.

Such prolonged deterioration has led to significant distortions in global financial markets, including
critically low levels of liquidity and availability of financing (resulting in high funding costs), historically
high credit spreads, volatile capital markets and declining asset prices. In addition, the international
banking system has been imperilled with unprecedented issues, which have led to sharp reductions in and,
in some cases, the suspension of, interbank lending.

The businesses of many leading commercial banks, investment banks and insurance companies have been
subject to significant pressure. Some of these institutions have failed or have become insolvent, have been
integrated with other financial institutions, or have required capital injections from governmental
authorities and supranational organisations. Additional adverse effects of the global financial crisis include
the deterioration of loan portfolios, decreasing consumer confidence towards financial institutions, high
levels of unemployment and a general decline in the demand for financial services.

Furthermore, the decline in economic activity in the countries in which the Group operates has had, and
could continue to have, adverse effects on its operations, financing costs, share price and the value of its
assets and has led to, and could continue to lead to, additional costs relating to devaluations and decreases
in asset value.

All of the above could be further impacted by policy measures affecting the currencies of countries where
the Group operates as well as by political instability in such countries and/or the inability of the
governments thereof to take prompt action to confront the financial crisis.

The European sovereign debt crisis has adversely affected, and may continue to, adversely affect the
Group’s results of operations, business and financial condition
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The sovereign debt crisis has given rise to concerns about the long-term sustainability of the European
Monetary Union. In the last years, Greece, Ireland and Portugal have requested financial aid from
European authorities and from the International Monetary Fund (IMF) and have started an ambitious
programme of reforms. Cyprus has also requested financial help. In March 2012, Greece has restructured
its debt after inserting retroactively the so-called “Collective Action Clauses” (CAC). The decision
represented a credit event and has triggered credit default swaps (CDS). While risk that debt restructuring
may be needed also in other countries has significantly diminished after the ECB has launched the
“Outright Monetary Transactions” (OMT)), it has not completely faded.

Rising market tensions might affect negatively the funding costs and economic outlook of some euro
member countries, like in the case of the three bailed out countries (Greece, Ireland and Portugal). This,
together with the risk that some countries (even if not very significant in terms of gross domestic product
(GDP)) might leave the euro area, would have a material and negative impact on the Group and/or on the
Group’s clients, with negative implications for the Group’s business, results and financial position.

Lingering market tensions might affect negatively the global economy and hamper the recovery of the euro
area. Moreover, the tightening fiscal policy by some countries might weigh on households disposable
income and on corporate profits with negative implications for the Group’s business, results and financial
position. This trend will likely continue in the coming quarters.

Any further deterioration of the Italian economy would have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
business, in light of the Group’s significant exposure to the Italian economy. In addition, if any of the
countries in which the Group operates witnessed a significant deterioration in economic activity, the
Group’s results of operations, business and financial condition would be materially and adversely affected.

The ECB’s unconventional policy (including a security market programme and provision of liquidity via
"Longer Term Refinancing Operations” (LTRO) with full allotment) has contributed to ease tensions,
limiting the refinancing risk for the banking system and leading to a tightening of credit spreads. The
possibility that the ECB could halt or reconsider the current set up of unconventional measures would
impact negatively the value of sovereign debt instruments. This would have a materially negative impact
on the Group’s business, results and financial position.

Despite the several initiatives of supranational organisations to deal with the heightened sovereign debt
crisis in the euro area, global markets remain characterised by high uncertainty and volatility. Any further
acceleration of the European sovereign debt crisis would likely significantly affect, among other things, the
recoverability and quality of the sovereign debt securities held by the Group as well as the financial
resources of the Group’s clients holding similar securities. The occurrence of any of the above events could
have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, results and financial condition.

The Group has exposure to European sovereign debt

With reference to the Group’s sovereign exposures’, the book value of sovereign debt securities as at 31
December 2012 amounted to €93,766 million, of which over 90 per cent. concentrated in eight countries of
which: Italy, with €40,797 million, represents about 44 per cent. of the total; Germany €20,604 million (22
per cent.); Poland €8,667 million (9 per cent.); Austria €5,710 million (6 per cent.); Turkey2 €3,504 million
(4 per cent.); Czech Republic €2,591 million (3 per cent.); Spain €1,416 million (2 per cent.); Hungary
€1,397 million (1 per cent.). The remaining 10 per cent. of the total of sovereign debt securities, amounting
to €9,080 million with reference to the book values as at 31 December 2012, is divided into 58 countries,
among which the United States (€372 million), Ireland (€53 million), and Portugal (€29 million).

These exposures were not subject to impairment at 31 December 2012. With reference to these exposures,
please note that on 21 February 2012, the Greek Republic and the public sector (EU Member States and the
IMF) reached a mutual agreement conditional on the participation of private investors in the new bailout
plan, which besides calling for further financial support from the public sector provided for an offer to
swap old Greek bonds with new financial instruments.

Sovereign exposures are bonds issued by and loans given to central and local governments and governmental bodies. Asset
backed securities are not included.

Amounts recognised using proportionate consolidation with reference to the ownership percentage for exposures held by joint
ventures.
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More specifically, these instruments consist of (i) European Financial Stability Facility (EFSF) notes with
a face value of 15 per cent. of the exchanged bonds, (ii) new Greek government bonds with maturities
between 10 and 30 years and a face value of 31.5 per cent of the exchanged bonds and (iii) GDP (Gross
Domestic Product) Warrants.

From 24 February 2012 to 8 March 2012, the Greek Republic carried out the bond swap and subsequently
enforced the Collective Action Clauses on all holders of bonds governed by Greek law who had rejected
the voluntary deal.

In the fourth quarter 2012, the Greek Republic also finalized a takeover bid related to the new financial
instruments.

The change in the market prices of the securities initially held, up to the participation in the bond swap
offer, and the subsequent change in the new securities up to the date of sale of the whole exposure entailed
an overall loss in the consolidated Income Statement as at December 31, 2012 of € 10.5 million.

In addition to the exposures to sovereign debt securities, loans® given to central and local governments and
governmental bodies must be taken into account. The total amount as at 31 December 2012 of loans given
to countries towards which the overall exposure exceeds €150 million amounted to €28,314 million,
representing more than 97 per cent. of the total: Germany €8,101million (of which €950 million
represented by financial assets held-for-trading or at fair value through P&L); Italy €8,041; Austria €6,171
million (of which €319 million represented by financial assets held-for-trading or at fair value through
P&L); Croatia €2,382 million; Poland €1,797 million, and others.

Lastly, it should be noted that derivatives are traded within the ISDA master agreement and accompanied
by Credit Support Annexes, which provide for the use of cash collaterals or low-risk eligible securities.

Financial regulators have requested that UniCredit Group companies reduce their credit exposure to
other UniCredit Group entities, particularly their upstream exposure to UniCredit, which could have a
material adverse effect on the way in which the UniCredit Group funds its operations and provides
liquidity to members of the Group

In common with other multi-jurisdictional banking groups, the UniCredit Group companies have
historically provided funding to other members of the Group, resulting in the transfer of excess cash
liquidity from one member of the Group to another. In the past, one of the largest such outstanding
exposures was from UniCredit Bank AG (UCB AG) to UniCredit, although UCB AG also has exposures
to other UniCredit Group members. In addition, as the UniCredit Group’s investment banking activities are
centralised within UCB AG, significant non-cash intra-group credit exposures exist on a day-to-day basis
between UCB AG and other Group members resulting from, among other things, UCB AG acting as an
intermediary between such Group members, on the one hand, and external counterparties, on the other
hand, in connection with various financial risk hedging transactions. Due to the nature of this business, the
intra-group credit exposure of UCB AG is volatile and can change significantly on a daily basis.

As a result of the on-going global financial crisis, banking regulators in many of the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates have sought, and continue to seek, to reduce the exposure of banks operating within
their jurisdictions to other affiliated banks operating in jurisdictions over which they have no legal and/or
regulatory control. This could have a material adverse effect on the way in which the UniCredit Group
funds its operations and provides liquidity to members of the Group. Accordingly, the Group begun an
active improvement of regional self-sufficiency aimed mainly at improveming the funding gap.

Furthermore, under applicable German regulations, credit institutions may be exempted from including
intra-group exposures in their overall limit for large exposures if certain conditions are met. UCB AG
relies on this exemption with respect to the intra-group exposures described above. If such exemption is no
longer available due to changes in applicable regulations or otherwise, UCB AG could have to either
reduce or balance its risk-weighted assets by allocating additional qualifying regulatory capital to remain in
compliance with its statutory minimum solvency ratio, as well as the higher ratio it has agreed with the
Bundesanstalt fur Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht (the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority,
BaFin) to maintain.

Excluding tax items.
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In Germany, as a result of the level of UCB AG’s intra-group cash and non-cash exposures and consequent
discussions between UniCredit, UCB AG and BaFin, UniCredit and UCB AG have undertaken to reduce
UCB AG’s net intra-group exposure to the UniCredit Group, including through the use of collateral, based
on on-going discussions with BaFin and the Bank of Italy.

The exposure of UCB AG towards UniCredit Group is expected to reduce further as a consequence of the
maturing intercompany financing deals that will not be renewed fully. The adoption of a self-sufficiency
principle by Group sub-holdings led to the adoption of strict policy in terms of funding gap control and
reduction, not only in Italy but in all subsidiaries.

Systemic risk could adversely affect the Group’s business

In light of the relatively reduced liquidity and relatively high funding costs that have prevailed in the
interbank lending market since the onset of the global financial crisis, the Group is exposed to the risk that
the financial viability (actual or perceived) of the financial institutions with whom, and the countries in
which, it carries out its activities could deteriorate. The Group routinely executes a high volume of
transactions with numerous counterparties in the financial services industry, including brokers and dealers,
commercial banks, investment banks and other institutional clients. Financial services institutions that
transact with each other are interrelated as a result of trading, investment, clearing, counterparty and other
relationships; concerns about the stability of anyone or more of these institutions or the countries in which
they operate could lead to significant constraints on the availability of liquidity (including completely
frozen interbank funding markets), losses or other institutional failures. In addition, should one of the
counterparties of a certain financial institution suffer losses due to the actual or perceived threat of default
of a sovereign country, that counterparty may be unable to satisfy its obligations to the above financial
institution. The above risks, commonly referred to as “systemic” risks, could adversely affect financial
intermediaries, such as clearing agencies, clearing houses, banks, securities firms and exchanges, with
whom the Group interacts on a daily basis, which in turn could adversely affect the Group’s ability to raise
new funding. The occurrence of any “systemic” risks could adversely affect the Group’s results of
operations, business and financial condition.

In addition, in many of the countries in which the Group operates, it is required to participate in deposit
guarantee and investor protection schemes. As a result, the insolvency of one or more of the participants in
these schemes could result in UniCredit, or one of its banking subsidiaries’, obligation to settle guaranteed
customer claims against such insolvent participant(s) or to pay increased or additional contributions, which
could materially adversely affect the Group’s results of operations, business and financial condition.

Risks connected to an economic slowdown and volatility of the financial markets — credit risk

The Group is exposed to potential losses linked to credit risk, in connection with the granting of financing,
commitments, credit letters, derivative instruments, currency transactions and other kinds of transactions.
Credit risk typically resides in the assets of the banking book (loans and bonds held to maturity). The risk
for banks in issuing loans is that the borrowers will not repay the amount that is owed in the time and with
the terms specified by the loan agreement. If enough customers default on their loans, the Group can find
itself in a serious financial predicament.

The loss could be complete or partial and can arise in a number of circumstances, e.g.: failure to make a
payment due by consumer or business on a mortgage loan, credit card, line of credit or other loans; with
reference to the group’s sovereign exposure, the loss can occur when a Government becomes unwilling or
unable to meet its loan obligations.

Any deterioration of the borrowers’ creditworthiness and financial standing, or of the performance of loans
and other receivables, as well as any wrong assessment of creditworthiness or country risks may have an
important adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations, since these
assets must be written off (in whole or in part).

Credit risk is present in both the traditional on-balance sheet uncollateralised and collateralised lending
business and off-balance sheet business, for example when extending credit by means of a bank guarantee.

Credit risks have historically been aggravated during periods of economic downturn or stagnation, which
are typically characterised by higher rates of insolvencies and defaults.
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The banking and financial markets in which the Group operates have been hit by an unprecedented
economic crisis, since 2007, which has seriously affected the economic growth, the fiscal and monetary
policies, the market liquidity, the capital market’s expectations and subsequently the consumers’ behaviour
in terms of investments and savings. The demand for financial products in traditional lending operations
decreased and could further lessen if the economic downturn continues in the next months. This situation
has impacted negatively the solvency of mortgage debtors and, in general, all Group’s borrowers and their
overall financial condition. As a consequence of that situation, the level of insolvent clients compared to
outstanding loans and obligations has increased, impacting on the levels of credit risk.

As part of their respective businesses, entities of the Group operate in countries (emerging markets) with a
generally higher country risk profile than in their respective home markets, often directly holding assets
located in these countries. However, the financial crisis and economic recession, and policymakers’
responses to these events, have raised sovereign risk concerns also in a number of advanced economies.
This has increased the cost and reduced the stability of funding for banks. It has also meant that decisions
about maturity of Government debt have become important to the dynamics of systemic financial distress.

The Group’s future earnings could also be adversely affected by depressed asset evaluations resulting from
a deterioration of market conditions in any of the markets in which the Group companies operate. As a
result, volumes, revenues and net profits in banking and financial services business could be significantly
volatile over time.

The Group monitors credit quality, manages specific risk of each counterpart and assesses the overall risk
of the respective loan portfolios, and it will continue to do so. However, the market volatility and the
prolonged economic slowdown can negatively affect the Group risk management ability to keep the
Group’s exposure to credit risk at acceptable levels.

In addition, protracted or steep declines in the stock or bond markets in Italy and elsewhere may have an
adverse impact on the Group’s investment banking, securities trading and brokerage activities, the Group’s
asset management and private banking services, as well as the Group’s investments and sales of products
linked to financial assets performance.

Structured Credit Products (Originator, Sponsor and Investor activities)

The Group acts as originator, sponsor and investor with respect to structured credit products (SCPs). The
Group monitors the fair value and economic value of its portfolio of SCPs. The disposal of these financial
products at prices below book value and, with respect to the Group’s banking portfolio, the write downs
triggered by declines, if any, in economic or market value below book value, could result in a material
adverse effect on the Group’s results of operations, business and financial condition; this effect would be
more severe the higher the difference between the book value and the fair value.

Securitisations originated by the UniCredit Group

The UniCredit Group acts as originator with respect to loan portfolios of special purpose vehicles (SPVs),
including traditional securitisation transactions where the loan portfolio is actually transferred to the
vehicle, as well as synthetic securitisation transactions where the underlying credit risk is hedged in full or
in part through credit default swaps and/or financial guarantees.

As at 31 December 2012, the level of cash exposure deriving from the Group’s securitisations totalled €7.5
billion and was as follows:

. exposure from securitisations of derecognized assets: €0.9 billion;
. exposure from securitisations of assets not derecognized: €3.1 billion; and
. exposure from synthetic securitisations: €3.5 billion.

In terms of seniority, these exposures can be reported as follows:

. €1.4 billion of junior notes;
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o €1.6 billion of mezzanine notes; and
° €4.5 billion of senior notes.

In addition to the above exposures, the Group also has an asset exposure of €22.7 billion to so-called self-
securitisations, as well as €18 billion related to Covered Bond Programmes (OBG - Obbligazioni Bancarie
Garantite) retained in the Group.

Conduits

The UniCredit Group acts as sponsor of Asset Backed Commercial Paper Conduits of Multi Seller
Customer Conduits. As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s cash exposure to conduits totalled €0.8 billion
and its exposure to credit lines totalled €1.4 billion.

In connection with its role as sponsor, the Group selects the asset portfolios acquired by the conduits, and
manages and provides collateral in the form of a unique specific line granted to each vehicle of
subordinated level to ensure the timely reimbursement of the securities issued by such conduits.

Since the Group manages the conduits and benefits from their performance, the conduits are fully
consolidated. As a result, the Group bears the main risk with respect to such conduit operations.

Other structured credit products in which the Group acts as investor

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s total net exposure to SCPs was €6.1 billion. The Group’s portfolio
of SCPs was limited to 0.73 per cent. of the total portfolio of financial assets as at 31 December 2012.

In addition, a portion of the Group’s exposure t0 SCPs was reclassified in October 2008, reflecting certain
changes to accounting policies, as the SCPs were no longer held for trading due to reduced liquidity and
significant volatility in the financial markets. As at 31 December 2012, the book value of the Group’s
reclassified asset backed securities was €3.7 billion, while their fair value was €3.2 billion.

Deteriorating asset valuations resulting from poor market conditions may adversely affect the Group’s
future earnings

The global economic slowdown and economic crisis in certain countries of the Euro-zone have exerted,
and may continue to exert, downward pressure on asset prices, which has an impact on the credit quality of
the Group’s customers and counterparties. This may cause the Group to incur losses or to experience
reductions in business activity, increases in non-performing loans, decreased asset values, additional write-
downs and impairment charges, resulting in significant changes in the fair values of the Group’s exposures.

A substantial portion of the Group’s loans to corporate and individual borrowers are secured by collateral
such as real estate, securities, ships, term deposits and receivables. In particular, as mortgage loans are one
of the Group’s principal assets, it is highly exposed to developments in real estate markets.

Continued decline in the general economies of the countries in which the Group operates, or a general
deterioration of economic conditions in any industry in which its borrowers operate or in other markets in
which the collateral is located, may result in decreases in the value of collateral securing the loans to levels
below the outstanding principal balance on such loans. A decline in the value of collateral securing these
loans or the inability to obtain additional collateral may require the Group to reclassify the relevant loans,
establish additional provisions for loan losses and increase reserve requirements. In addition, a failure to
recover the expected value of collateral in the case of foreclosure may expose the Group to losses which
could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.
Moreover, an increase in financial market volatility or adverse changes in the liquidity of its assets could
impair the Group’s ability to value certain of its assets and exposures or result in significant changes in the
fair values of these assets and exposures, which may be materially different from the current or estimated
fair value. Any of these factors could require the Group to recognise write-downs or realise impairment
charges, any of which may adversely affect its financial condition and results of operations.

The economic conditions of the geographic markets in which the Group operates have had, and may
continue to have, adverse effects on the Group’s results of operations, business and financial condition
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While the Group operates in many countries, Italy is the primary country in which it operates. Thus, the
Group’s business is particularly linked to the macroeconomic situation existing in Italy and could be
materially adversely affected by any changes thereto. Recently, economic forecasts have suggested
considerable uncertainty over the future growth of the Italian economy.

In addition to other factors that may arise in the future, declining or stagnating Italian GDP, rising
unemployment and unfavourable conditions in the financial and capital markets in Italy could result in
declining consumer confidence and investment in the Italian financial system, increases in the number of
impaired loans and/or loan defaults, leading to an overall reduction in demand for the products and services
offered by the Group.

Thus, a persistence of adverse economic conditions, political and economic uncertainty and/or a slower
economic recovery in Italy compared with other Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development countries could materially adversely affect the Group’s results of operations, business and
financial condition.

The Group also has significant operations in several Central and Eastern European countries (CEE
countries), including Poland, Turkey, Russia, Croatia, Czech Republic, Bulgaria and Hungary. Within the
CEE countries, the risks and uncertainties to which the UniCredit Group is exposed differ in nature and
intensity, and a CEE country’s membership in the European Union, or lack thereof, is only one of the key
distinguishing factors that must be considered in assessing such risks and uncertainties. In addition, CEE
countries, as a whole, however, have historically been characterised by highly volatile capital markets and
exchange rates, a certain degree of political, economic and financial instability, and, in several cases, less
developed political, financial and judicial systems.

Although the global financial crisis has exacerbated certain of these risks and uncertainties in those CEE
countries in which the Group operates, economic recovery in the region has been consolidating during
2012 and 2011, albeit at varying levels of significance. The timing of full economic recovery in some of
the CEE countries remains however uncertain and subject to, among others, developments in Western
European economies and the global economy as a whole.

In recent years, with the aim of managing the effects of the global financial crisis, the Group recapitalised
certain of its subsidiaries in several CEE countries, including some of those in Russia, Ukraine and
Kazakhstan. These increases of capital have been made in order to align the financial situation of the
Group to the regulatory requirements as well as to the market expectations.

Nevertheless, given the more restrictive regulations than those prevailing at the international level, the
Group may need to continue strengthening the equity of and/or transfer an increasing amount of funds to
its subsidiaries located in CEE countries, particularly those located outside the European Union, also
considering the risk of being exposed to, among other things, regulatory or legal initiatives of local
authorities in those countries. In addition, similar to the risks present in all countries in which the Group
operates, local authorities in CEE countries could also adopt measures and/or initiatives such as: (a)
requiring the waiver or reduction of loan repayment obligations, resulting in a level of risk provisions more
significant than would normally apply under Group policies; (b) demanding additional capital; (c)
increasing levies on banking activities. The Group may also be required to ensure that its subsidiaries
located in CEE countries have greater levels of liquidity, in a context where access to liquidity worldwide
may be increasingly difficult to obtain. An increase in loan impairments could be necessary in connection
with levels of credit risk estimated by the Group. Furthermore, unfavourable developments in the growth
rates of CEE countries compared to historical levels, together with the uncertainties surrounding Western
European economies, could adversely affect the Group’s achievement of its strategic goals.

Non-traditional banking activities expose the Group to additional credit risks

In addition to traditional banking activities such as lending and deposit-taking, the Group carries out non-
traditional banking activities, which may expose the Group to additional credit and/or counterparty risk.
Such additional risk may originate, for example, from: executing securities, futures, interest rate, currency
or commodity trades that fail to settle in a timely manner due to non-delivery by the counterparty or
alternatively due to system failures by clearing agents, exchanges, clearing houses or other financial
intermediaries (including the Group); owning securities of third parties; and extending credit through other
arrangements.
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Parties to these transactions, such as trading counterparties or counterparties issuing securities held by
entities of the Group, may default on their obligations due to insolvency, political and economic events,
lack of liquidity, operational failure or other reasons. Defaults by counterparties with respect to a
significant number of transactions or one or more transactions that involve significant volumes would have
a material adverse effect on the Group’s results of operations, business and financial condition.

The Group has made a series of significant investments in other companies, including those resulting from
the conversion of debt into equity in the context of restructuring processes. Any losses or risks, operational
or financial, to which the invested companies may be exposed may restrict the Group’s ability to dispose of
the above mentioned investments, and may cause considerable reductions in their value, with possible
adverse effects to the Group’s results of operations, business and financial condition.

In addition, the Group, as a result of executing guarantees and/or signing agreements to restructure debt,
holds, and could acquire in the future, control or minority stakes in companies operating in industries other
than those in which the Group currently operates, including, for example, real estate, oil, transport and
consumer goods. These industries require specific skills in terms of knowledge and management that are
not among those skills currently held by the Group. Nevertheless, in the course of any disposals, the Group
may have to deal with such companies. This exposes the Group to the risks inherent in the activities of an
individual company or subsidiary and to the risks arising from the inefficient management of such
sharcholdings, which could have adverse effects on the Group’s results of operations, business and
financial condition.

Unidentified or unanticipated risks, by their nature, might not be captured in the current Group's risk
management policies

Banks belonging to the Group are subject to the risks inherent to banking and financial activities. The
Group has structures, processes and human resources aimed at developing risk management policies,
procedures and assessment methods for its activities in line with best market practices in the industry.

The Group’s Risk Management Division provides strategic direction and defines the risk management
policies implemented, locally, by the Group’s risk management entities. Some of the methods used to
monitor and manage these risks involve observations of historic market conditions and the use of statistical
models for identifying, monitoring, controlling and managing risk.

However, these methods and strategies may be inadequate for the monitoring and management of certain
risks, such as the risks attached to some complex financial products that are traded on unregulated markets
(e.g., OTC derivatives), and, as a result, the Group could suffer greater losses than those contemplated by
the methods or suffer losses not previously considered.

In addition, the occurrence of unforeseeable events or of events outside of the historical observation
window, which have not been considered by the Risk Management Division and which may affect the
performance of the markets in which the Group operates, could adversely affect the Group’s results of
operations, business and financial condition. These risks, and their effects, may be further aggravated by
the complexities of integrating risk management policies into the Group’s acquired entities.

At the date of this Base Prospectus, some of the relevant supervisory authorities are carrying out
procedures to validate internal risk measurements that will be used for internal and regulatory purposes by
UniCredit and other companies belonging to the Group. These procedures apply to models awaiting initial
implementation as well as models already adopted, but for which the Group must demonstrate its
maintenance of regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure the integrity and accuracy of the above measurement and risk management models, the
Group employs a governance policy that is consistent with current applicable regulations in each of the
markets in which it operates (for example, Bank of Italy, Circular No. 263 of 27 December 2006) as well
as with international best practices.

Despite the maintenance and upgrading of these models, it is possible that, after investigation or
verification by the supervisory authorities, the Group’s internal models might no longer be adequate with
respect to risks undertaken, which could adversely affect the Group, particularly with respect to its capital
requirements.
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Some regulators have conducted audits and/or reviews of risk management and internal control systems,
and highlighted concerns (which were also the subject of additional internal and external audits) about the
extent to which such systems are fully compliant with applicable legal and regulatory requirements.
Progress on actions undertaken have been, and will continue to be, regularly reported to the relevant
regulators.

Nevertheless, even if UniCredit plans, system improvements and robust monitoring process are
acknowledged by the relevant regulators, there can be no assurance that the actions taken, and planned to
be taken, by UniCredit will be fully satisfactory to the relevant regulators that have oversight of these
matters. While UniCredit will address all the material concerns raised, there is a risk that the relevant
regulators could take additional measures against UniCredit and its management, including issuing fines,
imposing limitations on the conduct, outsourcing or the expansion of certain business activities.

Fluctuations in interest and exchange rates may affect the Group’s results

Fluctuations in interest rates in Europe and in the other markets in which the Group operates may influence
the Group’s performance. The results of the Group’s banking operations are affected, inter alia, by the
Group’s management of interest rate sensitivity. Interest rate sensitivity refers to the relationship between
changes in market interest rates and changes in net interest income. A mismatch of interest-earning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities in any given period, which tends to accompany changes in interest rates,
may have a material effect on the Group’s financial condition and results of operations.

The interest rate risk position estimates include assumptions for assets and liabilities that do not have a
well-defined maturity. Examples are listed below:

. sight and savings accounts: maturity assumptions are in place as these amounts are to some extent
assumed to be sticky. For these maturity assumptions several considerations are taken into account
including: the volatility of sight item volume, as well as the observed and perceived correlation
between market and client rates. Both statistical as well as qualitative evidence is taken into
account in order to evaluate which hedge maturity profile would best eliminate the potential
interest rate risk arising from the sight items. The maturity mapping aims to obtain a replicating
profile that would minimise the margin volatility.

. residential real estate mortgages: the model estimates the future volumes of redemptions on an
ongoing basis, in order to limit the risk that the bank is not appropriately hedged for the interest
rate risk resulting from the outstanding fixed interest rate mortgages. The assumptions on early
loan repayments are based on historical data as well as a qualitative assessment.

The relevance and the approach to capture this event varies per region.

Rising interest rates along the yield curve can increase the cost of the Group’s borrowed funds faster and at
a higher rate than the yield on its assets, due to, for example, a mismatch in the maturities of its assets and
liabilities that are sensitive to interest rate changes or a mismatch in the degree of interest rate sensitivity of
assets and liabilities with similar maturities. At the same time, decreasing interest rates can also reduce the
yield on the Group’s assets at a rate which may not correspond to the decrease in the cost of funding.

Furthermore, a significant portion of the UniCredit Group’s operations, mainly capital investments, are
conducted in currencies other than the Euro, principally the Polish Zloty, the Turkish Lira, the U.S. Dollar,
the Swiss Franc and the Japanese Yen. Unfavourable movements in foreign exchange rates could,
therefore, influence the Group’s results of operations, business, financial condition and prospects. As a
result, the Group is exposed to foreign currency exchange rates and foreign currency transaction risks.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements (including its interim financial statements) are prepared in
Euro and carry out the necessary currency translations in accordance with applicable international
accounting standards.

The Group employs a hedging policy with respect to the profits and dividends of its subsidiaries operating
outside the Euro area. The Group takes prevailing market conditions into account in implementing its
hedging policy. Any negative change in exchange rates and/or a hedging policy that is ineffective at
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covering risk could significantly adversely affect the Group’s results of operations, business and financial
condition.

Changes in the Italian and European regulatory framework could adversely affect the Group’s business

The Group is subject to extensive regulation and supervision by several bodies in all jurisdictions in which
it operates, including the Bank of Italy (which is also responsible for supervision at a consolidated level),
BaFin, PFSA, and the FMA. The rules applicable to banks and other entities in banking groups are mainly
provided by implementation of measures consistent with the regulatory framework set out by the Basel
Committee on banking Supervisions (BCBS) and aim at preserving their stability and solidity and limiting
their risk exposure. The Group is also subject to regulations applicable to financial services that govern,
among other things, the sale, placement and marketing of financial instruments as well as to those
applicable to its bank-assurance activities. In particular, the Group is subject to the supervision of
CONSOB and the Institute for the Supervision of Private Insurance. The Issuer is also subject to the rules
applicable to it as an issuer of shares listed on the Milan, Frankfurt and Warsaw Stock Exchanges.

In accordance with the regulatory frameworks defined by the supervisory authorities mentioned above and
consistent with the regulatory framework being implemented at the European Union, the Group governs,
among other things, liquidity levels and capital adequacy, the prevention and contrast of money laundering,
privacy protection, ensuring transparency and fairness in customer relations and registration and reporting
obligations. In order to operate in compliance with these regulations, the Group has in place specific
procedures and internal policies. Despite the existence of these procedures and policies, there can be no
assurance that violations of regulations will not occur, which could adversely affect the Group’s results of
operations, business and financial condition. The above risks are given by the fact that, as at the date of this
Base Prospectus, certain laws and regulations have only been recently approved and the relevant
implementation procedures are still in the process of being developed.

At a global level, in the wake of the global financial crisis that began in 2008, the BCBS approved, in the
fourth quarter of 2010, revised global regulatory standards on bank capital adequacy and liquidity, higher
and better-quality capital, better risk coverage, measures to promote the build-up of capital that can be
drawn down in periods of stress and the introduction of a leverage ratio as a backstop to the risk-based
requirement as well as two global liquidity standards (the so-called Basel I11). The Basel Il framework
adopts a gradual approach, with the requirements to be implemented over time, with full enforcement in
2019. As anticipated above, in January 2013 the BCBS has reviewed its original proposal in respect of the
liquidity requirements accepting a number of the concerns raised by the banking industry. First, the
phasing-in of the Liquidity Coverage Ratio will take place in a gradual manner (i.e. annual increase of 10
per cent.), starting with 60 per cent. in 2015 and ending with 100 per cent. in 2019. Second, the BCBS
expanded the definition of high quality liquid assets to include lower quality corporate securities, equities
and residential mortgage backed securities.

Between the end of 2010 and the beginning of 2011, the Bank of Italy issued a series of measures which
amended the New Provisions of Prudential Supervision of Banks for the purposes of implementing the
CRD Il Directives which may require the Group, after a transitional period, to replace its financial
instruments no longer computable for such purposes. In November 2010, the EU CRD Ill Directive was
issued and included additional capital requirements relating to the trading portfolio and repackaging
securitisations as well as a review of the remuneration policies.

The Basel 111 framework will be reflected in the EU legislation by means of the recently agreed package
consisting of the Capital Requirements Directive (CRD 1V) and the Capital Requirements Regulation
(CRR), the latter being directly applicable in each member state. The adoption of these measures will
allow the set-up of a Single rule book which is a key tool in the EU to allow a level playing field, to
contrast regulatory arbitrage and foster the convergence of supervisory practices. The CRD IV and the
CRR were formally adopted by the European Council on 20 June 2013 and published in the Official
Journal on 27 June 2013. They are expected to enter into force by 1 January 2014.

More specifically, the phasing-in of the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) in a gradual manner (albeit more
quickly than envisaged by Basel 111), starting with 60 per cent. in 2015, 70 per cent. as from 1 January
2016, 80 per cent. as from 1 January 2017 and 100 per cent. as from 1 January 2018 was arguably viewed
positively by the banking sector. On the other hand, the gradual phasing-in will not prevent member states
from maintaining or even introducing national liquidity provisions applicable to domestically authorised
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institutions. It must also be noted that it is up to the discretion of each national authority to decide whether
liquidity requirements must be fulfilled on the level of each legal entity of a cross border group or if it is
sufficient to fulfill the requirements on group level only. The latter would have a positive impact on the
operating costs.

On the one hand, the expansion of high quality liquid assets to include high quality asset backed securities
is appreciated (EBA will have to define by end 2013 which asset categories such as Prime Collateralized
Securities are included). Notably, the Commission will report by 2015 on the removal of legal and practical
obstacles in relation to the fulfillment of the liquidity requirements on group level only.

On the other hand, it is regrettable that many national discretions were introduced in the CRD IV. An
example of national discretion is the capital surcharge which Member States can require at their financial
systems in order to address macro-prudential risks in their own countries. Until 2015, Member States can
require additional buffers of capital up to 3% of Core Tier 1 with no EU control. From 2015 onwards and
for additional capital buffer between 3 and 5% the Member State has to notify the Commission, the EBA
and the ESRB. In case of a negative Commission opinion the Member State has to comply or explain why
it is not complying with the Commission’s negative opinion. Buffer rates of above 5% will need the
authorisation by the Commission.

On 6 June 2012, the European Commission published a legislative proposal for a directive providing for
the establishment of an EU-wide framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and
investment firms (the Recovery and Resolution Directive or RRD). The stated aim of the draft RRD is to
provide competent authorities with common tools and powers to address banking crises pre-emptively in
order to safeguard financial stability and minimise taxpayers’ exposure to losses. The draft RRD
contemplates that it will be implemented in Member States by 31 December 2014 except for the bail-in
tool which is to be implemented by 1 January 2018 at the latest. The bail-in tool gives resolution
authorities the power to write down the claims of unsecured creditors of failing institutions and to convert
unsecured debt claims into equity. The Commission proposal foresees that Member States may exempt
covered bonds as defined in Article 22(4) of Council Directive 86/611/EEC from bail-in.

The powers currently set out in the draft RRD would have an impact on how credit institutions and
investment firms are managed as well as, in certain circumstances, the rights of creditors. As a matter of
fact if resolution requirements are left subject to national discretions and set by the national competent
authorities, they could turn out not to be consistent across jurisdictions and therefore hamper the effective
management of the Group. However, the proposed directive is not in final form and changes may be made
to it in the course of the legislative procedure. As such, it is too early to anticipate the full impact of the
draft directive but there can be no assurance that, once it is agreed upon and implemented, noteholders will
not be adversely affected by actions taken under it. In addition, there can be no assurance that, once the
draft RRD is agreed upon and implemented, its application will not have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations, business, assets, cash flows and financial condition, as well as on funding
activities carried out by the Group and the products and services offered by the Group.

In addition, UniCredit was included in the list of global systemically important banks (G-SIBs) published
on 4 November 2011 (as updated in November 2012) by the Financial Stability Board. The banks included
in that list (which will be updated annually) as at November 2014 will be subject to increased oversight and
will be required to, among other things, maintain the capacity to absorb additional losses through a capital
buffer comprised of common equity Tier 1 of between 1 per cent. and 3.5 per cent. of their risk-weighted
assets from 2016. The Group submitted to the competent authority its recovery plan by end of 2012 and
supported supervisors in their drafting of the resolution plan.

Another regulatory initiative currently under discussion which may hamper a smooth functioning of the
Group is the legislative proposal the European Commission is envisaging to adopt in the summer of 2013
following the recommendations released on 31 October 2012 by the High Level Expert Group (the
Liikanen Group) on the mandatory separation of risky banking activities. Should a mandatory separation
be imposed, additional costs at Group level are likely, in terms of higher funding costs, additional capital
requirements and operational costs due to the separation, lack of diversification benefits. An additional
layer of complexity, leading to uncertainty, is the high risk of diverging approaches throughout Europe on
this issue. Despite the progress at EU level, the United Kingdom, France and Germany are already in the
process of introducing local laws on the separation of banking activities.
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In addition, a new legislative proposal on the Financial Transaction Tax (the FTT) was published on 14
February 2013. The proposal followed the Council's authorisation to proceed with the adoption of the FTT
through enhanced cooperation, i.e. adoption limited to 11 countries - among which Italy, France, Germany
and Austria. It is expected that the national provisions implementing the proposed FTT will have to enter in
force starting from 1 January 2014 but such date could be possibly postponed, should the adoption of the
proposal take more time.

The impact on the ‘real economy’ of the FTT as currently envisaged — especially for corporations — could
be severe as many financial transactions are made on behalf of businesses that would bear the additional
costs of the tax. For example, a transaction tax would raise the cost of the sale and purchase of corporate
bonds in a time where it is widely acknowledged that access to capital markets by corporate issuers has to
be incentivised.

Moreover, it is a matter of concern for the Group that the proposal does not exempt the transfers of
financial instruments within a group. Thus, if a financial instrument is not purchased for a client but only
moved within a banking group, each transaction would be subject to taxation. Also, the inclusion of
derivatives and repos/lending transactions in the taxation scope clashes with the efficiency of financial
markets.

Following the entry into force and subsequent application of new accounting standards and/or regulatory
rules and/or the amendment of existing standards and rules, the Group may have to revise the accounting
and regulatory treatment of some operations and the related income and expense, with potentially negative
effects on the estimates contained in the financial plans for future years and with the need to restate already
published financials.

In this regard, it should be pointed out that:
. IAS 19 revision and the new standard IFRS 13 entered into force on 1 January 2013;
. the new IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 will enter into force in 2014.

Furthermore, IFRS 9 is currently being finalised. This new standard will introduce significant changes with
regard to classification, measurement, impairment and hedge accounting of instruments, there including
financial ones, replacing 1AS 39. At the present time, IFRS 9 is still expected to be applicable as of 1
January 2015, following the IASB’s enactment and the endorsement by the European Union.

The various regulatory requests may affect the activities of the Group, including its ability to grant loans,
or result in the need for further capital injections in order to meet capital requirements as well as require
other sources of funding to satisfy liquidity requirements, which could result in adverse effects to the
Group’s results of operations, business, assets, cash flows and financial condition, the products and
services offered by the Group as well as the Group’s ability to pay dividends.

In carrying out its activities, the Group is subject to numerous regulations of general application such as
those concerning taxation, social security, pensions, occupational safety and privacy. Any changes to these
laws and regulations and/or changes in their interpretation and/or their application by the supervisory
authorities could adversely affect the Group’s results of operations, business and financial condition.

Increased Capital Requirements

Under the Basel 11l framework, new capital requirements will be phased in gradually starting from 2013
until 2019. Minimum Common equity tier 1 (CET1) will be increased from broadly 2 per cent. of risk-
weighted assets to 7.0 per cent. The 7.0 per cent. includes a "capital conservation buffer " of 2.5 per cent.
to ensure that banks maintain a buffer of capital that can be used to absorb losses during periods of
financial and economic stress. An additional "countercyclical buffer requirement” of 0-2.5 per cent. will be
implemented according to national circumstances. The countercyclical buffer requirement will apply in
periods of excess lending growth in the economy and can vary for each jurisdiction. If it is still on the list
of G-SIBs at November 2014, UniCredit will also be subject to an additional loss absorbency requirement
of between 1 per cent. and 3.5 per cent., determined according to specific indicators (size,
interconnectedness, lack of substitutes for the services provided, global activity and complexity). The G-
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SIBs capital buffer will be phased-in in parallel with the capital conservation and countercyclical buffers,
ie between 1 January 2016 and year end 2018, becoming fully effective on 1 January 2019.

The Group may be subject to the provisions of the Recovery and Resolution Directive, once finalised and
implemented, in the future

As described under the section "Changes in the Italian and European regulatory framework could
adversely affect the Group’s business", the European Commission published a legislative proposal for a
directive providing for the establishment of an EU-wide framework for the recovery and resolution of
credit institutions and investment firms (the RRD). The powers provided to authorities in the draft RRD are
divided into three categories: (i) preparatory steps and plans to minimise the risks of potential problems
(preparation and prevention); (ii) in the event of incipient problems, powers to arrest a bank's deteriorating
situation at an early stage so as to avoid insolvency (early intervention); and (iii) if insolvency of an
institution presents a concern as regards the general public interest, a clear means to reorganise or wind
down the bank in an orderly fashion while preserving its critical functions and limiting to the maximum
extent any exposure of taxpayers to losses in insolvency (resolution).

The draft RRD currently contains four resolution tools and powers: (i) sale of business - which enables
resolution authorities to the sale of the institution or the whole or part of its business on commercial terms
without requiring the consent of the shareholders or complying with the procedural requirements that
would otherwise apply; (ii) bridge institution - which enables resolution authorities to transfer of all or part
of the business of an institution to a "bridge bank™ (a publically controlled entity); (iii) asset separation -
which enables resolution authorities to transfer impaired or problem assets to an asset management vehicle
to allow them to be managed and worked out over time; and (iv) bail in - which gives resolution authorities
the power to write down the claims of senior unsecured creditors and subordinated creditors (including
holders of Tier Il securities, such as the Subordinated Notes, and non-common Tier | securities) of a failing
institution and to convert unsecured debt claims to equity (subject to certain parameters as to which
liabilities would be eligible for the bail in tool).

Except for the senior debt bail-in tool (which is expected to be implemented by 1 January 2018), it is
currently contemplated that the measures set out in the draft RRD (including the power of authorities to
write off non-common Tier | and Tier Il capital) will be implemented in Member States with effect from 1
January 2015.

The powers currently set out in the draft RRD would impact how credit institutions and investment firms
are managed as well as, in certain circumstances, the rights of creditors. However, the proposed directive is
not in final form and changes may be made to it in the course of the legislative procedure. As such, it is too
early to anticipate the full impact of the draft directive but there can be no assurance that, once it is agreed
upon and implemented, Noteholders will not be adversely affected by actions taken under it. In addition,
there can be no assurance that, once the draft RRD is agreed upon and implemented, its application will not
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations, business, assets, cash flows and financial
condition, as well as on funding activities carried out by the Group and the products and services offered
by the Group.

Operational and IT risks are inherent in the Group’s business

The Group’s operations are complex and geographically diverse, and require the ability to efficiently and
accurately process a large number of transactions while complying with applicable laws and regulations in
the countries in which it operates. The Group is exposed to operational risks and losses that can result
from, among other things, internal and external fraud, unauthorized activities in the capital markets,
inadequate or faulty systems and controls, telecommunications and other equipment failures, data security
system failures, errors, omissions or delays of employees, including with respect to the products and
services offered, unsuitable Group policies and procedures, including those related to risk management,
customer complaints, natural disasters, terrorist attacks, computer viruses and violations of law.

In addition, recent acquisitions and organisational restructuring in Italy, Germany, Austria and Central and
Eastern Europe, has led to the integration of the information, internal audit and accounting systems of the
companies acquired, some of which were profoundly different from those used by the Group. As of the
date of this Base Prospectus, the Group’s commercial banking activities in Italy, Germany and Austria are
integrated on the EuroSIG platform.
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While the Group actively employs procedures to contain and mitigate operational risk and related adverse
effects, the occurrence of certain unforeseeable events, wholly or partly out of the Group’s control, could
substantially limit their effectiveness. As a result, there can be no assurance that the Group will not suffer
future material losses due to the inadequacy or failure of the above procedures. The occurrence of one or
more of above risks could adversely affect the Group’s results of operations, business and financial
position.

Intense competition, especially in the Italian market, where the Group has a substantial part of its
businesses, could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s results of operations and financial
condition

UniCredit and the companies belonging to the UniCredit Group are subject to risks arising from
competition in the markets in which they operate, particularly in Italy, Germany, Austria, Poland and the
CEE countries.

In particular, the Italian market represents the main market in which the Group operates. As at 31
December 2012, 48 per cent. of direct funding and 46 per cent. of the revenues of the Group are related to
the Italian market.

In general, the international banking and financial services industry is extremely competitive. Competitive
pressure could increase as a result of regulatory actions, the behaviour of competitors, consumer demand,
technological advances, aggregation processes which involve large groups like the UniCredit Group
requiring ever larger economies of scale, the entry of new competitors and other factors not entirely within
the Group’s control. In addition, the aforementioned aggregation processes could intensify if instability in
the financial markets persists. A worsening of the macroeconomic situation may also result in increased
competitive pressure due to, for example, increased pressure on prices and lower volumes of activity.

In the event that the Group is not able to respond to increasing competitive pressure through, among other
things, providing innovative and profitable products and services to meet the needs of customers, the
Group could lose market share in the various sectors in which it is active.

In addition, as a result of such competition, the Group may fail to maintain or increase business volumes
and profit levels that have been achieved in the past, resulting in adverse effects on the Group’s results of
operations, business and financial condition.

Ratings

UniCredit is rated by Fitch Italia S.p.A. (Fitch), by Moody’s Italia S.r.I. (Moody’s) and by Standard &
Poor’s Credit Market Services Italy S.r.l. (Standard & Poor’s), each of which is established in the
European Union and registered under Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009 on credit rating agencies as amended
by Regulation (EU) No 513/2011 (the CRA Regulation) as set out in the list of credit rating agencies
registered in accordance with the CRA Regulation published on the website of the European Securities and
Markets Authority pursuant to the CRA Regulation (for more information please visit the ESMA webpage
http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-CRAS).

In determining the rating assigned to UniCredit, these rating agencies consider and will continue to review
various indicators of the Group’s performance, UniCredit’s profitability and its ability to maintain its
consolidated capital ratios within certain target levels. If UniCredit fails to achieve or maintain any or a
combination of more than one of the indicators, including if UniCredit is unable to maintain its
consolidated capital ratios within certain target levels, this may result in a downgrade of UniCredit’s rating
by Fitch, Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s.

Any rating downgrades of UniCredit or other entities of the Group would increase the re-financing costs of
the Group and may limit its access to the financial markets and other sources of liquidity, all of which
could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Risks in connection with legal proceedings

As at the date of this Base Prospectus, there are certain legal proceedings pending against UniCredit and
other companies belonging to the Group.
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In many cases there is significant uncertainty as to the possible outcome of the proceedings and the amount
of possible losses. These cases include criminal proceedings and administrative proceedings brought by
supervising authorities as well as civil litigation where damages have not been specified (as is the case in
the putative class actions in the United States).

To cover liabilities that may arise from pending lawsuits (other than those concerning employment matters,
taxes or the recovery of loans), the Group has set aside, as at 31 December 2012, a provision for risks and
charges of €1,324 million. An estimated liability is based on information available from time to time, but it
is also based on estimates because of the many uncertainties connected to litigation. Therefore, it is
possible that provisions may be insufficient to fully deal with the charges, expenses, penalties, damages
and other requests relating to pending proceedings, and, therefore the actual costs upon completion of
pending proceedings may be significantly higher than previously anticipated. There are also proceedings,
some of which have substantial amounts in issue, for which the Group did not consider it necessary to
make, or for which the Group was not able to quantify, a provision.

The Group must also comply with various legal and regulatory requirements concerning, among others,
conflicts of interest, ethical issues, anti-money laundering, sanctions imposed by the United States or
international bodies, privacy rights and information security. In particular, a member of the UniCredit
Group is currently responding to a third-party witness subpoena from the New York County District
Attorney's Office in connection with an ongoing investigation regarding certain, persons and/or entities
believed to have engaged in conduct that violated applicable sanctions promulgated by the US Treasury
Department Office of Foreign Assets Control. Failure to comply with these requirements may lead to
additional litigation and/or investigations and may subject the Group to claims for damages, fines, penalties
as well as subject it to reputational damage.

The Group is involved in pending tax proceedings

At the date of the Prospectus, there are different tax proceedings pending against UniCredit and other
companies belonging to the UniCredit Group.

For example, over the past decade, several Group banks have carried out structured finance transactions,
including the “DB Vantage” and “Brontos” transactions. In connection with such structured finance
transactions, UniCredit and several Group banks have been audited or investigated by the Italian Tax
Agency (Agenzia delle Entrate) and the Prosecutor of Milan. Those audits and investigations presented tax
and legal risks to the Group. Several of the above audits resulted in the issuance of tax assessment notices
to UniCredit and other Group banks. However, in certain cases, UniCredit settled all the tax assessment
notices for amounts lower than originally assessed, except for fiscal year 2004 that was challenged.

There can be no assurance that UniCredit Group will not be subject to an adverse outcome of one or more
of the tax proceedings to which it is subject or may be subject in the future. Such an adverse outcome could
have a material adverse effect on the Group’s results of operations, business and financial condition. In
addition, should a member of the Group breach or allegedly breach tax legislation in one or more of the
countries in which the Group operates, the Group could be exposed to increased tax risks, which in turn
could increase the likelihood of further tax litigation and result in reputational damage.

The Group may be unable to fully implement its 2010-2015 Strategic Plan

On 14 November 2011, the Board of Directors of UniCredit approved the 2010-2015 strategic plan (the
Strategic Plan).

The Strategic Plan is based on projections and estimates relating to the occurrence of future events and
regarding the effect of initiatives and steps taken by the management in the time horizon of the Strategic
Plan.

The main assumptions upon which the Strategic Plan is based relate to a macroeconomic scenario in the
geographies in which the Group operates, which is beyond the control of the management, and to
assumptions relating to specific actions and future events to be undertaken by the management of the
Group, which may not occur or evolve differently than assumed in the Strategic Plan.
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Such circumstances could determine even significant deviations from the financial projections included in
the Strategic Plan, leading to a revision of them as announced by UCG Press release ‘UniCredit: 4Q12
Group results’ as of March 15 th 2013.

FACTORS WHICH ARE MATERIAL FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSESSING THE MARKET
RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH NOTES ISSUED UNDER THE PROGRAMME

The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

@) have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Notes, the
merits and risks of investing in the Notes and the information contained or incorporated by
reference in this Base Prospectus or in any applicable supplement;

(b) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the Notes and the impact the Notes will have on its
overall investment portfolio;

(c) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the
Notes, including Notes with principal or interest payable in one or more currencies, or where the
currency for principal or interest payments is different from the potential investor’s currency;

(d) understand thoroughly the terms of the Notes and be familiar with the behaviour of any relevant
indices and financial markets; and

(e) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicable risks.

Some Notes are complex financial instruments. Sophisticated institutional investors generally do not
purchase complex financial instruments as stand-alone investments. They purchase complex financial
instruments as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield with an understood, measured, appropriate addition of
risk to their overall portfolios. A potential investor should not invest in Notes which are complex financial
instruments unless it has the expertise (either alone or with a financial adviser) to evaluate how the Notes
will perform under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the value of the Notes and the impact this
investment will have on the potential investor’s overall investment portfolio.

Neither the obligations of the Issuers under the Notes nor those of the Guarantor in respect of Notes issued
by UniCredit Ireland or UniCredit International Luxembourg are covered by deposit insurance schemes in
the Republic of Italy, Ireland or Luxembourg. Furthermore, neither Notes issued by UniCredit nor Notes
issued by UniCredit Ireland or by UniCredit International Luxembourg will be guaranteed by, respectively,
the Republic of Italy, Ireland or Luxembourg under any legislation that is or will be passed to address
liquidity issues in the credit markets, including government guarantees or similar measures.

Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of Notes

A wide range of Notes may be issued under the Programme. A number of these Notes may have features
which contain particular risks for potential investors. Set out below is a description of the most common
such features, distinguishing between factors which may occur in relation to any Notes and those which
might occur in relation to certain types of Exempt Notes:

Risks applicable to all Notes
If the relevant Issuer has the right to redeem any Notes at its option, this may limit the market value of the

Notes concerned and an investor may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a manner which
achieves a similar effective return
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Notes subject to optional redemption by the relevant Issuer

An optional redemption feature of Notes is likely to limit their market value. During any period when the
relevant Issuer may elect to redeem Notes, the market value of those Notes generally will not rise
substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed. This may also be true prior to any redemption
period.

The relevant Issuer may be expected to redeem Notes when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest
rate on the Notes. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption
proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Notes being redeemed and may only
be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light
of other investments available at that time.

In addition, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms, the relevant Issuer (UniCredit and/or UniCredit
Ireland) may also, at its option, redeem Subordinated Notes following a regulatory event in accordance
with Condition 8.3 (Redemption for regulatory reasons (Regulatory Call)). Any redemption of the
Subordinated Notes is subject to the prior approval of the Bank of Italy in the case of Subordinated Notes
issued by UniCredit and of the Central Bank of Ireland and the Bank of Italy (where applicable or required)
in the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland.

If the relevant Issuer has the right to convert the interest rate on any Notes from a fixed rate to a floating
rate, or vice versa, this may affect the secondary market and the market value of the Notes concerned

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes are Notes which may bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed rate to a
floating rate, or from a floating rate to a fixed rate. Where the relevant Issuer has the right to effect such a
conversion, this will affect the secondary market and the market value of the Notes since the relevant
Issuer may be expected to convert the rate when it is likely to produce a lower overall cost of borrowing. If
the relevant Issuer converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate in such circumstances, the spread on the
Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may be less favourable than then prevailing spreads on comparable Floating
Rate Notes tied to the same reference rate. In addition, the new floating rate at any time may be lower than
the rates on other Notes. If the relevant Issuer converts from a floating rate to a fixed rate in such
circumstances, the fixed rate may be lower than then prevailing market rates.

Notes which are issued at a substantial discount or premium may experience price volatility in response to
changes in market interest rates

The market values of securities issued at a substantial discount (such as Zero Coupon Notes) or premium to
their principal amount tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices
for more conventional interest-bearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of such
securities, the greater the price volatility as compared to more conventional interest-bearing securities with
comparable maturities.

Risks relating to Subordinated Notes

An investor in Subordinated Notes assumes an enhanced risk of loss in the event of the relevant Issuer's
insolvency

UniCredit and UniCredit Ireland obligations under Subordinated Notes will be unsecured and subordinated
and will rank junior in priority of payment to Senior Liabilities. Senior Liabilities means any direct,
unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness or payment obligations (or indebtedness or
obligations which are subordinated but to a lesser degree than the obligations under the relevant
Subordinated Notes) of UniCredit and UniCredit Ireland for money borrowed or raised or guaranteed by
UniCredit or UniCredit Ireland, as the case may be, and any indebtedness or mandatory payment
obligations preferred by the laws of the Republic of Italy (in the case of UniCredit) and Ireland (in the case
of UniCredit Ireland). Although Subordinated Notes may pay a higher rate of interest than comparable
Notes which are not subordinated, there is a real risk that an investor in Subordinated Notes will lose all or
some of his investment should the relevant Issuer become insolvent.

In no event will holders of Subordinated Notes be able to accelerate the maturity of their Subordinated
Notes; such holders will have claims only for amounts then due and payable on their Subordinated Notes.
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After the relevant Issuer has fully paid all deferred interest on any issue of Subordinated Notes and if that
issue of Subordinated Notes remains outstanding, future interest payments on that issue of Subordinated
Notes will be subject to further deferral as described above.

Risk under the Subordinated Guarantee

The obligations of UniCredit in respect of each Series of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland
(the Subordinated Guarantee) constitute direct, unsecured and subordinated obligations of UniCredit.

The Subordinated Guarantee is intended to provide the holders of the Subordinated Notes issued by
UniCredit Ireland, as closely as possible, with rights equivalent to those to which the holders would have
been entitled if the Subordinated Notes had been issued directly by UniCredit.

In the event of winding-up, dissolution, liquidation or bankruptcy (including, inter alia, Liquidazione
coatta amministrativa, as described in Articles 80 to 94 of the Italian Banking Act) of UniCredit, the
Subordinated Guarantee will rank in right of payment after unsubordinated unsecured creditors (including
depositors) of UniCredit but at least pari passu with all the present and future subordinated obligations of
UniCredit of the same nature and in priority to the claims of the shareholders of UniCredit.

Regulatory classification of the Notes

The intention of the Issuers is for Subordinated Notes to qualify on issue as “Lower Tier II capital” (in
respect of Subordinated Notes issued prior of the implementation of CRD IV) or "Tier 2 capital” (in
respect of Subordinated Notes issued following the implementation of CRD 1V) for regulatory capital
purposes. Current regulatory practice by the Bank of Italy or the Central Bank of Ireland (in each case
acting as lead regulator) does not require (or customarily provide) a confirmation prior to the issuance of
Subordinated Notes that the Notes will be treated as such.

Although it is the Issuers’ expectation that the Notes qualify on issue as “Lower Tier II capital” or, as
appropriate, "Tier 2 capital”, there can be no representation that this is or will remain the case during the
life of the Notes or that the Notes will be grandfathered (in the case of Subordinated Notes which qualified
on issue as "Lower Tier Il capital™) under the implementation of future EU capital requirement regulations.
If such Subordinated Notes are not grandfathered (in the case of Subordinated Notes which qualified on
issue as "Lower Tier II capital"), or for any other reason cease to qualify, as “Lower Tier II capital” or, as
appropriate, "Tier 2 capital", the relevant Issuer will (if so specified in the applicable Final Terms) have the
right to redeem the Subordinated Notes in accordance with Condition 8.3 (Redemption for regulatory
reasons (Regulatory Call)), subject to the prior approval of the Bank of Italy and/or the Central Bank of
Ireland, as applicable. There can be no assurance that holders of such Subordinated Notes will be able to
reinvest the amounts received upon redemption at a rate that will provide the same rate of return as their
investments in the relevant Notes, as the case may be.

Loss absorption

Investors should be aware that Subordinated Notes may be subject to a write-down or conversion into
common shares at the point of non-viability should the Bank of Italy, the Central Bank of Ireland or other
authority or authorities having oversight of the relevant Issuer at the relevant time (the Relevant Authority)
be given the power to do so, whether as a result of the implementation of RRD or otherwise. The Terms
and Conditions of Subordinated Notes issued under the Programme include provisions setting out that the
obligations of the relevant Issuer under Subordinated Notes are subject to the powers of the Relevant
Authority pursuant to applicable law and/or regulation in force from time to time. To such extent investors
should also consider Condition 5.5

Risks relating to Inflation Linked Interest Notes

The relevant Issuer may issue Inflation Linked Interest Notes where the amount of interest is dependent
upon the level of an inflation/consumer price index or indices.

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Inflation Linked
Interest Notes they may receive no interest or a limited amount of interest. In addition, the movements in
the level of the inflation/consumer price index or indices may be subject to significant fluctuations that
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may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the
relevant level of the index or indices may affect the actual return to investors, even if the average level is
consistent with their expectations.

Inflation Linked Interest Notes may be subject to certain disruption provisions or extraordinary event
provisions. Relevant events may relate to an inflation/consumer price index publication being delayed or
ceasing or such index being rebased or modified. If the Calculation Agent determines that any such event
has occurred this may delay valuations under and/or settlements in respect of the Notes and consequently
adversely affect the value of the Notes. Any such adjustments may be by reference to a Related Bond if
specified in the applicable Final Terms. In addition certain extraordinary or disruption events may lead to
early termination of the Notes which may have an adverse effect on the value of the Notes. Whether and
how such provisions apply to the relevant Notes can be ascertained by reading the Inflation Linked
Conditions in conjunction with the applicable Final Terms.

If the amount of interest payable is determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by
reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the level of the inflation/consumer price
index or the indices or interest payable will be magnified.

A relevant consumer price index or other formula linked to a measure of inflation to which the Notes are
linked may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with other indices. Any movement
in the level of the index may result in a reduction of the interest payable on the Notes (if applicable).

The timing of changes in the relevant consumer price index or other formula linked to the measure of
inflation comprising the relevant index or indices may affect the actual yield to investors on the Notes,
even if the average level is consistent with their expectations.

An inflation or consumer price index to which interest payments are linked is only one measure of inflation
for the relevant jurisdiction or area, and such Index may not correlate perfectly with the rate of inflation
experienced by Noteholders in such jurisdiction or area.

The market price of Inflation Linked Interest Notes may be volatile and may depend on the time remaining
to the maturity date or expiration and the volatility of the level of the inflation or consumer price index or
indices. The level of the inflation or consumer price index or indices may be affected by the economic,
financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions or areas.

Risks applicable to certain types of Exempt Notes

There are particular risks associated with an investment in certain types of Exempt Notes, such as Index
Linked Notes, Dual Currency Notes and Credit Linked Notes. In particular, an investor might receive less
interest than expected or no interest in respect of such Notes and may lose some or all of the principal
amount invested by it.

The relevant Issuer may issue Notes with principal or interest determined by reference to an index or
formula, to changes in the prices of securities or commodities, to movements in currency exchange rates or
to other factors (each, a Relevant Factor). In addition, the relevant Issuer may issue Notes with principal
or interest payable in one or more currencies which may be different from the currency in which the Notes
are denominated. Potential investors should be aware that:

@) the market price of such Notes may be volatile;

(b) they may receive no interest;

(c) payment of principal or interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than
expected;

(d) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their principal,

(e) a Relevant Factor may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in

interest rates, currencies or other indices;
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4] if a Relevant Factor is applied to Notes in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or
contains some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the Relevant Factor on principal or
interest payable will likely be magnified; and

(9) the timing of changes in a Relevant Factor may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the
average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the
Relevant Factor, the greater the effect on yield.

The historical experience of an index or other Relevant Factor should not be viewed as an indication of the
future performance of such Relevant Factor during the term of any Notes. Accordingly, each potential
investor should consult its own financial and legal advisers about the risk entailed by an investment in any
Notes linked to a Relevant Factor and the suitability of such Notes in the light of its particular
circumstances.

Credit Linked Notes — General risks relating to Credit Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Credit Linked Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon whether certain events (each a Credit Event) have occurred in respect of one or more specified entities (a
Reference Entity) and, if so, on the value of certain specified assets (Reference Obligations) of the Reference
Entity or where, if such events have occurred, on redemption the Issuer's obligation is to deliver certain
specified assets (Deliverable Obligations). In certain circumstances the Calculation Agent may determine
Valuation Obligations in a similar manner to Deliverable Obligations. In such case, the Valuation Obligations,
as determined by the Calculation Agent, would be used to determine the Final Price. All references in this
section to Reference Obligations shall be deemed to include Valuation Obligations, as applicable.

Credit Linked Notes differ from ordinary debt securities in that the amount of principal and/or interest
payable by the relevant Issuer is dependent on whether a Credit Event has occurred and that payments
upon redemption (whether at maturity or earlier) may be linked to the value of the Reference Obligation(s)
including, if applicable, the value of any related underlying hedging arrangements (which may include
interest rate or cross-currency swaps). In certain circumstances the Notes will cease to bear interest and the
value paid to the Noteholders at maturity may be less than their original investment and may in
circumstances be zero. Accordingly, the Noteholders will be exposed to the credit of the Reference Entities
to the full extent of their investment in the Notes. The relevant Issuer may issue Credit Linked Notes
including Linear Basket Credit Linked Notes and First-to-Default Credit Linked Notes. With respect to
Linear Basket Credit Linked Notes, if one of the Reference Entities experiences a Credit Event during the
term of the Notes, there will be a proportionate reduction in the redemption amount due on maturity and on
any future interest payments. Such Reference Entity will be removed from the basket but the Notes will
otherwise remain outstanding until the Scheduled Maturity Date. First-to-Default Credit Linked Notes are
linked to the performance of two or more Reference Entities where the relevant Issuer’s obligation to pay
principal may be replaced by an obligation to pay other amounts calculated by reference to the value of the
Reference Obligation(s) and/or to deliver the Reference Obligation(s), in each case, in relation to the First
Reference Entity in respect of which a Credit Event has occurred. Investors should have sufficient
knowledge and experience in financial and business matters to evaluate the merits and risks of investing in
Credit Linked Notes as well as access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate such
merits and risks in the context of their financial situation. Noteholders will have no right to vote or exercise
any other right or remedy with respect to any Reference Entity or any Reference Obligation.

There may exist at times only a small market or no market for Credit Linked Notes and the Reference
Obligations to which the Notes are linked resulting in low or non-existent volumes of trading in the Notes
and such Reference Obligations, and therefore a lack of liquidity and price volatility of the Notes and such
Reference Obligations.

None of the Issuers, the Guarantor or any of their respective affiliates makes in respect of Credit Linked
Notes any representation as to the credit quality of any Reference Entity. Any of such persons may have
acquired, or during the term of the Notes may acquire, non-public information with respect to a Reference
Entity, its respective affiliates or any guarantors, that is or may be material in the context of Credit Linked
Notes. The issue of Credit Linked Notes will not create any obligation on the part of any such persons to
disclose to the Noteholders or to any other party such information (whether or not confidential).

65



Risk Factors

The market price of Credit Linked Notes may be volatile and will be affected by, amongst other things, the
time remaining to the maturity date and the creditworthiness of the Reference Entity which in turn may be
affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions.

Each of the Issuers, the Guarantor or their respective affiliates may deal with and engage generally in any
kind of commercial or investment banking or other business with any Reference Entity, its respective
affiliates or any guarantor or any other person or entity having obligations relating to any Reference Entity
or its respective affiliates or any guarantor in the same manner as if any Credit Linked Notes issued under
the Programme did not exist, regardless of whether any such action might have an adverse effect on a
Reference Entity, any of its respective affiliates or any guarantor. In selecting any Reference Obligation,
the Calculation Agent will not be liable to account to the Noteholders or any other person for any profit or
other benefit to it or any of its affiliates which may result directly or indirectly from such selection.

The relevant Issuer’s obligations in respect of Credit Linked Notes, including Linear Basket Credit Linked
Notes and First-to-Default Credit Linked Notes, are irrespective of the existence or amount of the relevant
Issuer’s or the Group’s credit exposure to a Reference Entity, and the relevant Issuer and/or Group need
not suffer any loss nor provide evidence of any loss as a result of a Credit Event.

Credit Linked Notes — Risks relating to determinations made by the Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committees

In respect of a Credit Event relating to a Credit Linked Note, prospective purchasers should note that the
Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee has the power to make binding decisions on critical issues
such as whether a Credit Event has occurred, which obligations are to be valued and whether an auction
should take place in accordance with and as more fully described in the Rules. Consequently, the payments
on the Notes and the timing of any such payments may be affected by any such relevant decisions if
Auction Settlement is specified as the applicable Settlement Method for a series of Notes in the relevant
Pricing Supplement.

Credit Linked Notes — Auction Settlement

Any amounts payable by and/or rights and obligations of the parties under such Credit Linked Notes in
respect of the relevant Reference Entity or Reference Obligation, will be determined in accordance with the
Auction Final Price. Noteholders will be subject to the risk that where the Auction Final Price is used, this
may result in a lower recovery value than a Reference Entity or Reference Obligation would have if such
Auction Final Price had not been used.

Credit Linked Notes — Auction Final Price and the Issuer’s ability to influence the Auction Final Price

If the Notes are redeemed following the occurrence of a Credit Event, the amount payable in respect of the
Notes may be determined by reference to the Auction Final Price determined according to an auction
procedure set out in the applicable Transaction Auction Settlement Terms. There is a possibility that the
Issuer, the Calculation Agent or one of their affiliates would act as a participating bidder in any such
auction. In such capacity, it may take certain actions which may influence the Auction Final Price
including (without limitation): (a) providing rates of conversion to determine the applicable currency
conversion rates to be used to convert any obligations which are not denominated in the auction currency
into such currency for the purposes of the auction; and (b) submitting bids, offers and physical settlement
requests with respect to the relevant Deliverable Obligations or Valuation Obligations, as applicable. In
deciding whether to take any such action (or whether to act as a participating bidder in any auction),
neither the Calculation Agent nor the Issuer nor any of their affiliates shall be under an obligation to
consider the interests of any Noteholder.

Credit Linked Notes — Credit Event and Succession Event Backstop Dates

In respect of a Credit Event relating to a series of Credit Linked Notes, a Credit Event will not be
determined by the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee unless a request is submitted to ISDA for
the relevant Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee to consider whether the relevant event
constitutes a Credit Event within sixty (60) calendar days of the occurrence of such potential Credit Event
unless a Credit Event Determination Date has already occurred with respect to such event. For Succession
Events the look-back period is ninety (90) calendar days and functions similarly. These provisions mean

66



Risk Factors

that there is a time limit on the ability to act on a Credit Event or Succession Event and that it is possible
that the Notes could be affected by a Credit Event or Succession Event that took place prior to the Trade
Date if Auction Settlement is specified as the applicable Settlement Method for a series of Notes in the
relevant Pricing Supplement.

Credit Linked Notes — Credit Events and Actual Default

Not all of the Credit Events require an actual default with respect to the Reference Entity(ies)’s obligations.
Thus, Noteholders could bear losses based on deterioration in the credit of the Reference Entity(ies) short
of a default, subject to the provisions set out in the applicable Final Terms. Also, not all of the Credit
Events are triggered by events which are easily ascertainable and disputes can and have arisen as to
whether a specific event with respect to a Credit Event did or did not constitute a Credit Event. The
Calculation Agent’s good faith, reasonable determination that a Credit Event has or has not occurred will
be binding on the Noteholders. The Calculation Agent’s view of whether a Credit Event has occurred may
be different from the view of the Noteholders or other financial institutions, rating agencies or
commentators.

Where Notes are issued on a partly paid basis, an investor who fails to pay any subsequent instalment of
the issue price could lose all of its investment

The relevant Issuer may issue Notes where the issue price is payable in more than one instalment. Any
failure by an investor to pay any subsequent instalment of the issue price in respect of his Notes could
result in such investor losing all of its investment.

Notes which are issued with variable interest rates or which are structured to include a multiplier or other
leverage factor are likely to have more volatile market values than more standard securities

Notes with variable interest rates can be volatile investments. If they are structured to include multipliers or
other leverage factors, or caps or floors, or any combination of those features or other similar related
features, their market values may be even more volatile than those for securities that do not include those
features.

Inverse Floating Rate Notes will have more volatile market values than conventional Floating Rate Notes

Inverse Floating Rate Notes have an interest rate equal to a fixed rate minus a rate based upon a reference
rate such as LIBOR. The market values of those Notes are typically more volatile than market values of
other conventional floating rate debt securities based on the same reference rate (and with otherwise
comparable terms). Inverse Floating Rate Notes are more volatile because an increase in the reference rate
not only decreases the interest rate of the Notes, but may also reflect an increase in prevailing interest rates,
which further adversely affects the market value of these Notes.

Risks related to Notes generally
Set out below is a description of material risks relating to the Notes generally:

The conditions of the Notes contain provisions which may permit their modification without the consent of
all investors and confer significant discretions on the Trustee which may be exercised without the consent
of the Noteholders and without regard to the individual interests of particular Noteholders

The conditions of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders to consider matters
affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Noteholders,
including Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and Noteholders who voted in a
manner contrary to the majority.

The conditions of the Notes also provide that the Trustee may, without the consent of Noteholders and
without regard to the interests of particular Noteholders, agree to (a) any modification of, or to the waiver
or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of, any of the provisions of the Notes or (b) determine
without the consent of the Noteholders that any Event of Default or potential Event of Default shall not be
treated as such or (c) the substitution of another company as principal debtor under any Notes in place of
the relevant Issuer, in the circumstances described in Condition 19 of the conditions of the Notes.
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Risks related to Singapore taxation

Notes issued in Singapore dollars are intended to be, where applicable, "qualifying debt securities" for the
purposes of the Income Tax Act, Chapter 134 of Singapore (the ITA), subject to the fulfilment of certain
conditions as further described under "Taxation in Singapore". However, there is no assurance that such
Notes will continue to enjoy the tax concessions in connection therewith under the ITA should the relevant
tax laws be amended or revoked at any time, which amendment or revocation may be prospective or
retroactive.

Call options are subject to the prior consent of the Bank of Italy and/or the Central Bank of Ireland

In addition to the call rights described under “Regulatory classification of the Notes” below, Subordinated
Notes may also contain provisions allowing the relevant Issuer to call them after a minimum period of, for
example, five years. To exercise such a call option, the Issuer must obtain the prior written consent of the
Bank of Italy in the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit and of the Central Bank of Ireland and
the Bank of Italy (where applicable or required) in the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit
Ireland.

Holders of such Notes have no rights to call for the redemption of such Notes and should not invest in such
Notes in the expectation that such a call will be exercised by the relevant Issuer. The Bank of Italy, in the
case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit, and the Central Bank of Ireland and the Bank of Italy
(where applicable or required), in the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland, must agree
to permit such a call, based upon their evaluation of the regulatory capital position of the relevant Issuer
and the Guarantor (in the case of Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland) and certain other factors at the
relevant time. There can be no assurance that the Bank of Italy or the Central Bank of Ireland will permit
such a call. Holders of such Notes should be aware that they may be required to bear the financial risks of
an investment in such Notes for a period of time in excess of the minimum period.

Withholding under the EU Savings Directive

Under EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income, each Member State is required
to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments of interest (or similar income)
paid by a person within its jurisdiction to an individual resident in that other Member State or to certain
limited types of entities established in that other Member State. However, for a transitional period,
Luxembourg and Austria are instead required (unless during that period they elect otherwise) to operate a
withholding system in relation to such payments (the ending of such transitional period being dependent
upon the conclusion of certain other agreements relating to information exchange with certain other
countries). A number of non-EU countries and territories, including Switzerland, have adopted similar
measures (a withholding system in the case of Switzerland).

The European Commission has proposed certain amendments to the Directive which may, if implemented,
amend or broaden the scope of the requirements described above.

If a payment were to be made in or collected through a Member State which has opted for a withholding
system and an amount of, or in respect of, tax were to be withheld from that payment, neither the relevant
Issuer, the Guarantor, the Principal Paying Agent, nor any of the Paying Agents (as defined in the
Conditions of the Notes), nor any institution where the Notes are deposited, would be obliged to pay
additional amounts with respect to any Note as a result of the imposition of such withholding tax, and there
would be no requirement for the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor to pay any additional amount pursuant to
Condition 10 of the Terms and Conditions of the Notes relating to such withholding. The relevant Issuer is
required to maintain a Paying Agent in a Member State that is not obliged to withhold or deduct tax
pursuant to the Directive.

U.S. Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) Withholding

Whilst the Notes are in global form and held within the clearing systems, in all but the most remote
circumstances, it is not expected that FATCA will affect the amount of any payment received by the clearing
systems (see "Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act" in the Taxation section). However, FATCA may affect
payments made to custodians or intermediaries in the subsequent payment chain leading to the ultimate investor
if any such custodian or intermediary generally is unable to receive payments free of FATCA withholding. It
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also may affect payment to any ultimate investor that is a financial institution that is not entitled to receive
payments free of withholding under FATCA, or an ultimate investor that fails to provide its broker (or other
custodian or intermediary from which it receives payment) with any information, forms, other documentation or
consents that may be necessary for the payments to be made free of FATCA withholding. Investors should
choose the custodians or intermediaries with care (to ensure each is compliant with FATCA or other laws or
agreements related to FATCA) and provide each custodian or intermediary with any information, forms, other
documentation or consents that may be necessary for such custodian or intermediary to make a payment free of
FATCA withholding. Investors should consult their own tax adviser to obtain a more detailed explanation of
FATCA and how FATCA may affect them. The Issuer’s obligations under the Notes are discharged once it has
paid the common depositary or common safekeeper for the clearing systems (as bearer or registered holder of
the Notes) and the Issuer has therefore no responsibility for any amount thereafter transmitted through the hands
of the clearing systems and custodians or intermediaries.

The value of the Notes could be adversely affected by a change in English law or administrative practice

The conditions of the Notes are based on English law in effect as at the date of this Base Prospectus, save
that subordination provisions applicable to Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit are governed by, and
shall be construed in accordance with, Italian law in effect as at the date of this Base Prospectus, and
Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance
with, Irish law in effect as at the date of this Base Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact
of any possible judicial decision or change to English law or to Italian law for the Subordinated Notes
issued by UniCredit or to Irish law for the Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland or
administrative practice after the date of this Base Prospectus and any such change could materially
adversely impact the value of any Notes affected by it.

Investors who purchase Notes in denominations that are not an integral multiple of the Specified
Denomination may be adversely affected if definitive Notes are subsequently required to be issued

In relation to any issue of Notes which have denominations consisting of a minimum Specified
Denomination plus one or more higher integral multiples of another smaller amount, it is possible that such
Notes may be traded in amounts that are not integral multiples of such minimum Specified Denomination.
In such a case a holder who, as a result of trading such amounts, holds an amount which is less than the
minimum Specified Denomination in his account with the relevant clearing system at the relevant time
may not receive a definitive Note in respect of such holding (should definitive Notes be printed) and would
need to purchase a principal amount of Notes such that its holding amounts to a Specified Denomination.

If such Notes in definitive form are issued, holders should be aware that definitive Notes which have a
denomination that is not an integral multiple of the minimum Specified Denomination may be illiquid and
difficult to trade.

The Renminbi is not freely convertible and there are significant restrictions on the remittance of the Renminbi
into and outside the PRC which may affect the liquidity of the Notes

The Renminbi is not freely convertible at present. The government of the PRC (the PRC Government)
continues to regulate conversion between the Renminbi and foreign currencies, despite the significant reduction
over the years by the PRC Government of control over routine foreign exchange transactions under current
accounts. Currently, participating banks in Hong Kong, Singapre and Taiwan have been permitted to engage in
the settlement of Renminbi trade transactions. This represents a current account activity.

On 12 October 2011, the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC (MOFCOM) promulgated the "Circular on Certain
Issues Concerning Direct Investment Involving Cross-border Renminbi*
(P BB RA N 557 N EOS B A S A RARTRE RO @ &) (the MOFCOM Circular). Pursuant to the MOFCOM
Circular, the appropriate office of MOFCOM and/or its local counterparts were authorised to approve Renminbi
foreign direct investments (FDI) in accordance with existing PRC laws and regulations regarding foreign
investment, with certain exceptions based on, amongst others, the size and industry of the investment which
require the preliminary approval by the provincial counterpart of MOFCOM and the consent of MOFCOM. The
MOFCOM Circular also stipulates that the proceeds of FDI may not be used towards investment in securities,
financial derivatives or entrustment loans in the PRC, except for investments in domestic companies listed in the
PRC through private placements or share transfers by agreement under the PRC strategic regime.
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On 13 October 2011, the People's Bank of China (the PBoC) promulgated the "Administrative Measures on
Renminbi Settlement of Foreign Direct Investment" (¥4 ELFEE A BOHS #5535 BRIEE) (the PBoC
FDI Measures) as part of the implementation of the PBoC's detailed FDI accounts administration system. The
system covers almost all aspects in relation to FDI, including capital injections, payments for the acquisition of
PRC domestic enterprises, repatriation of dividends and other distributions, as well as Renminbi denominated
cross-border loans. On 14 June 2012, the PBoC further issued the implementing rules for the PBoC FDI
Measures. Under the PBoC FDI Measures, special approval for FDI and shareholder loans from the PBoC,
which was previously required, is no longer necessary. In some cases however, post-event filing with the PBoC
is still necessary.

As the MOFCOM Circular and the PBoC FDI Measures are relatively new circulars, they will be subject to
interpretation and application by the relevant authorities in the PRC.

There is no assurance that the PRC Government will continue to gradually liberalise the control over cross-
border Renminbi remittances in the future, or that new PRC regulations will not be promulgated in the future
which have the effect of restricting or eliminating the remittance of Renminbi into or outside the PRC. In the
event that funds cannot be repatriated outside the PRC in Renminbi, this may affect the overall availability of
Renminbi outside the PRC and the ability of the Issuer to source Renminbi to finance its obligations under Notes
denominated in Renminbi (the Renminbi Notes).

For further details in respect of the remittance of Renminbi into and outside the PRC (including the MOFCOM
Circular and the PBoC FDI Measures), see "Remittance of Renminbi into and outside the PRC" below.

There is only limited availability of Renminbi outside the PRC, which may affect the liquidity of the Notes and
the relevant Issuer's ability to source Renminbi outside the PRC to service the Renminbi Notes

As a result of the restrictions imposed by the PRC Government on cross-border Renminbi fund flows, the
availability of Renminbi outside of the PRC is limited. Currently, licensed banks in Hong Kong and Singapore
may offer limited Renminbi-denominated banking services to Hong Kong residents, Singapore residents, and
specified business customers. The PBoC, the central bank of the PRC, has also established a Renminbi clearing
and settlement system for participating banks in Hong Kong, Singapre and Taiwan. Each of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, Singapore Branch, Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited and Bank of China, Taipei
Branch (each an Renminbi Clearing Bank) has entered into settlement agreements with the PBoC to act as the
renminbi clearing bank in Singapore, Hong Kong and Taiwan respectively.

However, the current size of Renminbi-denominated financial assets outside the PRC is limited. Renminbi
business participating banks do not have direct Renminbi liquidity support from the PBoC. They are only
allowed to square their open positions with the relevant Renminbi Clearing Bank after consolidating the
Renminbi trade position of banks outside Hong Kong, Singapore and Taiwan that are in the same bank group of
the participating banks concerned with their own trade position, and the relevant Renminbi Clearing Bank only
has access to onshore liquidity support from the PBoC only for the purpose of squaring open positions of
participating banks for limited types of transactions, including open positions resulting from conversion services
for corporations in relation to cross-border trade settlement. The relevant Renminbi Clearing Bank is not obliged
to square for participating banks any open positions resulting from other foreign exchange transactions or
conversion services and participating banks will need to source Renminbi from the offshore market to square
such open positions.

Although it is expected that the offshore Renminbi market will continue to grow in depth and size, its growth is
subject to many constraints as a result of PRC laws and regulations on foreign exchange. There is no assurance
that no new PRC regulations will be promulgated or the settlement agreements will not be terminated or
amended in the future which will have the effect of restricting the availability of Renminbi offshore. The limited
availability of Renminbi outside the PRC may affect the liquidity of the Renminbi Notes. To the extent that the
relevant Issuer is required to source Renminbi in the offshore market to service the Renminbi Notes, there is no
assurance that it will be able to source such Renminbi on satisfactory terms, if at all. If the Renminbi is not
available in certain circumstances as described in the conditions applicable to Renminbi Notes, the relevant
Issuer can make payments under the Renminbi Notes in U.S. Dollars.

Investment in the Renminbi Notes is subject to exchange rate risks
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The value of the Renminbi against the U.S. dollar and other foreign currencies fluctuates and is affected by
changes in the PRC, by international political and economic conditions and by many other factors. All
payments of interest and principal will be made with respect to the Renminbi Notes in Renminbi unless
otherwise specified. As a result, the value of these Renminbi payments in U.S. dollar terms may vary with the
prevailing exchange rates in the market place. If the value of Renminbi depreciates against the U.S. dollar or
other foreign currencies, the value of the investment in U.S. dollar or other applicable foreign currency terms
will decline.

In the event that access to Renminbi becomes restricted to the extent that, by reason of Inconvertibility, Non-
transferability or Illiquidity (as defined in the conditions of the Notes), the relevant Issuer is unable, or it is
impractical for it, to pay interest or principal in Renminbi, the conditions of the Notes allow the Issuer to make
payment in U.S. dollars at the prevailing spot rate of exchange, all as provided in more detail in the conditions of
the Notes. As a result, the value of these Renminbi payments may vary with the prevailing exchange rates in the
marketplace. If the value of Renminbi depreciates against the U.S. dollar or other foreign currencies, the value
of a holder's investment in U.S. dollar or other foreign currency terms will decline.

An investment in Renminbi Notes is subject to interest rate risk

The PRC Government has gradually liberalised the regulation of interest rates in recent years. Further
liberalisation may increase interest rate volatility. The Renminbi Notes may carry a fixed interest rate.
Consequently, the trading price of such Renminbi Notes will vary with fluctuations in interest rates. If a holder
of Renminbi Notes tries to sell any Renminbi Notes before their maturity, they may receive an offer that is less
than the amount invested.

An investment in Renminbi Notes is subject to risk of change in the regulatory regime governing the issuance of
Renminbi Notes

Renminbi Notes issuance is subject to laws and regulations of the relevant RMB Settlement Centre(s). The PRC
Government currently views Hong Kong as one of the key offshore RMB-denominated debt instrument centres
and has established a cooperative relationship with Hong Kong’s local government to develop the RMB-
denominated debt instrument market. There can be no assurance that the PRC Government will continue to
encourage issuance of RMB-denominated debt instruments outside of mainland China and any change in the
Chinese government’s policy or the regulatory regime governing the issuance of RMB-denominated debt
instruments may adversely affect the Renminbi Notes.

Payments in respect of the Renminbi Notes will only be made to investors in the manner specified in the
Renminbi Notes

Investors may be required to provide certification and other information (including Renminbi account
information) in order to be allowed to receive payments in Renminbi in accordance with the Renminbi clearing
and settlement system for participating banks in the RMB Settlement Centre(s). All Renminbi payments to
investors in respect of the Notes will be made solely (i) for so long as the Notes are represented by a Registered
Global Note held with the common depositary, for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or any alternative
clearing system by transfer to a Renminbi bank account maintained in RMB Settlement Centre(s) in accordance
with prevailing Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg rules and procedures, or (ii) for so long as the Notes
are in definitive form, by transfer to a Renminbi bank account maintained in the RMB Settlement Centre(s) in
accordance with prevailing rules and regulations. Other than described in the conditions of the Notes, the
Issuers and the Guarantor cannot be required to make payment by any other means (including in any other
currency in bank notes, by cheque or draft or or by transfer to a bank account in the PRC).

PRC Taxation

Holders of the Notes will not be subject to withholding tax, income tax or any other taxes or duties imposed by
any governmental authority in the PRC in respect of the Notes or any repayment of principal and payment of
interest made thereon.

Risks related to the market generally

Set out below is a brief description of the principal market risks, including liquidity risk, exchange rate
risk, interest rate risk and credit risk:
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An active secondary market in respect of the Notes may never be established or may be illiquid and this
would adversely affect the value at which an investor could sell his Notes

Notes may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never develop. If a market does
develop, it may not be very liquid. Therefore investors may not be able to sell their Notes easily or at prices
that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary
market. This is particularly the case for Notes that are especially sensitive to interest rate, currency or
market risks, are designed for specific investment objectives or strategies or have been structured to meet
the investment requirements of limited categories of investors. These types of Notes generally would have
a more limited secondary market and more price volatility than conventional debt securities.

If an investor holds Notes which are not denominated in the investor's home currency, it will be exposed to
movements in exchange rates adversely affecting the value of its holding. In addition, the imposition of
exchange controls in relation to any Notes could result in an investor not receiving payments on those
Notes

The Issuers will pay principal and interest on the Notes and the Guarantor will make any payments under
the Guarantee in the Specified Currency. This presents certain risks relating to currency conversions if an
investor’s financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (the Investor’s
Currency) other than the Specified Currency. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly
change (including changes due to devaluation of the Specified Currency or revaluation of the Investor’s
Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the Investor’s Currency may impose or
modify exchange controls. An appreciation in the value of the Investor’s Currency relative to the Specified
Currency would decrease (a) the Investor’s Currency-equivalent yield on the Notes, (b) the Investor’s
Currency-equivalent value of the principal payable on the Notes and (c) the Investor’s Currency-equivalent
market value of the Notes.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that
could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate or the ability of the Issuers or the Guarantor to make
payments in respect of the Notes. As a result, investors may receive less interest or principal than expected,
or no interest or principal.

The value of Fixed Rate Notes may be adversely affected by movements in market interest rates

Investment in Fixed Rate Notes involves the risk that if market interest rates subsequently increase above
the rate paid on the Fixed Rate Notes, this will adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate Notes.

Credit ratings assigned to the Issuers, the Guarantor or any Notes may not reflect all the risks associated
with an investment in those Notes

One or more independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to the Issuers, the Guarantor or
the Notes. The ratings may not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to structure, market,
additional factors discussed above, and other factors that may affect the value of the Notes. A credit rating
is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be revised, suspended or withdrawn by the
rating agency at any time.

In general, European regulated investors are restricted under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (the CRA
Regulation) (as amended) from using credit ratings for regulatory purposes, unless such ratings are issued
by a credit rating agency established in the EU and registered under the CRA Regulation (and such
registration has not been withdrawn or suspended), subject to transitional provisions that apply in certain
circumstances whilst the registration application is pending. Such general restriction will also apply in the
case of credit ratings issued by non-EU credit rating agencies, unless the relevant credit ratings are
endorsed by an EU-registered credit rating agency or the relevant non-EU rating agency is certified in
accordance with the CRA Regulation (and such endorsement action or certification, as the case may be, has
not been withdrawn or suspended). The list of registered and certified rating agencies published by the
European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) on its website in accordance with the CRA Regulation
is not conclusive evidence of the status of the relevant rating agency included in such list, as there may be
delays between certain supervisory measures being taken against a relevant rating agency and the
publication of the updated ESMA list. Certain information with respect to the credit rating agencies and
ratings is set out on the cover of this Base Prospectus.
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The following overview does not purport to be complete and is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety by, the
remainder of this Base Prospectus and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular Tranche of
Notes, the applicable Final Terms (or, in the case of Exempt Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement). The
relevant Issuer and any relevant Dealer may agree that Notes shall be issued in a form other than that
contemplated in the Terms and Conditions, in which event, in the case of Notes other than Exempt Notes and, if
appropriate, a supplement to the Base Prospectus or a new Base Prospectus will be published.

This Overview constitutes a general description of the Programme for the purposes of Article 22.5(3) of
Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004 implementing the Prospectus Directive.

Words and expressions defined in "Form of the Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" shall have the
same meanings in this Overview.
Issuers: UniCredit S.p.A. (UniCredit)

UniCredit Bank Ireland p.l.c. (UniCredit Ireland)

UniCredit  International Bank  (Luxembourg) S.A. (UniCredit
International Luxembourg)

Guarantor: Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland and UniCredit International Luxembourg
will be guaranteed by UniCredit.

Description: Euro Medium Term Note Programme
Arranger: UBS Limited
Co-Arranger: UniCredit Bank AG
Dealers: Barclays Bank PLC
BNP Paribas

Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank

Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited

Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Goldman Sachs International

J.P. Morgan Securities plc

Merrill Lynch International

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

Société Générale

UBS Limited

UniCredit Bank AG

and any other Dealers appointed from time to time in accordance with the
Eleventh Amended and Restated Programme Agreement.

Certain Restrictions: Each issue of Notes denominated in a currency in respect of which
particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which comply with
such laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting requirements
from time to time (see “Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling
Restrictions™) including the following restrictions applicable at the date of
this Base Prospectus.
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Programme Size:

Issuing and Principal Paying
Agent:

Trustee:

Distribution:

Currencies:

Rule 144A Option:

Institutional Accredited
Investor Option:

Registrar:
Transfer Agents:

Subordinated Notes:

Maturities:

Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland and/or UniCredit International
Luxembourg having a maturity of less than one year:

Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland and/or UniCredit International
Luxembourg having a maturity of less than one year will, if the proceeds of
the issue are accepted in the United Kingdom, constitute deposits for the
purposes of the prohibition on accepting deposits contained in section 19 of
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 unless they are issued to a
limited class of professional investors and have a denomination of at least
£100,000 or its equivalent. See “Subscription and Sale”.

Up to €60,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies calculated as
described in the Programme Agreement) outstanding at any time. The
Issuers and the Guarantor may increase the amount of the Programme in
accordance with the terms of the Programme Agreement.

Citibank, N.A., London Branch or such other agent(s) specified in the
applicable Final Terms or Pricing Supplement.

Citicorp Trustee Company Limited.

Notes may be distributed by way of private or public placement and in each
case on a syndicated or non-syndicated basis.

Notes may be denominated in euro, Sterling, U.S. dollars, yen, Renmimbi
(CNY) and, subject to any applicable legal or regulatory restrictions, any
other currency agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s).

Registered Notes may be freely traded amongst “qualified institutional
buyers” within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act (QIBS)
in accordance with Rule 144A.

Registered Notes may be privately placed with Institutional Accredited
Investors pursuant to Regulation D and may be traded in accordance with
Section 4 of the Securities Act.

Citigroup Global Markets Deutschland AG.

Citibank, N.A., London Branch and KBL European Private Bankers S.A.
Subordinated Notes may be issued by UniCredit or UniCredit Ireland.
UniCredit International Luxembourg will not issue Subordinated Notes.

The Notes will have such maturities as may be agreed between the relevant
Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s), subject to such minimum or maximum
maturities as may be allowed or required from time to time by the relevant
central bank (or equivalent body) or by any laws or regulations applicable to
the relevant Issuer or the relevant Specified Currency.

Unless otherwise permitted by current laws, regulations, directives and/or
the Bank of Italy’s requirements applicable to the issue of Subordinated
Notes by UniCredit, the Subordinated Notes must have a minimum maturity
of five years.

In the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland, unless
otherwise permitted by current laws, regulations, directives and/or the
Central Bank of Ireland requirements applicable to the issue of
Subordinated Notes, Subordinated Notes having a stated maturity must have
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Issue Price:

Form of Notes:

Fixed Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Notes:

Inflation Linked Interest
Notes:

Zero Coupon Notes:

Other provisions in relation to
Floating Rate Notes and Index
Linked Interest Notes:

a minimum maturity of at least five years (or, if issued for an indeterminate
duration, redemption of such Notes may only occur subject to five years’
notice of redemption being given or with the Central Bank of Ireland’s
consent, which will only be given where the request is made at UniCredit
Ireland’s initiative and UniCredit Ireland’s solvency is not in question). See
also “Redemption” below.

Notes may be issued on a fully-paid or in the case of Exempt Notes, a
partly-paid basis and at an issue price which is at par or at a discount to, or
premium over, par.

The Notes may be issued in bearer or registered form as described in “Form
of the Notes”. Notes may not be issued or sold in the United States in bearer
form, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S. tax regulations.

Fixed interest will be payable on such date or dates as may be agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) and on redemption
and will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction as may be
agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s).

Floating Rate Notes will bear interest at a rate determined:

€) on the same basis as the floating rate under a notional interest rate
swap transaction in the relevant Specified Currency governed by
an agreement incorporating the 2006 ISDA Definitions (as
published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association,
Inc., and as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the first
Tranche of the Notes of the relevant Series); or

(b) on the basis of the reference rate set out in the applicable Final
Terms (or, in the case of Exempt Notes, Pricing Supplement).

The margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be agreed between the
Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) for each Series of Floating Rate Notes.

Floating Rate Notes may also have a maximum interest rate, a minimum
interest rate or both.

Interest on Floating Rate Notes in respect of each Interest Period, as agreed
prior to issue by the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s), will be payable on
such Interest Payment Dates, and will be calculated on the basis of such Day
Count Fraction, as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the
relevant Dealer(s).

Payments of interest in respect of Inflation Linked Interest Notes will be
calculated by reference to one or more inflation Indices as set out in
Condition 7.

Zero Coupon Notes will be offered and sold at a discount to their nominal
amount and will not bear interest.

Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes may also have a
maximum interest rate, a minimum interest rate or both. Interest on Floating
Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes in respect of each Interest
Period, as agreed prior to issue by the relevant Issuer and the relevant
Dealer(s), will be payable on such Interest Payment Dates, and will be
calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction as may be agreed
between the Issuers and the relevant Dealer(s) (as indicated in the applicable
Final Terms).
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Exempt Notes:

Redemption:

The Notes may bear interest on a different interest basis in respect of
different interest periods. The Issuer has the option of changing the interest
basis between fixed rate and floating rate and vice versa in respect of
different periods, upon prior notification of such change in interest basis to
noteholders.

The Issuers may issue Exempt Notes which are Index Linked Notes, Dual
Currency Notes, Partly Paid Notes, Notes redeemable in one or more
instalments or Credit Linked Notes. References in this Base Prospectus to
Exempt Notes are to Notes for which no prospectus is required to be
published under the Prospectus Directive. The CSSF has neither approved
nor reviewed information contained in this Base Prospectus in connection
with Exempt Notes.

Index Linked Notes: payments of principal in respect of Index Linked
Redemption Notes or of interest in respect of Index Linked Interest Notes
will be calculated by reference to such index and/or formula or to changes
in the prices of securities or commodities or to such other factors as the
Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) may agree.

Dual Currency Notes: payments (whether in respect of principal or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Dual Currency Notes
will be made in such currencies, and based on such rates of exchange, as the
Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) may agree.

Partly Paid Notes: the Issuers may issue Notes in respect of which the issue
price is paid in separate instalments in such amounts and on such dates as
the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) may agree.

Notes redeemable in instalments: the Issuers may issue Notes which may
be redeemed in separate instalments in such amounts and on such dates as
the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) may agree.

Credit Linked Notes: the Issuers may issue Notes in respect of which the
payment of the amount of principal and/or interest (if any) will be
dependent on whether a Credit Event in respect of the Reference Entity has
occurred.

The relevant Issuer, if the Notes are Guaranteed Notes, and the Guarantor, if
any, may agree with any Dealer and the Trustee that Exempt Notes may be
issued in a form not contemplated by the Terms and Conditions of the
Notes, in which event the relevant provisions will be included in the
applicable Pricing Supplement.

The applicable Final Terms (or, in the case of Exempt Notes, the applicable
Pricing Supplement) will indicate either that the relevant Notes cannot be
redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than in the case of Exempt
Notes in specified instalments, if applicable, or for taxation reasons or, in
the case of Subordinated Notes, for regulatory reasons (subject to the prior
approval of the Bank of Italy and the Central Bank of Ireland, as
applicable), or following an Event of Default) or that such Notes will be
redeemable at the option of the relevant Issuer and/or the Noteholders. The
terms of any such redemption, including notice periods, any relevant
conditions to be satisfied and the relevant redemption dates and prices will
be indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

In the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit, early redemption
may occur only at the option of UniCredit and with the prior approval of the
Bank of Italy.
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Redemption for Indexation

Reasons:

Denomination of Notes:

Certain
Notes:

Conditions

of the

In the case of Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland,
Subordinated Notes having a stated maturity (which must be at least five
years) may be redeemed on their Maturity Date or, if of indeterminate
duration, may be redeemed where five years’ notice of redemption has been
given. Otherwise Subordinated Notes may only be redeemed with the
Central Bank of Ireland’s consent, which will only be given where the
request is made at UniCredit Ireland’s initiative and UniCredit Ireland’s
solvency is not in question.

The applicable Pricing Supplement, in the case of Exempt Notes, may
provide that Notes may be redeemable in two or more instalments of such
amounts and on such dates as are indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland and/or UniCredit International
Luxembourg having a maturity of less than one year may be subject to
restrictions on their denomination and distribution, see “Certain Restrictions
— Notes issued by UniCredit Ireland and/or UniCredit International
Luxembourg having a maturity of less than one year” above.

Under Part 1l of the Prospectus Act 2005, which implements the Prospectus
Directive in Luxembourg, prospectuses for the admission to trading of
money market instruments having a maturity at issue of less than 12 months
and complying also with the definition of securities are not subject to the
approval provisions of Part 1l and do not need to be approved by the CSSF.
Any offers to the public of such securities in Luxembourg would be subject
to the prior approval of the CSSF of a simplified prospectus pursuant to Part
111, Chapter 1 of the Prospectus Act 2005.

Inflation Linked Interest Notes may be redeemed before their stated
maturity at the option of the relevant Issuer, if the Index ceases to be
published or any changes are made to it which, in the opinion of an Expert,
constitute a fundamental change in the rules governing the Index and the
change would, in the opinion of the Expert, be detrimental to the interests of
the Noteholders.

The Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed between
the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) save that the minimum
denomination of each Note will be such amount as may be allowed or
required from time to time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent body)
or by any laws or regulations applicable to the relevant Specified Currency,
see “Certain Restrictions — Notes having a maturity of less than one year”
above, and save that the minimum denomination of each Note will be
€1,000 (or, if the Notes are denominated in a currency other than euro, the
equivalent amount in such currency) and save that any Notes issued by
UniCredit Ireland that: (i) will not be listed on any stock market and that
mature within two years will have a minimum denomination of €500,000 or
U.S.$500,000 or, in the case of Notes which are denominated in a currency
other than euro or U.S. dollars, the equivalent in that other currency of
€500,000 (such amount to be determined by reference to the relevant rate of
exchange at the date of the first publication of this Programme); and (ii) will
not be listed on any stock exchange and that do not mature within two years
will have a minimum denomination of €500,000 or its equivalent at the date
of issuance.

See elements C.8 and B.18 of "Summary of the Programme" for a
description of certain terms and conditions applicable to all Notes issued
under the Programme.
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Documents Incorporated by Reference

The following documents which have previously been published and have been filed with CSSF at the same
time as the Base Prospectus shall be incorporated in, and form part of, this Base Prospectus:

- the Terms and Conditions contained in the Base Prospectus dated 26 June 2012, pages 74 to 143
(inclusive), prepared by the Issuers in connection with the Programme,

- the audited consolidated annual financial statements as at and for each of the financial years ended 31
December, 2012 and 2011 of UniCredit;

- the audited consolidated annual financial statements as at and for each of the financial years ended 31
December, 2012 and 2011 of UniCredit Ireland;

- the audited consolidated annual financial statements as at and for each of the financial years ended 31
December, 2012 and 2011 of UniCredit International Luxembourg;

- the unaudited consolidated interim financial information as at and for the three months ended 31
March, 2013;

- the unaudited consolidated interim financial information as at and for the three months ended 31 March
2012 of UniCredit;

- the Memorandum and Articles of Association of UniCredit;
- the Memorandum and Articles of Association of UniCredit Ireland; and
- the Memorandum and Avrticles of Association of UniCredit International Luxembourg,

save that any statement contained herein or in a document which is deemed to be incorporated by reference
herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Base Prospectus to the extent that a
statement contained in any such subsequent document which is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein
modifies or supersedes such earlier statement (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise). Any statement
so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this
Base Prospectus. Any information not listed in the cross reference table below is considered as additional
information and is not required by the relevant schedules of Commission Regulation (EC) N°809/2004, save
that, for the Base Prospectus dated 26 June 2012, the not mentioned parts are either not relevant for the investors
or covered elsewhere in the Prospectus.

Following the publication of this Base Prospectus a supplement may be prepared by the Issuers and the
Guarantor and approved by the CSSF in accordance with Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive. Statements
contained in any such supplement (or contained in any document incorporated by reference therein) shall, to the
extent applicable (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise), be deemed to modify or supersede
statements contained in this Base Prospectus or in a document which is incorporated by reference in this Base
Prospectus. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except as so modified or superseded, constitute a
part of this Base Prospectus.

Copies of documents incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus can be obtained free of charge from the
registered office of each of the Issuers and from the specified office of the Paying Agents for the time being in
London and Luxembourg. Copies of documents incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus, the Base
Prospectus, as well as the Final Terms relating to each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme, will also
be published on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s website (www.bourse.lu).

The Issuers and the Guarantor will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy
relating to information included in this Base Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of any
Notes, prepare a supplement to this Base Prospectus or publish a new Base Prospectus for use in connection
with any subsequent issue of Notes.
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Documents Incorporated by Reference

The following information from UniCredit’s, UniCredit Ireland's and UniCredit Luxembourg International’s
annual and interim reports is incorporated by reference, and the following cross-reference lists are provided to
enable investors to identify specific items of information so incorporated:

Document

UniCredit Audited Consolidated Annual Financial
Statements as at and for the Financial Year Ended
31 December 2012

UniCredit Audited Consolidated Annual Financial
Statements as at and for the Financial Year Ended
31 December 2011

UniCredit Unaudited Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements as at and for the Three
Months Ended 31 March 2013

UniCredit Unaudited Consolidated Interim Report
as at and for the Three Months Ended 31 March
2012

UniCredit Ireland Audited Annual Financial

Statements as at and for the Financial Year Ended
31 December 2012

UniCredit Ireland Audited Annual Financial

Information incorporated
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Statement of changes in Shareholders’
Equity

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Notes to the Consolidated Accounts
Report of External Auditors
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Statement of changes in Shareholders’
Equity

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Notes to the Consolidated Accounts
Report of External Auditors
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Income Statement
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Income Statement
Independent Auditors' Report
Accounting Policies

Balance Sheet

Income Statement

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s
Equity

Cash Flows Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

Accounting Policies

Page numbers
88-89
90-91

91

92-93

94-95
97-484
510
130-131
133

134

135

136-137
139-464
532

16

17

16

17

8-9
10-23
24-25
26

27
28-29

30-31
32-50

11-24
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Document
Statements as at and for the Financial Year Ended
31 December 2011

UniCredit International Luxembourg Audited
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements as
at and for the Financial Year Ended 31
December 2012

UniCredit International Luxembourg Audited
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements as
at and for the Financial Year Ended 31
December 2011

Information incorporated
Balance Sheet
Income statement

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’

Equity

Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Financial Statements
Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated statement of financial
position

Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

Consolidated statement of changes in
equity

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Notes to the consolidated financial
statements

Report of the réviseur d’entreprises
agréé

Consolidated statement of financial
position

Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

Consolidated statement of changes in
equity

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Notes to the consolidated financial
statements

Report of the réviseur d’entreprises
agréé

Page numbers
25-26
27
28

29-30

31-32
33-78

8-10

3-4

5-6

7-41

Pages not
numbered in

the Report

1

5-6

7-43

8-9 (of the
Consolidated
Management
Report)
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Form of the Notes

Any reference in this section to "applicable Final Terms" shall be deemed to include a reference to "applicable
Pricing Supplement” where relevant.

The Notes of each Series will either be in bearer form, with or without Coupons attached, or registered form,
without Coupons attached. Bearer Notes will be issued outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S
under the Securities Act (Regulation S) and Registered Notes will be issued both outside the United States in
reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Regulation S and within the United States in reliance on
Rule 144A or Regulation D under the Securities Act.

BEARER NOTES

Each Tranche of Bearer Notes will initially be issued in the form of a temporary global note (a Temporary
Bearer Global Note) or, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms, a permanent Global Note (a Permanent
Bearer Global Note and, together with the Temporary Bearer Global Note, the Bearer Global Notes) which, in
either case, will:

(i if the Global Notes are intended to be issued in new global note (NGN) form, as stated in the applicable
Final Terms, be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to a common safekeeper
for Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (Euroclear) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (Clearstream,
Luxembourg); and

(ii) if the Global Notes are not intended to be issued in NGN form, be delivered on or prior to the original
issue date of the Tranche to a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

Where the Global Notes issued in respect of any Tranche are in NGN form, the applicable Final Terms will also
indicate whether or not such Global Notes are intended to be held in a manner which would allow Eurosystem
eligibility. Any indication that the Global Notes are to be so held does not necessarily mean that the Notes of
the relevant Tranche will be recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day
credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon issue or at any times during their life as such recognition
depends upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility criteria. The Common Safekeeper for NGNs will either
be Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or another entity approved by Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

Whilst any Bearer Note is represented by a Temporary Bearer Global Note, payments of principal, interest (if
any) and any other amount payable in respect of the Notes due prior to the Exchange Date (as defined below)
will be made (against presentation of the Temporary Bearer Global Note if the Temporary Bearer Global Note is
not intended to be issued in NGN form) only to the extent that certification (in a form to be provided) to the
effect that the beneficial owners of interests in such Bearer Note are not U.S. persons or persons who have
purchased for resale to any U.S. person, as required by U.S. Treasury regulations, has been received by
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable, has given a like certification (based on the
certifications it has received) to the Principal Paying Agent.

On and after the date (the Exchange Date) which is 40 days after a Temporary Bearer Global Note is issued,
interests in such Temporary Bearer Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge) upon a request as
described therein either for (a) interests in a Permanent Bearer Global Note of the same Series or (b) for
definitive Bearer Notes of the same Series with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons attached
(as indicated in the applicable Final Terms and subject, in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, to such notice
period as is specified in the applicable Final Terms), in each case against certification of beneficial ownership as
described above unless such certification has already been given, provided that purchasers in the United States
and certain U.S. persons will not be able to receive definitive Bearer Notes. The holder of a Temporary Bearer
Global Note will not be entitled to collect any payment of interest, principal or other amount due on or after the
Exchange Date unless, upon due certification, exchange of the Temporary Bearer Global Note for an interest in
a Permanent Bearer Global Note or for definitive Bearer Notes is improperly withheld or refused.

Payments of principal, interest (if any) or any other amounts on a Permanent Bearer Global Note will be made
through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (against presentation or surrender (as the case may be) of
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the Permanent Bearer Global Note) if the Permanent Bearer Global Note is not intended to be issued in NGN
form) without any requirement for certification.

The applicable Final Terms will specify that a Permanent Bearer Global Note will be exchangeable (free of
charge), in whole but not in part, for definitive Bearer Notes with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons
and talons attached upon either (a) not less than 60 days’ written notice from Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Bearer Global Note) to
the Principal Paying Agent as described therein or (b) only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event or (c) at
any time at the request of the relevant Issuer. For these purposes, Exchange Event means that (i) an Event of
Default (as defined in Condition 12) has occurred and is continuing, or (ii) the relevant Issuer has been notified
that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a continuous period of 14
days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to
cease business or have in fact done so and no successor clearing system satisfactory to the Trustee is available.
The relevant Issuer will promptly give notice to Noteholders in accordance with Condition 17 if an Exchange
Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg
(acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Bearer Global Note) may give notice to
the Principal Paying Agent requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 45 days after the
date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Principal Paying Agent.

The following legend will appear on all Permanent Global Notes and definitive Bearer Notes which have an
original maturity of more than 1 year and on all receipts and interest coupons relating to such Notes:

“ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO
LIMITATIONS UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS
PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE.”

The sections referred to provide that United States holders, with certain exceptions, will not be entitled to deduct
any loss on Bearer Notes, receipts or interest coupons and will not be entitled to capital gains treatment in
respect of any gain on any sale, disposition, redemption or payment of principal in respect of such Notes,
receipts or interest coupons.

Notes which are represented by a Bearer Global Note will only be transferable in accordance with the rules and
procedures for the time being of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be.

REGISTERED NOTES

The Registered Notes of each Tranche offered and sold in reliance on Regulation S, which will be sold to
non-U.S. persons outside the United States, will initially be represented by a global note in registered form (a
Regulation S Global Note). Prior to expiry of the distribution compliance period (as defined in Regulation S)
applicable to each Tranche of Notes, beneficial interests in a Regulation S Global Note may not be offered or
sold to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person save as otherwise provided in Condition 1 and may not be
held otherwise than through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, and such Regulation S Global Note will
bear a legend regarding such restrictions on transfer.

The Registered Notes of each Tranche may only be offered and sold in the United States or to U.S. persons in
private transactions (a) to “qualified institutional buyers” within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities
Act (QIBs) or (b) to “accredited investors” (as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) under the Securities
Act), that are institutions (Institutional Accredited Investors) who agree to purchase the Notes for their own
account and not with a view to the distribution thereof. The Registered Notes of each Tranche sold to QIBs will
be represented by a global note in registered form (a Rule 144A Global Note and, together with a Regulation S
Global Note, the Registered Global Notes).

Registered Global Notes will either (a) be deposited with a custodian for, and registered in the name of a
nominee of, DTC or (b) be deposited with a common depositary for, and registered in the name of a common
nominee of, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. Persons
holding beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes will be entitled or required, as the case may be, under the
circumstances described below, to receive physical delivery of definitive Notes in fully registered form.

The Registered Notes of each Tranche sold to Institutional Accredited Investors will be in definitive form,
registered in the name of the holder thereof (Definitive 1Al Registered Notes). Unless otherwise set forth in the
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applicable Final Terms, Definitive 1Al Registered Notes will be issued only in minimum denominations of
U.S.$500,000 and integral multiples of U.S.$1,000 in excess thereof (or the approximate equivalents in the
applicable Specified Currency). Definitive 1Al Registered Notes will be subject to the restrictions on transfer set
forth therein and will bear the restrictive legend described under “Subscription and Sale and Transfer and
Selling Restrictions”. Institutional Accredited Investors that hold Definitive Al Registered Notes may elect to
hold such Notes through DTC, but transferees acquiring the Notes in transactions exempt from Securities Act
registration pursuant to Regulation S or Rule 144 under the Securities Act (if available) may do so upon
satisfaction of the requirements applicable to such transfer as described under “Subscription and Sale and
Transfer and Selling Restrictions”. The Rule 144A Global Note and the Definitive IAI Registered Notes will be
subject to certain restrictions on transfer set forth therein and will bear a legend regarding such restrictions.

Payments of principal, interest and any other amount in respect of the Registered Global Notes will, in the
absence of provision to the contrary, be made to the person shown on the Register (as defined in Condition 7.5)
as the registered holder of the Registered Global Notes. None of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (in the case of
Guaranteed Notes), the Trustee, any Paying Agent or the Registrar will have any responsibility or liability for
any aspect of the records relating to or payments or deliveries made on account of beneficial ownership interests
in the Registered Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising, investigating, monitoring or reviewing any
records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

Payments of principal, interest or any other amount in respect of the Registered Notes in definitive form will, in
the absence of provision to the contrary, be made to the persons shown on the Register on the relevant Record
Date (as defined in Condition 7.5) immediately preceding the due date for payment in the manner provided in
that Condition.

Interests in a Registered Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for
definitive Registered Notes without receipts, interest coupons or talons attached only upon the occurrence of an
Exchange Event. For these purposes, Exchange Event means that either (a) an Event of Default has occurred
and is continuing, (b) in the case of Notes registered in the name of a nominee for DTC, either DTC has notified
the relevant Issuer that it is unwilling or unable to continue to act as depository for the Notes and no alternative
clearing system is available or DTC has ceased to constitute a clearing agency registered under the Exchange
Act, or (c) in the case of Notes registered in the name of a nominee for a common depositary for Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg, the relevant Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg have been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday,
statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so
and, in any such case, no successor clearing system is available. The relevant Issuer will promptly give notice to
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 17 if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an
Exchange Event, DTC, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of
an interest in such Registered Global Note) may give notice to the Registrar requesting exchange. Any such
exchange shall occur not later than ten days after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Registrar.

TRANSFER OF INTERESTS

Interests in a Registered Global Note may, subject to compliance with all applicable restrictions, be transferred
to a person who wishes to hold such interest in another Registered Global Note or in the form of a Definitive 1Al
Registered Note and Definitive 1Al Registered Notes may, subject to compliance with all applicable restrictions,
be transferred to a person who wishes to hold such Notes in the form of an interest in a Registered Global Note.
No beneficial owner of an interest in a Registered Global Note will be able to transfer such interest, except in
accordance with the applicable procedures of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, in each case to the
extent applicable. Registered Notes are also subject to the restrictions on transfer set forth therein and will
bear a legend regarding such restrictions, see “Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling
Restrictions”.

GENERAL

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement (as defined under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”), the Principal
Paying Agent shall arrange that, where a further Tranche of Notes is issued which is intended to form a single
Series with an existing Tranche of Notes at a point after the Issue Date of the further Tranche, the Notes of such
further Tranche shall be assigned a common code and ISIN and, where applicable, a CUSIP and CINS number
which are different from the common code, ISIN, CUSIP and CINS assigned to Notes of any other Tranche of
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the same Series until such time as the Tranches are consolidated and form a single Series, which shall not be
prior to the expiry of the distribution compliance period applicable to the Notes of such Tranche.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behalf of Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown
in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream, Luxembourg as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such
Notes (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as to
the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all
purposes save in the case of manifest error or as otherwise required by a court of competent jurisdiction or a
public official authority) shall be treated by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (in the case of Guaranteed Notes)
and their agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to
the payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of such Notes, for which purpose the bearer of the
relevant Bearer Global Note or the registered holder of the relevant Registered Global Note shall be treated by
the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (in the case of Guaranteed Notes) and their agents as the holder of such
nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant Global Note, and the
expressions Noteholder and holder of Notes and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

So long as DTC or its hominee is the registered owner or holder of a Registered Global Note, DTC or such
nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of the Notes represented by such
Registered Global Note for all purposes under the Agency Agreement and such Notes except to the extent that in
accordance with DTC’s published rules and procedures any ownership rights may be exercised by its
participants or beneficial owners through participants.

Any reference herein to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC shall, whenever the context so
permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

A Note may be accelerated by the Trustee thereof in certain circumstances described in Condition 12. In such
circumstances, where any Note is still represented by a Global Note and the Global Note (or any part thereof)
has become due and repayable in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of such Notes and payment in full
of the amount due has not been made in accordance with the provisions of the Global Note, then holders of
interests in such Global Note credited to their accounts with Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the
case may be, will become entitled to proceed directly against the relevant Issuer on the basis of statements of
account provided by Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or DTC, as the case may be, on and subject
to the terms of the Trust Deed. In addition, holders of interests in such Global Note credited to their accounts
with DTC may require DTC to deliver definitive Notes in registered form in exchange for their interest in such
Global Note in accordance with DTC’s standard operating procedures.
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NOTES WITH A DENOMINATION OF LESS THAN €100,000 (OR ITS EQUIVALENT IN ANY
OTHER CURRENCY), OTHER THAN EXEMPT NOTES

Set out below is the form of Final Terms which will be completed for each Tranche of Notes which are not
Exempt Notes and which have a denomination of less than €100,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency)
issued under the Programme.

Final Terms dated [date]
[UniCredit S.p.A. / UniCredit Bank (Ireland) p.l.c. /UniCredit International Bank (Luxembourg) S.A.]

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]
[guaranteed by UniCredit S.p.A.]
under the
€60,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Part A— CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the Base
Prospectus dated 5 July 2013 [and the supplement[s] to it dated [date] [and [date]] which [together] constitute[s]
a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive (the Base Prospectus). This document
constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus
Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Base Prospectus [as so supplemented]. Full information on
the Issuer[, the Guarantor[s]] and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these
Final Terms and the Base Prospectus.

A summary of the individual issue is annexed to these Final Terms. The Base Prospectus has been published on
the website of UniCredit www.unicreditgroup.eu, as well as on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange,
www.bourse.lu. Copies may be obtained, free of charge, from the Issuer at the address above.

[The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued
under a Base Prospectus with an earlier date.]

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the Conditions) set
forth in the Base Prospectus dated [original date] which are incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus
dated [current date]. This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes
of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated
[current date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated [date] [and [date]] which [together] constitute[s] a base
prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive (the Base Prospectus), including the Conditions
incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus. Full information on the Issuer [, the Guarantor] and the offer
of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus. A
summary of the individual issue is annexed to these Final Terms. The Base Prospectus has been published on
the website of UniCredit www.unicreditgroup.eu as well as on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange,
www.bourse.lu. Copies may be obtained, free of charge, from the Issuer at the address above.

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as “Not Applicable” (N/A). Note that the numbering should
remain as set out below, even if “Not Applicable” is indicated for individual paragraphs or subparagraphs.
Italics denote guidance for completing the Final Terms.]

[When completing any final terms, or adding any other final terms or information, consideration should be
given as to whether such terms or information constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the

need for a supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.]

[If the Notes have a maturity of less than one year from the date of their issue, the minimum denomination may
need to be £100,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.]

1. @ Series Number: [1
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Applicable Final Terms

(b) Tranche Number: [1

(© Date on which the Notes will be The Notes will be consolidated and form a single
consolidated and form a single Series with [identify earlier Tranches] on [the Issue
Series: Date/exchange of the Temporary Global Note for

interests in the Permanent Global Note, as referred to
in paragraph 27 below, which is expected to occur on
or about [date]][Not Applicable]

2. Specified Currency or Currencies: [1
3. Aggregate Nominal Amount:
(a) Series: [
(b) Tranche: [
4, Issue Price: [ ] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus

accrued interest from [insert date] (if applicable)]

5. €)] Specified Denominations:* [1

(In the case of Registered Notes, this means the
minimum integral amount in which transfers can be
made)

(b) Calculation Amount: [1

(If only one Specified Denomination, insert the
Specified Denomination

If more than one Specified Denomination, insert the
highest common factor. Note: There must be a
common factor in the case of two or more Specified
Denominations)

6. €)] Issue Date: [1
(b) Interest Commencement Date: [specify/lssue Date/Not Applicable]
(N.B. An Interest Commencement Date will not be
relevant for certain Notes, for example Zero Coupon

Notes.)

7. Maturity Date: [Fixed rate - specify date/Floating rate - Interest
Payment Date falling in or nearest to [specify month]?]

[(NB: The Maturity Date [should not be/may need to
be not] less than one year after the Issue Date)]

Notes to be issued by UniCredit Ireland which are not listed on a stock exchange and which mature within two years must have a
minimum denomination of €500,000 or US$500,000 or, in the case of Notes which are denominated in a currency other than euro
or U.S. dollars, the equivalent in that other currency of €500,000 (such amount to be determined by reference to the relevant rate
of exchange at the date of first publication of this programme).

Note that for Renminbi denominated Fixed Rate Notes, where the Interest Payment Dates are subject to modification it will be
necessary to use the second option here.
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8. Interest Basis:
9. Redemption/Payment Basis:
10. Change of Interest Basis:

11. Put/Call Options:

12. @ Status of the Notes:

(b) Date [Board] approval for issuance
of Notes [and Guarantee] obtained:

(If Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit, the
redemption of the Notes shall be subject to the prior
approval of the Bank of Italy, as set out in Condition
8.1)

[[ ] per cent. Fixed Rate]

[[ 1 per cent. Fixed Rate from [
per cent. Fixed Rate from [

Jtof
Jo[ 1]

I 1 month [LIBOR/EURIBOR/CMS Reference
Rate] +/- [ ] per cent. Floating Rate]

], then []

[Floating Rate: CMS Rate Linked Interest]

[Inflation Linked Interest]

[Zero Coupon]

(further particulars specified below)

[100 per cent.] [®]

[Specify the date when any fixed to floating rate or
viceversa change occurs or cross refer to paragraphs
14 and 16 below and identify there] [Not Applicable]
[Investor Put]

[Issuer Call]

[Regulatory Call]

[(see paragraph[s] [19][, 20]/[and] [21]]
[Senior/Subordinated]

[The loss absortion provisions set out in Condition 5.5
shall not apply to the Notes]

[1[and [], respectively]

(N.B. Only relevant where Board (or similar)
authorisation is required for the particular tranche of
Notes or related Guarantee)

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

13. Fixed Rate Note Provisions:
@ Rate(s) of Interest:
(b) Interest Payment Date(s):

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If  not applicable, delete the
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

remaining

[[ 1 per cent. per annum payable in arrear on each
Interest Payment Date] [specify other in case of
different Rates of Interest in respect of different
Interest Periods].

[[ 1 in each year up to and including the Maturity

87



Applicable Final Terms

14.

(©)

(d)

()

()

()]

Business Day Convention

Fixed Coupon Amount(s):
(Applicable to Notes in definitive
form)

Broken Amount(s): (Applicable to
Notes in definitive form)

Day Count Fraction:

Determination Date[s]:

Floating Rate Note Provisions:

(@)

(b)

(©
(d)

(€)

()

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):

Manner in which the Rate of Interest
and Interest Amount are to be
determined:

Party responsible for calculating the
Rate of Interest and Interest Amount
(if not the Agent):

Screen Rate Determination:

Applicable for Fixed Rate Notes denominated in Renminbi.

Date]

(Amend appropriately in the case of irregular
coupons)

[Modified Following Business Day Convention/Not
Applicable]

(NB. For certain Renminbi denominated Fixed Rate
Notes, the Interest Payment Dates are subject to
modification, insert Modified Following Business Day
Convention)

[ 1 per Calculation Amount

(N.B. Specify different Fixed Coupon Amounts if
different Rates of Interest are specified as being
applicable in respect of different Interest Periods)

1l ] per Calculation Amount, payable on the
Interest Payment Date falling [infon] [ ]][Not
Applicable]

[30/360]
(Fixed)]?

[Actual/Actual  (ICMA)] [Actual/365

i ] in each year][Not Applicable]

(Only relevant where Day Count Fraction is
Actual/Actual (ICMA). In such a case, insert regular
interest payment dates, ignoring issue date or
maturity date in the case of a long or short first or last
coupon)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)
[]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention]

[]

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination]

[]
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()]

- Reference Rate(s):

— Relevant Financial Centre:

- Reference Currency:
- Designated Maturity:

- Specified Time:

(M Interest
Determination
Date(s):

(i) Relevant  Screen
Page:

CMS Rate definitions:

ISDA Determination:
(1) Floating Rate Option:
(i) Designated Maturity:

(iii) Reset Date:

[[ 1 month [LIBOR/EURIBOR/CMS Reference
Rate]]/[CMS Rate]]

[London/Brussels/specify other Relevant Financial
Centre] (only relevant for CMS Rate)

[®] (only relevant for CMS Rate)
[®] (only relevant for CMS Rate)

[®] in the Relevant Financial Centre (only relevant for
CMS Rate)

[]

(Second London Business Day prior to the start of
each Interest Period if LIBOR (other than Sterling or
euro LIBOR), first day of each Interest Period if
Sterling LIBOR and the second day on which the
TARGET2 System is open prior to the start of each
Interest Period if EURIBOR, euro LIBOR or CMS
Rate where the reference currency is euro)

(In the case of a CMS Rate where the Reference
Currency is euro): [Second day on which the
TARGET?2 system is open prior to the start of each
interest Period]

(In the case of a CMS Rate where the Reference
Currency is other than euro): [Second (specify type of
day) prior to the start of each Interest Period]

[ISDAFIX2 or any successor screen page] [insert
other screen page]

(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters EURIBORO01
ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate or
amend the fallback provisions appropriately)

(In the case of a CMS Linked Interest Note, specify
relevant screen page and any applicable headings and
captions)

[Cap means [ ] per cent. per annum]

[Floor means [ ] per cent. per annum]

[Leverage means [ ] per cent.]

[]
[]
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(h) Difference in Rates:
- CMS Rate 1:

- Manner in which CMS Rate
1 is to be determined:

- CMS Rate 2:

- Manner in which CMS Rate
2 is to be determined:

(i Margin(s):

M Minimum Rate of Interest:
(K) Maximum Rate of Interest:
U] Day Count Fraction:
15. Inflation Linked Interest Note Provisions
@ Inflation Index:
(b) Inflation Index Sponsor:
(© Index Factor:

(In the case of a LIBOR or EURIBOR based option,
the first day of the Interest Period. In the case of a
CMS Linked Interest Note, if based on euro then the
first day of each Interest Period and if otherwise to be
checked.)

[Applicable]/[Not Applicable]

[ ]

[Reference Rate determined in accordance with
Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Rate determined in
accordance with ISDA Determination/ CMS Rate
determined in accordance with ISDA Determination]

(N.B. Sub-paragraphs (vi) and (vii) above to be
completed in relation to CMS Rate 1)

[ ]

[Reference Rate determined in accordance with
Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Rate determined in
accordance with ISDA Determination/ CMS Rate
determined in accordance with ISDA Determination]

(N.B. Sub-paragraphs (vi) and (vii) above to be
completed in relation to CMS Rate 1)

[Not Applicable]/[ [+/-] [ ] per cent. per annum
[ 1 per cent. per annum

[ 1 per cent. per annum

[[Actual/Actual (ISDA)][Actual/Actual]
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

[30/360][360/360][Bond Basis]
[30E/360][Eurobond basis]

30E/360 (ISDA)]*

(See Condition 6 for alternatives)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[ ]

(Give or annex details of index/indices)

[ ]

[ 1 [Specify the relevant Index Factor] [Not
Applicable]

Actual/365(Fixed) is applicable to Renminbi denominated Fixed Rate Notes.
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(d)

(e)
(f
()]

(h)

(i)
@)
(k)
(1

(m)
(n)

(0)
(9)
(@)

(r)
(s)
(t)

(u)

Party responsible for calculating the
Rate(s) of Interest and/or Interest
Amount(s) (if not the Principal
Paying Agent):

Determination Date(s):

Interest or calculation period(s):

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):
Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Margin:

Day Count Fraction:

Commencement Date of the
Inflation Index:

Reference Month:
Reference Bond:

Related Bond:

Fallback Bond:
Cut-Off Date:

End Date:

Additional Disruption Events:

[name] shall be the Calculation Agent (no need to
specify if the Principal Paying Agent is to perform this
function)]

[1]

[1]

[1]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention]
(Note that this item adjusts the end date of each
Interest Period (and, consequently, also adjusts the
length of the Interest Period and the amount of
interest due). In relation to the actual date on which

Noteholders are entitled to receive payment of
interest, see also Condition 7.8 (Payments Day).)

[]
[ ] percent. per annum
[ ] percent. per annum

[[insert Margin] per cent. per annum] [Not
Applicable]

[]

[ 1[Specify the relevant commencement month of the
retail price index]

[ ]

[ ]

[Applicable]/[Not Applicable]

The Related Bond is: [ ] [Fallback Bond]
The issuer of the Related Bond is: [ ]
[Applicable]/[Not Applicable]

[As per Conditions]/[specify other]

[ ]

(This is necessary whenever Fallback Bond is
applicable)

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
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(v) Trade Date:

16. Change of Interest Basis Provisions:

(i) Switch Option:

(ii) Switch Option Expiry Date:
(iii)

17. Zero Coupon Note Provisions:

Switch Option Effective Date:

€)] Accrual Yield:
(b) Reference Price:

(© Day Count Fraction in relation to
Early Redemption Amounts::

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

18. Notice periods for Condition 8.2:

19. Issuer Call:

@ Optional Redemption Date(s):
(b) Optional Redemption Amount and

method, if any, of calculation of
such amount(s):

(© Reference Bond:

[ ]
[Applicable]/[Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-

paragraphs of this paragraph)
(N.B. To be completed in addition to paragraphs 13
and 14 (as appropriate) if any fixed to floating or
fixed reset rate change occurs)

[Applicable — [specify details of the change(s) in
Interest Basis and the relevant Interest Periods to
which the change(s) in Interest Basis applies]/[Not
Applicable]

(N.B. The Issuer must give notice of the exercise of the
Switch Option to Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 17 on or prior to the relevant Switch Option
Expiry Date)

[ ]
[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[ 1 per cent. per annum

[

[30/360]

[Actual/360]

[Actual/365]

Minimum period: [ ] days

Maximum period: [ ] days

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[

1 ] per Calculation Amount][[Spens

Amount][Make-whole Amount]]

[Set out appropriate variable details in this pro forma,
for example reference obligation]

[Insert applicable Reference Bond/FA Selected Bond]
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20.

21.

(d)
(€)
()

Quotation Time:
Redemption Margin;

If redeemable in part:

(i) Minimum Redemption
Amount:

(ii) Maximum Redemption
Amount:

Notice period:

Regulatory Call:

(@)
(b)

Minimum Disqualification Amount

Early Redemption Amount payable
on redemption for regulatory reasons
(in the case of Subordinated Notes
only and subject to the prior
approval of the Bank of Italy and/or
the Central Bank of Ireland, as
applicable) as contemplated by
Condition 8.3 and/or the method of
calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in
Condition 8.6 (Redemption and
Purchase — Early Redemption
Amounts):

Investor Put:

(@)
(b)
(©)

Optional Redemption Date(s):
Optional Redemption Amount:

Notice periods:

[11.00 a.m. [London/specify other] time]

[[ 1 per cent/Not Applicable]

[]
[]
Minimum period: [ ] days
Maximum period: [ ] days

(N.B. When setting notice periods, the Issuer is
advised to consider the practicalities of distribution of
information through intermediaries, for example,
clearing systems (which require a minimum of 5
business days' notice for a call) and custodians, as
well as any other notice requirements which may
apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the
Agent or Trustee.)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

remaining

(N.B. Only relevant in the case of Subordinated Notes)

[ ] per cent. of the aggregate outstanding nominal
amount of the Notes

[[ ] per Calculation Amount/As per Condition 8.6]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining

subparagraphs of this paragraph)
[]
[ ] per Calculation Amount

Minimum period: [ ] days
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22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Early Redemption Amount payable on
redemption for taxation reasons (as
contemplated by Condition 8.2) or on event
of default:

RMB Currency Event:

Spot Rate :

Party responsible for calculating the Spot
Rate:

Relevant Currency:

Maximum period: [ ] days

(N.B. When setting notice periods, the Issuer is
advised to consider the practicalities of distribution of
information through intermediaries, for example,
clearing systems (which require a minimum of 15
business days' notice for a put) and custodians, as
well as any other notice requirements which may
apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the
Agent or Trustee).

[[ ] per Calculation Amount/As per Condition 8.2]
[See also paragraph 20 (Regulatory Call)] (Delete this
cross-reference unless the Notes are Subordinated
Notes and the Regulatory Call is applicable)
[Applicable] [Not Applicable]

(i) Relevant Spot Rate Screen Page:
Applicable]

[®]/[Not

(i) Relevant Valuation Time: [®]/[Not Applicable]

[Calculation Agent]

[specify] [Not Applicable]

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

217.

Form of Notes

@ Form of Notes:

Include for Notes that are to be offered in Belgium.

[Bearer Notes:

[Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for
definitive Notes on and after the Exchange Date]

[Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for a
Permanent Bearer Global Note which is exchangeable
for definitive Notes [on 60 days’ notice given at any
time/only upon an Exchange Event]]

[Permanent Bearer Global Note exchangeable for
definitive Notes [on 60 days’ notice given at any
time/only upon an Exchange Event]]

[Notes shall not be physically delivered in Belgium,
except to a clearing system, a depository or other
institution for the purpose of their immobilisation in
accordance with article 4 of the Belgian Law of 14
December 2005.°]

[Registered Notes:

Regulation S Global Note (U.S.$[ ] hominal amount)
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(b) New Global Note:

28. Additional Financial Centre(s):

29. [RMB Settlement Centre(s):

30. Talons for future Coupons to be attached to
Definitive Notes:

registered in the name of a nominee for [DTC/a
common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg]/Rule 144A Global Note (U.S.$[ ]
nominal amount) registered in the name of a nominee
for [DTC/a common depositary for Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg]/Definitive 1Al Registered
Notes (specify nominal amounts)]

[Yes] [No]

[Not Applicable/give details]
(Note that this paragraph relates to the place of
payment and not Interest Period end dates to which
subparagraph 15(c) relates)

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Yes, as the Notes have more than 27 coupon
payments, Talons may be required if, on exchange into
definitive form, more than 27 coupon payments are
still to be made/No]

[[Relevant third-party information,] has been extracted from [specify source]. The Issuer [and the Guarantor]
confirm[s] that such information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able
to ascertain from information published by [specify source], no facts have been omitted which would
render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.]

Signed on behalf of [name of the Issuer]:

By
Duly authorised
By -

Duly authorised

[Signed on behalf of UniCredit S.p.A.:

BY . i ————————
Duly authorised
By i ————

Duly authorised]
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Part B— OTHER INFORMATION

1. LISTING
TRADING:

AND  ADMISSION TO

€)] Estimate of total expenses related to
admission to trading:*

2. RATINGS

Ratings:

[Application has been made by the Issuer (or on its
behalf) for the Notes to be listed on the Official List of
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and admitted to
trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s
regulated market. with effect from [ ].]

[Application is expected to be made by the Issuer (or
on its behalf) for the Notes to be listed on the Official
List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and admitted
to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s
regulated market with effect from [ ].] [Not
Applicable.]

(Where documenting a fungible issue need to indicate
that original Notes are already admitted to trading)

[

[The Notes to be issued [[have been]/[are expected to
be]] rated]/[The following ratings reflect ratings
assigned to Notes of this type issued under the
Programme generally]:

[insert details]] by [insert the legal name of the
relevant credit rating agency entity(ies) and
associated defined terms].

[Each of [defined terms] is established in the European
Union and is registered under the Regulation (EC) No.
1060/2009 (as amended) (the CRA Regulation).]]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of
the ratings if this has previously been published by the
rating provider.]

(The above disclosure should reflect the rating
allocated to Notes of the type being issued under the
Programme generally or, where the issue has been
specifically rated, that rating.)

3. INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE

[Save for any fees payable to the [Dealers/Managers], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved

in the issue of the Notes has an interest material to the offer.

The [Dealers/Managers] and their

affiliates have engaged, and may in the future engage, in investment banking and/or commercial
banking transactions with, and may perform other services for, the Issuer [and the Guarantor] and
[its/their] affiliates in the ordinary course of business - Amend as appropriate if there are other

interests]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute "significant new factors" and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the
Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]
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REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES

(@)
(b)

(©)

Estimated net proceeds:

Estimated total expenses:

YIELD (Fixed Rate Notes only)

Indication of yield:

(]

(If proceeds are intended for more than one use will
need to split out and present in order of priority. If
proceeds insufficient to fund all proposed uses state
amount and sources of other funding)

(]

[Expenses are required to be broken down into each
principal intended “use” and presented in order of
priority of such “use’]

(]

HISTORIC INTEREST RATES (Floating Rate Notes Only)

Details of historic [LIBOR/EURIBOR/CMS Reference Rate] rates can be obtained from [Reuters].

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

(@)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(€)

(f)
()]

(h)

(i)

ISIN Code:
Common Code:
[CUSIP: [@]]
[CINS: [®]]

Any clearing system(s) other than

Euroclear Bank S.A/N.V. and
Clearstream  Banking,  société
anonyme and  the relevant

identification number(s):
Delivery:

Names and addresses of additional
Paying Agent(s) (if any):

Deemed delivery of clearing system
notices for the purposes of
Condition 17 (Notices):

Intended to be held in a manner
which would allow Eurosystem
eligibility:

(]
(]
(]
(]

[Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]

Delivery [against/free of] payment

(]

Any notice delivered to Noteholders through the
clearing systems will be deemed to have been given on
the [business] day after the day on which it was given
to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

[Yes. Note that the designation "yes" simply means
that the Notes are intended upon issue to be deposited
with one of the ICSDs as common safekeeper and does
not necessarily mean that the Notes will be recognised
as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy
and intra day credit operations by the Eurosystem
either upon issue or at any or all times during their life.
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8.

DISTRIBUTION

(i)
(i)

(iii)
(iv)
v)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

Method of distribution:
If syndicated, names and addresses

of Managers and underwriting
commitments:

Date of [Subscription] Agreement:
Stabilising Manager(s) (if any):

If non-syndicated, name and address
of relevant Dealer:

Total commission and concession:

U.S. Selling Restrictions:

Non-exempt Offer:

Such recognition will depend upon the ECB being
satisfied that Eurosystem eligibility criteria have been
met.]/

[No. Whilst the designation is specified as "no" at the
date of these Final Terms, should the Eurosystem
eligibility criteria be amended in the future such that
the Notes are capable of meeting them the Notes may
then be deposited with one of the ICSDs as common
safekeeper. Note that this does not necessarily mean
that the Notes will then be recognised as eligible
collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra
day credit operations by the Eurosystem at any time
during their life. Such recognition will depend upon
the ECB being satisfied that Eurosystem eligibility
criteria have been met.]]

[Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

[Not  Applicable/give addresses  and

underwriting commitments]

names,

(Include names and addresses of entities agreeing to
underwrite the issue on a firm commitment basis and
names and addresses of the entities agreeing to place
the issue without a firm commitment or on a "best
efforts” basis if such entities are not the same as the
Managers.)

[ ] [Not Applicable]
[Not Applicable/give name]

[Not Applicable/give name and address]

[ ] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount
[Reg. S Compliance Category [1/2/3]; TEFRA
D/TEFRA C/TEFRA not applicable]]

[Not Applicable] [An offer of the Notes may be made
by the Managers [, [insert names of financial
intermediaries receiving consent (specific consent)]
(the Initial Authorised Offerors)] [and any additional
financial intermediaries who have or obtain the Issuer's
consent to use the Base Prospectus in connection with
the Non-exempt Offer and who are identified on the
Issuer's website at www.unicreditgroup.eu as an
Authorised Offeror] (together [with any financial
intermediaries granted General Consent], being
persons to whom the issuer has given consent, the
Authorised Offerors) other than pursuant to Article
3(2) of the Prospectus Directive in [specify relevant
Member State(s) from those identified in the inside
cover as being the Member States where the issuer
intends to make Non-exempt Offers, which must
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(ix)
)

General Consent:

Other conditions to consent:

therefore be jurisdictions where the Base Prospectus
and any supplements have been passported (in
addition to the jurisdiction where approved and
published)] (the Public Offer Jurisdictions) during
the period from [specify date] until [specify date or a
formula such as "the Issue Date" or "the date which
falls [®] Business Days thereafter"] (the Offer
Period). See further Paragraph [9 below].]

[Not Applicable][Applicable]

[Not Applicable][Add here any other conditions to
which the consent given is subject].

(N.B. Consider any local regulatory requirements
necessary to be fulfilled so as to be able to make a
non-exempt offer [where there is no exemption from
the obligation under the Prospectus Directive to
publish a prospectus] in relevant jurisdictions. No
such offer should be made in any relevant jurisdiction
until those requirements have been met. Non-exempt
offers may only be made into jurisdictions in which the
base prospectus (and any supplement) has been
notified/passported.)

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER

(Delete whole section if sub-paragraph 8(viii) above is specified to be Not Applicable because there is
no Non-exempt Offer)

(@)
(b)

(©)
(d)

(€)

()

()

(h)

(i)

Offer Price:

Conditions to which the offer is
subject:

Offer Period:

Description of the
process:

application

Details of the minimum and/or
maximum amount of application:

Description of possibility to reduce
subscriptions and manner for
refunding excess amount paid by
applicants:

Details of the method and time
limits for paying up and delivering
the Notes:

Manner in and date on which results
of the offer are to be made public:

Procedure for exercise of any right
of pre-emption, negotiability of
subscription rights and treatment of
subscription rights not exercised:

[Issue Price/Not Applicable/specify]

[Not Applicable/give details]

See paragraph [8(viii)] above

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give details]
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Applicable Final Terms

@)

(k)

(1

(m)

Whether tranche(s) have been
reserved for certain countries:

Process for notification to applicants
of the amount allotted and the
indication whether dealing may
begin before notification is made:

Amount of any expenses and taxes
specifically — charged to  the
subscriber or purchaser:

Name(s) and address(es), to the
extent known to the Issuer, of the
placers in the various countries
where the offer takes place.

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give details]

[insert name] [insert address] [The Authorised
Offerors identified in paragraph [8] above.]
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NOTES WITH A DENOMINATION OF €100,000 (OR ITS EQUIVALENT IN ANY OTHER
CURRENCY) OR MORE, OTHER THAN EXEMPT NOTES

Set out below is the form of Final Terms which will be completed for each Tranche of Notes which are not
Exempt Notes and which have a denomination of €100,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency) or more
issued under the Programme.

[Date]
[UniCredit S.p.A. / UniCredit Bank (Ireland) p.l.c. / UniCredit International Bank (Luxembourg) S.A.]

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]
[guaranteed by UniCredit S.p.A.]
under the
€60,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Part A— CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the Base
Prospectus dated 5 July 2013 [and the supplement][s] to it dated [date] [and [date]] which [together] constitute[s]
a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive (the Base Prospectus). This document
constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus
Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Base Prospectus [as so supplemented]. Full information on
the Issuer[, the Guarantor[s]] and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these
Final Terms and the Base Prospectus. The Base Prospectus has been published on the website of UniCredit
www.unicreditgroup.eu, as well as on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, www.bourse.lu. Copies
may be obtained, free of charge, from the Issuer at the address above.

[The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued
under a Base Prospectus with an earlier date.]

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the Conditions) set
forth in the Base Prospectus dated [original date] which are incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus
dated [current date]. This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes
of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated
[current date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated [date] [and [date]] which [together] constitute[s] a base
prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive (the Base Prospectus), including the Conditions
incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus. Full information on the Issuer [, the Guarantor] and the offer
of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus.
The Base Prospectus has been published on the website of UniCredit www.unicreditgroup.eu as well as on the
website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, www.bourse.lu. Copies may be obtained, free of charge, from the
Issuer at the address above.

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as “Not Applicable” (N/A). Note that the numbering should
remain as set out below, even if “Not Applicable” is indicated for individual paragraphs or subparagraphs.
Italics denote guidance for completing the Final Terms.]

[If the Notes have a maturity of less than one year from the date of their issue, the minimum denomination may
need to be £100,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.]

1. @) Series Number: []
(b) Tranche Number: [1
(© Date on which the Notes will be  The Notes will be consolidated and form a single Series
consolidated and form a single with [identify earlier Tranches] on [the Issue
Series: Date/exchange of the Temporary Global Note for interests

in the Permanent Global Note, as referred to in paragraph
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Applicable Final Terms

Specified Currency or Currencies:
Aggregate Nominal Amount:
(@) Series:

(b) Tranche:

Issue Price:

@ Specified Denominations:*
(b) Calculation Amount:

€)] Issue Date:

(b) Interest Commencement Date:

Maturity Date:

[®] below, which is expected to occur on or about
[date]][Not Applicable]

[]

[]
[]

[ 1 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus
accrued interest from [insert date] (if applicable)]

[]

(In the case of Registered Notes, this means the minimum
integral amount in which transfers can be made)

(N.B. Notes must have a minimum denomination of EUR
100,000 (or equivalent))

(Note — where multiple denominations above [€100,000]
or equivalent are being used the following sample
wording should be followed:

"[€100,000] and integral multiples of [€1,000] in excess
thereof up to and including [€199,000]. No Notes in
definitive form will be issued with a denomination above
[€199,000]."))

[]

(If only one Specified Denomination, insert the Specified
Denomination

If more than one Specified Denomination, insert the
highest common factor. Note: There must be a common
factor in the case of two or more Specified
Denominations)

[]

[specify/lssue Date/Not Applicable]

(N.B. An Interest Commencement Date will not be
relevant for certain Notes, for example Zero Coupon
Notes.)

[Fixed rate - specify date/Floating rate - Interest Payment
Date falling in or nearest to [specify month]?]

Notes to be issued by UniCredit Ireland with a minimum maturity of two years which are not listed on a stock exchange
must have a minimum denomination of €500,000 or its equivalent at date of issuance. Notes to be issued by UniCredit
Ireland which are not listed on a stock exchange and which mature within two years must have a minimum
denomination of €500,000 or US$500,000 or, in the case of Notes which are denominated in a currency other than euro
or U.S. dollars, the equivalent in that other currency of €500,000 (such amount to be determined by reference to the
relevant rate of exchange at the date of first publication of this programme).
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Applicable Final Terms

10.

11.

12.

Interest Basis:

Redemption/Payment Basis:

Change of Interest Basis:

Put/Call Options:

€)] Status of the Notes:

(b) Date [Board] approval for
issuance  of  Notes [and
Guarantee] obtained:

[(NB: The Maturity Date [should not be/may need to be
not] less than one year after the Issue Date)]

(If Upper Tier 11 Subordinated Notes issued by UniCredit,
the redemption of the Notes shall be subject to the prior
approval of the Bank of Italy, as set out in Condition 8.1)

[[ 1 per cent. Fixed Rate]

[[ ] per cent. Fixed Rate from[  ]Jto[ 1, then[] per
cent. Fixed Rate from[ Jto[ 1]

[[ 1 month [LIBOR/EURIBOR/CMS Reference Rate]
+/- [ ] per cent. Floating Rate]

[Floating Rate: CMS Rate Linked Interest]

[Inflation Linked Interest]

[Zero Coupon]

(further particulars specified below)

[100 per cent.][®]

[Specify the date when any fixed to floating rate or
viceversa change occurs or cross refer to paragraphs 13
and 14 below and identify there] [Not Applicable]
[Investor Put]

[Issuer Call]

[Regulatory Call]

[(see paragraph[s] [19]/[,20][and][21]]

[Senior/ Subordinated]

[The loss absortion provisions set out in Condition 5.5
shall not apply to the Notes]

[ ] [and [ 1, respectively]
(N.B. Only relevant where Board (or similar)
authorisation is required for the particular tranche of
Notes or related Guarantee)

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

13.

Fixed Rate Note Provisions:

@ Rate(s) of Interest:

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

[[ 1 percent. per annum payable in arrear on each Interest
Payment Date] [specify other in case of different Rates of

Note that for Renminbi denominated Fixed Rate Notes, where the Interest Payment Dates are subject to modification it will be

necessary to use the second option here
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Applicable Final Terms

14,

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

(f)
()]

Interest Payment Date(s):

Business Day Convention

Fixed Coupon  Amount(s):
(Applicable to Notes in definitive
form)

Broken Amount(s): (Applicable
to Notes in definitive form)

Day Count Fraction:

Determination Date[s]:

Floating Rate Note Provisions:

(@)

(b)

(©)
(d)

(€)

(f)

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):
Manner in which the Rate of
Interest and Interest Amount are
to be determined:

Party responsible for calculating
the Rate of Interest and Interest
Amount (if not the Agent):
Screen Rate Determination:

- Reference Rate(s):

- Relevant Financial

Interest in respect of different Interest Periods].
[[ ]in each year up to and including the Maturity Date
(Amend appropriately in the case of irregular coupons)

[Modified Following Business Day Convention/Not
Applicable]

(NB. For certain Renminbi denominated Fixed Rate
Notes, the Interest Payment Dates are subject to

modification, insert Modified Following Business Day
Convention)

[ 1 per Calculation Amount
(N.B. Specify different Fixed Coupon Amounts if different
Rates of Interest are specified as being applicable in

respect of different Interest Periods)

[ [ ] per Calculation Amount, payable on the Interest
Payment Date falling [infon] [ ]][Not Applicable]

[30/360] [Actual/Actual (ICMA)]

1l ] in each year][Not Applicable]

(Only  relevant where Day Count Fraction is
Actual/Actual (ICMA). In such a case, insert regular
interest payment dates, ignoring issue date or maturity
date in the case of a long or short first or last coupon)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

[]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention]

[]

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination]

[[ 1 month [LIBOR/EURIBOR/CMS Reference
Rate]]/[CMS Rate]]
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Applicable Final Terms

()

Centre:

- Reference Currency:
- Designated Maturity:

- Specified Time

(M Interest
Determination
Date(s):

(i) Relevant

Screen Page:

CMS Rate definitions:

ISDA Determination:
(1) Floating Rate Option:
(i) Designated Maturity:

(iii) Reset Date:

[London/Brussels/specify  other Relevant Financial
Centre] (only relevant for CMS Rate)

[®] (only relevant for CMS Rate)
[®] (only relevant for CMS Rate)

[®] in the Relevant Financial Centre (only relevant for
CMS Rate)

[]

(Second London Business Day prior to the start of each
Interest Period if LIBOR (other than Sterling or euro
LIBOR), first day of each Interest Period if Sterling
LIBOR and the second day on which the TARGET2
System is open prior to the start of each Interest Period if
EURIBOR, euro LIBOR, or CMS Rate when the reference
currency is euro)

(In the case of a CMS Rate where the Reference Currency
is euro): [Second day on which the TARGET?2 system is
open prior to the start of each interest Period]

(In the case of a CMS Rate where the Reference Currency
is other than euro): [Second (specify type of day) prior to
the start of each Interest Period]

[ISDAFIX2 or any successor screen page] [insert other
screen page]

(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters EURIBORO1
ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate or
amend the fallback provisions appropriately)

(In the case of a CMS Linked Interest Note, specify
relevant screen page and any applicable headings and
captions)

[Cap means [ ] per cent. per annum]

[Floor means [ ] per cent. per annum]

[Leverage means [ ] per cent.]

[]
[]
[ ]

(In the case of a LIBOR or EURIBOR based option, the
first day of the Interest Period. In the case of a CMS
Linked Interest Note, if based on euro then the first day of
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Applicable Final Terms

15.

(h)

(i)
)
(k)
(1

Difference in Rates:
- CMS Rate 1:
- Manner in which CMS

Rate 1 is to be
determined:

- CMS Rate 2:

— Manner in which Rate 2
is to be determined:

Margin(s):
Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

Inflation Linked Interest Note Provisions

(@)

(b)
(©
(d)

(€)
()

Inflation Index:

Inflation Index Sponsor:

Index Factor:

Party responsible for calculating
the Rate(s) of Interest and/or
Interest Amount(s) (if not the
Principal Paying Agent):

Determination Date(s):

Interest or calculation period(s):

each Interest Period and if otherwise to be checked.)

[Applicable]/[Not Applicable]

[ ]

[Reference Rate determined in accordance with Screen
Rate Determination/ISDA Rate determined in accordance
with ISDA Determination/ CMS Rate determined in
accordance with ISDA Determination]

(N.B. Sub-paragraphs (vi) and (vii) above to be completed
in relation toCMS Rate 1)

[ ]

[Reference Rate determined in accordance with Screen
Rate Determination/ISDA Rate determined in accordance
with ISDA Determination/ CMS Rate determined in
accordance with ISDA Determination]

(N.B. Sub-paragraphs (vi) and (vii) above to be completed
in relation to CMS Rate 1)

[Not Applicable] [[+/-] [ ] per cent. per annum]
[ 1 per cent. per annum

[ 1 per cent. per annum

[[Actual/Actual (ISDA)][Actual/Actual]
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

[30/360][360/360][Bond Basis]
[30E/360][Eurobond basis]

30E/360 (ISDA)]

(See Condition 6 for alternatives)
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

[ ]

(Give or annex details of index/indices)

[ ]

[ 1I[Specify the relevant Index Factor] [Not Applicable]

[name] shall be the Calculation Agent (no need to specify
if the Principal Paying Agent is to perform this function)]

[ ]
[ ]
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Applicable Final Terms

16.

(¢))

(h)

)
(k)
U]
(m)
(n)

(0)

(9)

(@)

(r)

(t)

(u)
v)

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):
Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:
Margin:

Day Count Fraction:

Commencement Date of the

Inflation Index:
Reference Month:
Reference Bond:

Related Bond:

Fallback Bond:
Cut-Off Date:

End Date:

Additional Disruption Events:

Trade Date:

Change of Interest Basis Provisions:

[ ]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention]

(Note that this item adjusts the end date of each Interest
Period (and, consequently, also adjusts the length of the
Interest Period and the amount of interest due). In
relation to the actual date on which Noteholders are

entitled to receive payment of interest, see also Condition
7.8 (Payments Day).)

[1]

[ ]per cent. per annum

[ ]percent. per annum

[[insert Margin] per cent. per annum] [Not Applicable]

[ ]

[ 1[Specify the relevant commencement month of the
retail price index]

[ ]

[ ]

[Applicable]/[Not Applicable]
The Related Bond is: [ ] [Fallback Bond]

The issuer of the Related Bond is: [ ]
[Applicable]/[Not Applicable]

[As per Conditions]/[specify other]

[ ]

(This is necessary whenever Fallback Bond is applicable)
[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[ ]

[Applicable]/[Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

(N.B. To be completed in addition to paragraphs 13 and
14 (as appropriate) if any fixed to floating or fixed reset
rate change occurs)
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Applicable Final Terms

17.

(i)

(i)
(iii)

Switch Option;

Switch Option Expiry Date:

Switch Option Effective Date:

Zero Coupon Note Provisions:

(@)
(b)
(©

Accrual Yield:
Reference Price:

Day Count Fraction in relation to
Early Redemption Amounts:

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

18.

19.

Notice periods for Condition 8.2:

Issuer Call:

@ Optional Redemption Date(s):

(b) Optional Redemption Amount
and method, if any, of calculation
of such amount(s):

(© Reference Bond:

(d) Quotation Time:

(e) Redemption Margin:

U If redeemable in part:

(1) Minimum Redemption
Amount:

[Applicable — [specify details of the change(s) in Interest
Basis and the relevant Interest Periods to which the
change(s) in Interest Basis applies]/[Not Applicable]

(N.B. The Issuer must give notice of the exercise of the
Switch Option to Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 12 on or prior to the relevant Switch Option
Expiry Date)

[ ]

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

[ 1 per cent. per annum
[

[30/360]

[Actual/360]
[Actual/365]
Minimum period: [ ] days
Maximum period: [ ] days
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

[]

(L 1 per Calculation
Amount][Make-whole Amount]]

Amount][[Spens

[Set out appropriate variable details in this pro forma, for
example reference obligation]

[Insert applicable Reference Bond/FA Selected Bond]
[11.00 a.m. [London/specify other] time]

[[ 1 per cent/Not Applicable]

[]
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20.

21.

(i) Maximum Redemption
Amount:

Notice period:

Regulatory Call:

(@)

(b)

Minimum Disqualification
Amount

Early  Redemption  Amount
payable on redemption for

regulatory reasons (in the case of
Subordinated Notes only and
subject to the prior approval of
the Bank of Italy and/or the
Central Bank of Ireland, as
applicable) as contemplated by
Condition 8.3 and/or the method
of calculating the same (if
required or if different from that
set out in Condition 8.6
(Redemption and Purchase -
Early Redemption Amounts):

Investor Put:

(@)
(b)
(©)

Optional Redemption Date(s):
Optional Redemption Amount:

Notice periods:

[]
Minimum period: [ ] days
Maximum period: [ ] days

(N.B. When setting notice periods, the Issuer is advised to
consider the practicalities of distribution of information
through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems
(which require a minimum of 5 business days' notice for a
call) and custodians, as well as any other notice
requirements which may apply, for example, as between
the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee.)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

(N.B. Only relevant in the case of Subordinated Notes)

[ 1 per cent. of the aggregate outstanding nominal amount
of the Notes

[[ ] per Calculation Amount/As per Condition 8.6]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of
this paragraph)

[]

[ 1 per Calculation Amount
Minimum period: [ ] days
Maximum period: [ ] days

(N.B. When setting notice periods, the Issuer is advised to
consider the practicalities of distribution of information

through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems
(which require a minimum of 15 business days' notice for
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22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

Early Redemption Amount payable on
redemption for taxation reasons (as
contemplated by Condition 8.2) or on
event of default:

RMB Currency Event:

Spot Rate :

Party responsible for calculating the Spot
Rate:

Relevant Currency:

a put) and custodians, as well as any other notice
requirements which may apply, for example, as between
the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee).

[[ ] per Calculation Amount/As per Condition 8.2]

[See also paragraph 20 (Regulatory Call)] (Delete this
cross-reference unless the Notes are Subordinated Notes
and the Regulatory Call is applicable)

[Applicable] [Not Applicable]

(i) Relevant Spot Rate Screen Page: [®]/[Not Applicable]
(i) Relevant Valuation Time: [®]/[Not Applicable]

[Calculation Agent]

[specify] [Not Applicable]

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

217.

Form of Notes

€)] Form of Notes:

Include for Notes that are to be offered in Belgium.

[Bearer Notes:

[Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for
definitive Notes on and after the Exchange Date]

[Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for a
Permanent Bearer Global Note which is exchangeable for
definitive Notes [on 60 days’ notice given at any
time/only upon an Exchange Event]]

[Permanent Bearer Global Note exchangeable for
definitive Notes [on 60 days’ notice given at any
time/only upon an Exchange Event]]

[Notes shall not be physically delivered in Belgium,
except to a clearing system, a depository or other
institution for the purpose of their immobilisation in
accordance with article 4 of the Belgian Law of 14
December 2005.%]

(Ensure that this is consistent with the wording in the
"Form of the Notes" section in the Base Prospectus and
the Notes themselves. N.B. The exchange upon notice/at
any time options should not be expressed to be applicable
if the Specified Denomination of the Notes in paragraph 1
includes language substantially to the following effect:
"[€100,000] and integral multiples of [€1,000] in excess
thereof up to and including [€199,000]." Furthermore,
such Specified Denomination construction is not permitted
in relation to any issue of Notes which is to be represented
on issue by a Temporary Global Note exchangeable for
Definitive Notes.)
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(b) New Global Note:

28. Additional Financial Centre(s):

29. [RMB Settlement Centre(s):

30. Talons for future Coupons to be attached
to Definitive Notes:

[Registered Notes:

Regulation S Global Note (U.S.$[ ] nominal amount)
registered in the name of a nominee for [DTC/a common
depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg]/Rule 144A Global Note (U.S.$[ ] nominal
amount) registered in the name of a nominee for [DTC/a
common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg]/Definitive 1Al Registered Notes (specify
nominal amounts)]

[Yes] [No]

[Not Applicable/give details]

(Note that this paragraph relates to the place of payment
and not Interest Period end dates to which subparagraph
14(c) relates)

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Yes, as the Notes have more than 27 coupon payments,
Talons may be required if, on exchange into definitive
form, more than 27 coupon payments are still to be
made/No]

[[Relevant third-party information] has been extracted from [specify source]. The Issuer [and the Guarantor]
confirm[s] that such information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able
to ascertain from information published by [specify source], no facts have been omitted which would
render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.]

Signed on behalf of [name of the Issuer]:

BY
Duly authorised
BY

Duly authorised

[Signed on behalf of UniCredit S.p.A.:

B
Duly authorised
B

Duly authorised]
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Part B— OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO [Application has been made by the Issuer (or on its behalf)

TRADING: for the Notes to be listed on the Official List of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and admitted to trading on
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s regulated market with
effect from [ 1].]

[Application is expected to be made by the Issuer (or on
its behalf) for the Notes to be listed on the Official List of
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and admitted to trading
on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s regulated market
with effect from [ ].] [Not Applicable.]

(Where documenting a fungible issue need to indicate that
original Notes are already admitted to trading)

€)] Estimate of total expenses []*
related to admission to trading:*

RATINGS

Ratings: [The Notes to be issued [[have been]/[are expected to be]]
rated]/[The following ratings reflect ratings assigned to
Notes of this type issued under the Programme generally]:

[insert details]] by [insert the legal name of the relevant
credit rating agency entity(ies) and associated defined
terms].

[Each of [defined terms] is established in the European
Union and is registered under the Regulation (EC) No.
1060/2009 (as amended) (the CRA Regulation).]]

(The above disclosure should reflect the rating allocated
to Notes of the type being issued under the Programme
generally or, where the issue has been specifically rated,
that rating.)

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE

[Save for any fees payable to the [Dealers/Managers], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved
in the issue of the Notes has an interest material to the offer. The [Dealers/Managers] and their
affiliates have engaged, and may in the future engage, in investment banking and/or commercial
banking transactions with, and may perform other services for, the Issuer [and the Guarantor] and
[its/their] affiliates in the ordinary course of business - Amend as appropriate if there are other
interests]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute "significant new factors" and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the
Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES

@) Estimated net proceeds: [

(If proceeds are intended for more than one use will need
to split out and present in order of priority. If proceeds
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insufficient to fund all proposed uses state amount and
sources of other funding)

(b) Estimated total expenses: [1

[Expenses are required to be broken down into each
principal intended “use” and presented in order of

riority of such “use”
p

YIELD (Fixed Rate Notes only)

Indication of yield:

[]

HISTORIC INTEREST RATES (Floating Rate Notes only)

[LIBOR/EURIBOR/CMS Reference Rate] rates can be obtained from [Reuters].

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

€)] ISIN Code: []

(b) Common Code: [1

(© [CUSIP: [®]] []

(d) [CINS: [®]] [

(e) Any clearing system(s) other [Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]
than Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V.
and Clearstream Banking,
société  anonyme and the
relevant identification
number(s):

(j)] Delivery: Delivery [against/free of] payment

(9) Names and addresses of []
additional Paying Agent(s) (if
any):

(h) Deemed delivery of clearing Any notice delivered to Noteholders through the clearing
system notices for the purposes systems will be deemed to have been given on the
of Condition 17 (Notices): [second] [business] day after the day on which it was

given to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

(M Intended to be held in a manner [Yes. Note that the designation "yes" simply means that

which would allow Eurosystem
eligibility:

the Notes are intended upon issue to be deposited with one
of the ICSDs as common safekeeper and does not
necessarily mean that the Notes will be recognised as
eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and
intra day credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon
issue or at any or all times during their life. Such
recognition will depend upon the ECB being satisfied that
Eurosystem eligibility criteria have been met.] /

[No. Whilst the designation is specified as "no" at the
date of these Final Terms, should the Eurosystem
eligibility criteria be amended in the future such that the
Notes are capable of meeting them the Notes may then be
deposited with one of the ICSDs as common safekeeper.
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DISTRIBUTION

(i)
(i)

(iii)

(iv)
v)

(vi)

Method of distribution:

If syndicated, names and
addresses of Managers and
underwriting commitments:

Date of
Agreement:

[Subscription]

Stabilising Manager(s) (if any):

If non-syndicated, name and
address of relevant Dealer:

U.S. Selling Restrictions:

Note that this does not necessarily mean that the Notes
will then be recognised as eligible collateral for
Eurosystem monetary policy and intra day credit
operations by the Eurosystem at any time during their life.
Such recognition will depend upon the ECB being
satisfied that Eurosystem eligibility criteria have been
met.]]

[Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

[Not Applicable/give names]

(Include names and addresses of entities agreeing to
underwrite the issue on a firm commitment basis and
names and addresses of the entities agreeing to place the
issue without a firm commitment or on a "best efforts"
basis if such entities are not the same as the Managers.)

[ 1 [Not Applicable]

[Not Applicable/give name]

[Not Applicable/give name and address]

[Reg. S Compliance Category [1/2/3]; TEFRA D/TEFRA
C/TEFRA not applicable]]
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Applicable Pricing Supplement

APPLICABLE PRICING SUPPLEMENT
EXEMPT NOTES OF ANY DENOMINATIONS

Set out below is the form of Pricing Supplement which will be completed for each Tranche of Exempt Notes,
whatever the denomination of those Notes, issued under the Programme.

NO PROSPECTUS IS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH DIRECTIVE 2003/71/EC FOR THE ISSUE
OF NOTES DESCRIBED BELOW.

[Date]
[UniCredit S.p.A. / UniCredit Bank (Ireland) p.l.c. / UniCredit International Bank (Luxembourg) S.A.]

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]
[guaranteed by UniCredit S.p.A.]
under the
€60,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Part A— CONTRACTUAL TERMS

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement for the Notes described herein. This document must be read
in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated 5 July 2013 [as supplemented by the supplement[s] dated
[date[s]]] (the Base Prospectus). Full information on the Issuer [, the Guarantor] and the offer of the Notes is
only available on the basis of the combination of this Pricing Supplement and the Base Prospectus. Copies of
the Base Prospectus may be obtained from [address].

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the Conditions) set
forth in the Base Prospectus [dated [original date] which are incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus].

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not Applicable”. Note that the numbering should
remain as set out below, even if "Not Applicable" is indicated for individual paragraphs or subparagraphs.
Italics denote directions for completing the Pricing Supplement.]

[If the Notes have a maturity of less than one year from the date of their issue, the minimum denomination
[must/may need to] be £100,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.]

1. (@) Issuer: UniCredit ~ S.p.A./UniCredit  Bank
Ireland p.l.c./UniCredit International
Bank (Luxembourg) S.A.

(b) Guarantor: UniCredit S.p.A.
2. @ Series Number: []
(b) Tranche Number: [1
(c) Date on which the Notes will be consolidated and The Notes will be consolidated and
form a single Series: form a single Series with [identify

earlier Tranches] on [the Issue
Date/exchange of the Temporary
Global Note for interests in the

Only include this language where it is a fungible issue and the original Tranche was issued under an Base Prospectus with a
different date.
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10.

Specified Currency or Currencies:
Aggregate Nominal Amount:
(@) Series:

(b) Tranche:

Issue Price:

@ Specified Denominations:?
(b) Calculation Amount:

€)] Issue Date:

(b) Interest Commencement Date:

Maturity Date:

Interest Basis:

Redemption/Payment Basis:

Permanent Global Note, as referred to
in paragraph [®] below, which is
expected to occur on or about
[date]][Not Applicable]

[]

[]
[]

[ 1 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal
Amount [plus accrued interest from
[insert date] (if applicable)]

[ ]
[]

(If only one Specified Denomination,
insert the Specified Denomination

If more than one  Specified
Denomination, insert the highest
common factor. Note: There must be a
common factor in the case of two or
more Specified Denominations)

[]

[specify/Issue Date/Not Applicable]

(N.B. An Interest Commencement Date
will not be relevant for certain Notes,
for example Zero Coupon Notes.)

[]

[[ 1percent. Fixed Rate]

[[specify Reference Rate] +/- [ ] per
cent. Floating Rate]

[Zero Coupon]

[Index Linked Interest]

[Dual Currency Interest]

[Inflation Linked Interest]

[specify other]

(further particulars specified below)

[Redemption at par]
[Index Linked Redemption]

Notes to be issued by UniCredit Ireland with a minimum maturity of two years which are not listed on a stock exchange
must have a minimum denomination of €500,000 or its equivalent at date of issuance. Notes to be issued by UniCredit
Ireland which are not listed on a stock exchange and which mature within two years must have a minimum
denomination of €500,000 or US$500,000 or, in the case of Notes which are denominated in a currency other than euro
or U.S. dollars, the equivalent in that other currency of €500,000 (such amount to be determined by reference to the
relevant rate of exchange at the date of first publication of this programme).
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11.

12.

13.

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

14,

Change of Interest Basis or Redemption/Payment Basis:

Put/Call Options:

(@)

(b)

Status of the Notes:

Date [Board] approval for issuance of Notes [and

Guarantee] obtained:

Fixed Rate Note Provisions:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

Rate(s) of Interest:

Interest Payment Date(s):

Fixed Coupon Amount(s): (Applicable to Notes in

definitive form)
Broken Amount(s):
definitive form)

Day Count Fraction:

Determination Date[s]:

(Applicable to Notes

in

[Dual Currency Redemption]
[Partly Paid]

[Instalment]

[specify other]

[Specify the date when any fixed to
floating rate change occurs or cross
refer to paragraphs 14 and 15 below
and identify there] [Not Applicable]

[Investor Put]

[Issuer Call]

[(further particulars specified below)]
[Senior/ Subordinated]

[The loss absortion provisions set out in
Condition 5.5 shall not apply to the
Notes]

[ 1] [and [ 1, respectively]
(N.B. Only relevant where Board (or
similar) authorisation is required for the

particular tranche of Notes or related
Guarantee)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum payable in
arrear on each Interest Payment Date

[[ ] in each year up to and including the
Maturity Date

(Amend appropriately in the case of
irregular coupons)

[ ] per Calculation Amount
[ [ 1 per Calculation Amount,
payable on the Interest Payment Date

falling [in/fon] [ ]][Not Applicable]

[30/360/Actual/Actual (ICMA)/specify
other]

1 ] in each year][Not Applicable]
(Only relevant where Day Count

Fraction is Actual/Actual (ICMA). In
such a case, insert regular interest
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15.

Floating Rate Note Provisions:

(@)

(b)

(©
(d)

(€)

()

(¢))

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Dates:

Interest Payment

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):

Manner in which the Rate of Interest and Interest
Amount are to be determined:

Party responsible for calculating the Rate of
Interest and Interest Amount (if not the Agent):

Screen Rate Determination:

(i) Reference Rate:

(i) Interest Determination Date(s):

(iii) Relevant Screen Page:

ISDA Determination:
Q) Floating Rate Option:
(i) Designated Maturity:

(iii) Reset Date:

payment dates, ignoring issue date or
maturity date in the case of a long or
short first or last coupon]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following
Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day
Convention]

[]

[Screen Rate  Determination/ISDA
Determination/specify other]

[]

Reference Rate: [ ] month
[LIBOR/EURIBOR/CMS  Reference
Rate].

[ ]

(Second London business day prior to
the start of each Interest Period if
LIBOR (other than Sterling or euro
LIBOR), first day of each Interest
Period if Sterling LIBOR and the
second day on which the TARGET2
System is open prior to the start of each
Interest Period if EURIBOR or euro
LIBOR)

[ISDAFIX2 or any successor screen
page] [insert other screen page]

(In the case of EURIBOR, if not
Reuters EURIBORO1 ensure it is a
page which shows a composite rate or

amend the fallback  provisions
appropriately)

[]

[]

[ ]
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16.

17.

(h)
(i)
)
(k)

(1

Margin(s):
Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

Fallback provisions, rounding provisions and any
other terms relating to the method of calculating
interest on Floating Rate Notes which are Exempt
Notes, if different from those set out in the
Conditions:

Zero Coupon Note Provisions:

(@)
(b)
(©

(d)

Accrual Yield:
Reference Price:

Any other formula/basis of determining amount
payable for Zero Coupon Notes which are Exempt
Notes:
Day Count Fraction in relation to
Redemption Amounts:

Early

Index Linked Interest Note

(@)
(b)
(©)

Index/Formula:
Calculation Agent

Party responsible for calculating the Rate of
Interest (if not the Calculation Agent) and Interest

(In the case of a LIBOR or EURIBOR
based option, the first day of the
Interest Period)

[+/-] [ ] per cent. per annum

[ ] per cent. per annum

[ ] per cent. per annum

[Actual/Actual (ISDA)][Actual/Actual]
Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

[30/360][360/360][Bond Basis]
[30E/360][Eurobond Basis]

30E/360 (ISDA)

Other]

(See Condition 6 for alternatives)

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum

[ ]

[30/360]

[Actual/360]

[Actual/365]

[specify other]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[give or annex details]

[give name]

[ ]
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18.

19.

(d)

(€)

(f)

)
(h)
(i)
)

Amount (if not the Agent):

Provisions for determining Coupon where
calculation by reference to Index and/or Formula is
impossible or impracticable:

Specified Period(s)/Specified
Dates:

Interest Payment

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):
Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

Dual Currency Interest Note Provisions

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Rate of Exchange/method of calculating Rate of
Exchange:

Party, if any, responsible for calculating the
principal and/or interest due (if not the Agent):

Provisions applicable where calculation by
reference to Rate of Exchange impossible or
impracticable:

Person at whose option Specified Currency(ies)
is/are payable:

Credit Linked Note Provisions:

(@)

Reference Period:

[need to include a description of market
disruption or settlement disruption
events and adjustment provisions]

[ ]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following
Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day Convention/
Preceding Business Day
Convention/specify other]

[ ]

[ 1 per cent. per annum

[ 1 per cent. per annum

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[give or annex details]

[need to include a description of market
disruption or settlement disruption
events and adjustment provisions]

[]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

Capitalised terms used herein and not
otherwise defined herein or in the
Conditions shall have the meaning set
out in the Definitions as provided in
9.15 of the Conditions.

The period commencing at or after
12.01 am., London time on (and
including) the earlier of [the day
following the Trade Date — please
insert date] [Issue Date] and the Credit
Event Backstop Date and ending at or
prior to 11.59 p.m., London time on
(and including, subject as provided
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(b)
(©)

(d)
(€)

()

()]

(h)
(i)

Redemption Date:

Scheduled Maturity Date:

Credit Event Cut-Off Date

Reference Entity:

Reference Obligation(s):

Substitute Reference Obligation(s):

All Guarantees:

Obligation:

below) the [Scheduled Maturity Date]
[if other period applicable, delete
previous sentence and insert applicable
provisions]

[]

[Maturity Date unless otherwise
specified]

[ 1[Not Applicable]

[]

Section 2.31 (Merger of Reference
Entity and Seller) of the Definitions
shall not apply to the Notes.

The obligation[s]] identified as follows:
Primary Obligor: [ ]

Guarantor: [ ]

Maturity: [ ]

Coupon: []

CUSIP/ISIN: []

[Where more than one Reference Entity

— Each Reference Obligation as set out
in Appendix [ ] (Reference Portfolio).]

[]

First to Default Credit Linked Note
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

Linear Basket Credit Linked Note
[Applicable/Not Applicable (if
applicable, specify weighting of
Basket)]

[As per the definition contained in
Condition 9)/[give
details]]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

Obligation Category: [select one
only]

[Payment]
[Borrowed Money]

Reference Obligation]
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)

(k)
(N

Grace Period:

Maturity Date Extension:

Credit Events:

[Bond]
[Loan]
[Bond or Loan]

Obligation Characteristics: [select all of
which apply]

[Not Subordinated]
[Specified Currency]

[specify currency]
[Not Sovereign Lender]
[Not Domestic Law]
[Listed]
[Not Domestic Issuance]
Excluded Obligations: [None]
[The number of days equal to the grace
period with
respect to payments in accordance with
the terms of, and under, the relevant
Obligation, and, if no grace period is
applicable, three days]
[Applicable]
[Bankruptcy

Failure to Pay

Grace Period Extension:
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

If Applicable, Grace Period [ ][30
calendar days]/[other]]

Obligation  Acceleration  Obligation
Default Repudiation/Moratorium
Restructuring:

[Restructuring Maturity Limitation and
Fully Transferable Obligation:
Applicable]

[Modified  Restructuring  Maturity
Limitation and Conditionally
Transferable Obligation: Applicable]
[Multiple Holder Obligation:
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(m) Additional Credit Events:

(n) Payment Requirement:

(0) Default Requirement:

(P Conditions to Settlement (if any):

() Settlement:

Delete as appropriate.

Applicable]]®
[ 1 [specify- e.g. any trigger event]

[if applicable, give details including all
operative provisions]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[specify]

(If not specified, Payment Requirement
will be US$1,000,000 or its equivalent
in the relevant Obligation Currency as
of the occurrence of the Failure to Pay
or Potential Failure to Pay, as
applicable)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[specify]

(If not specified, Default Requirement
will be US$10,000,000 or its equivalent
in the relevant Obligation Currency as
of the occurrence of the relevant Credit
Event)

Notice  of  Publicly  Available
Information:

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Specified Number: [ ] (if applicable
and not specified, it shall be two)]

[Public Source(s): [®]]

[Auction/Cash/Physical] Settlement
(please specify)

[If Auction Settlement is specified,
complete both the Auction Settlement
provisions below and the provisions
relating to the relevant Fallback
Settlement Method]

[If Cash Settlement or Physical
Settlement is specified, specify if the
Issuer has the option to vary the
Settlement Method in accordance with
the Credit Linked Conditions and if this
is the case complete both the Cash
Settlement and Physical Delivery
provisions below]
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Fallback Settlement Method:

Auction Settlement Method:

Business Day Convention;

subject to adjustment in accordance with

Business Day Convention:

Limitation Dates subject to adjustment in
Business Day

accordance with
Convention:

Hedging Arrangement Notifying Party:

Asset Amount:

Deliverable Obligations:

Physical Settlement Period:

(if Auction Settlement is applicable,
insert the following)

[Cash Settlement/Physical Settlement]

[If the Issuer has the option to vary the
Fallback  Settlement  Method in
accordance with the Credit Linked
Conditions this should be specified here
and if this is the case both the Cash
Settlement and the Physical Delivery
provisions in this paragraph should be
completed in addition to these Auction
Settlement provisions]

Auction Final Price [specify the
applicable calculation formula]

[Following/Modified
Following/Preceding]

[Yes/No]

[Yes/No]

[Buyer/Seller/Buyer or Seller]

(if Physical Settlement applies, include
the following:)

[Exclude Accrued Interest]
Deliverable Obligation Category: [ ]
Deliverable Obligation Characteristics:

Not Subordinated/Specified
Currency/Standard Specified
Currencies/Not Sovereign Lender/Not
Domestic  Currency/Not  Domestic
Law/Listed/Not Contingent/Not
Domestic Issuance/Assignable
Loan/Consent Required
Loan/Transferable/Maximum Maturity
[30 years]/Accelerated or Matured/Not
Bearer/Other] Excluded Obligations:
[None]

The longest number of Business Days
for settlement in accordance with the
then current market practice of any
Deliverable Obligation being delivered,
as determined by the Calculation
Agent, subject to a minimum of
[30/90/120/other]  Business  Days
following the satisfaction of all
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)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)
(xv)
(xvi)
(xvii)
(xviii)
(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

Number of calendar days’ notice (Notice
of Physical Settlement):

Physical Settlement Date:

Latest Permissible Physical Settlement
Date:

Swap Unwind Amount:

Valuation Date:
Quotation Method:
Quotation Amount:

Cash Settlement Date:

Cash Settlement Amount:

Quotation:

Valuation Method for determination of
Final Price:

Swap Unwind Amount:

Conditions to Settlement

[zero/five/specify number] days [insert
number of calendar days prior to
Physical Settlement Date]

The date within the Physical Settlement
Period upon which all the Deliverable
Obligations specified in the Notice of
Physical Settlement are delivered;
provided that if on the last day of the
Physical ~ Settlement  Period the
Deliverable Obligations specified in the
Notice of Physical Settlement cannot be
delivered due to any reason as set out in
Conditions 9.5, 9.6, 9.7, and 9.9 (Partial
Cash Settlement Terms), the Physical
Settlement Date shall be the last day of
the Physical Settlement Period.

[The Issuer may extend the Physical
Settlement Date to such date that the
Calculation Agent in its sole discretion
designates (the Extended Physical
Settlement Date). The Extended
Physical Settlement Date shall not,
however, be later than [ ] Business
Days after the Physical Settlement
Date.]*

[[specify number] days after the final
day of the Physical Settlement Period]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(if Cash Settlement applies, insert the
following:)

[]
[]
[]

As set out in the Conditions (specify
other)

As set out in the Conditions (specify
other)

[]
[Exclude  Accrued Interest/Include
Accrued Interest] (set out ISDA

valuation method or other valuation
method in full)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

To be inserted if the underlying hedge provides for the Buy-in provisions in the 2003 ISDA Credit Derivatives Definitions.
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(xxii)

Valuation Obligations:

(1)

)

Valuation Obligation Category:

Valuation
Characteristics

Obligation

[select only one]

[Payment]

[Borrowed Money]
[Reference Obligations Only]
[Bond]

[Loan]

[Bond or Loan]

[Standard Terms]

Not Subordinated

Credit Linked Specified Currency:
(specify currency]/[Standard Specified
Currencies]

[Not Sovereign Lender]

[Not Domestic Currency]

[Domestic Currency means: (specify
currency)]

[Not Domestic Law]
[Listed]

[Not Contingent]

[Not Domestic Issuance]
[Assignable Loan]
[Consent Required Loan]
[Direct Participation Loan]

[Qualifying Participation Seller: [ ]
(insert details)]

[Transferable]
[Maximum Maturity: [ ]
[Accelerated or Matured]

[Not Bearer]
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(xxiii) Valuation  Obligation  Determination
Period:

(xxiv)  Additional Valuation Obligations:
(xxv)  Excluded Valuation Obligations:
(xxvi)  Valuation Date:

(xxvii) Valuation Time:

(xxviii) Quotation Method:

(xxix)  Quotation Amount:

(xxx)  Cash Settlement Date:

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

20.

21.

22,

Notice periods for Condition 8.2:

Issuer Call:

(i Optional Redemption Date(s):
(i) Optional Redemption Amount:

(iii) Notice periods:

Regulatory Call:

[Standard Terms]

[]

[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]

As set out in the Conditions (specify
other)

Minimum period: [ ] days
Maximum period: [ ] days
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[]

[ ] per Calculation Amount
Minimum period: [ ] days
Maximum period: [ ] days

(N.B. When setting notice periods, the
Issuer is advised to consider the
practicalities  of  distribution  of
information through intermediaries, for
example, clearing systems (which
require a minimum of 15 business days'
notice for a put) and custodians, as well
as any other notice requirements which
may apply, for example, as between the
Issuer and the Agent or Trustee).

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

(N.B. Only relevant in the case of
Subordinated Notes)
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23

24,

@ Minimum Disqualification Amount [ ] per cent. of the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the
(b) Early Redemption Amount payable on redemption  Notes

for regulatory reasons (in the case of Subordinated

Notes only and subject to the prior approval of the

Bank of Italy and/or the Central Bank of Ireland, as

applicable) as contemplated by Condition 8.3 [[ ] per Calculation Amount/ As per
and/or the method of calculating the same (if Condition 8.6]

required or if different from that set out in

Condition 8.6 (Redemption and Purchase — Early

Redemption Amounts):

Final Redemption Amount:

[ ]/[100 per cent.] per Calculation
Amount

Early Redemption Amount payable on redemption for [] per Calculation Amount
taxation reasons (as contemplated by Condition 8.2) or on

event of default:

[See also paragraph 20 (Regulatory
Call)] (Delete this cross-reference
unless the Notes are Subordinated
Notes and the Regulatory Call is
applicable)

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

25,

Form of Notes:

€)] Form of Notes:

Include for Notes that are to be offered in Belgium.

[Bearer Notes:

[Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for
definitive Notes on and after the Exchange Date]

[Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for a
Permanent Bearer Global Note which is exchangeable
for definitive Notes [on 60 days’ notice given at any
time/only upon an Exchange Event]]

[Permanent Bearer Global Note exchangeable for
definitive Notes [on 60 days’ notice given at any
time/only upon an Exchange Event]]

[Notes shall not be physically delivered in Belgium,
except to a clearing system, a depository or other
institution for the purpose of their immobilisation in
accordance with article 4 of the Belgian Law of 14
December 2005.%]

(Ensure that this is consistent with the wording in the
"Form of the Notes" section in the Base Prospectus
and the Notes themselves. N.B. The exchange upon
notice/at any time options should not be expressed to
be applicable if the Specified Denomination of the
Notes in paragraph 1 includes language substantially
to the following effect: "[€100,000] and integral
multiples of [€1,000] in excess thereof up to and
including [€199,000]." Furthermore, such Specified
Denomination construction is not permitted in relation
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(b) New Global Note:

26. Additional Financial Centre(s):

27. Talons for future Coupons to be attached to
Definitive Notes:

RESPONSIBILITY

to any issue of Notes which is to be represented on
issue by a Temporary Global Note exchangeable for
Definitive Notes.)

[Registered Notes:

Regulation S Global Note (U.S.$[ ] nominal amount)
registered in the name of a nominee for [DTCl/a
common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg]/Rule 144A Global Note (U.S.$[ ]
nominal amount) registered in the name of a nominee
for [DTC/a common depositary for Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg]/Definitive 1Al Registered
Notes (specify nominal amounts)]

[Yes] [No]

[Not Applicable/give details]
(Note that this paragraph relates to the place of
payment and not Interest Period end dates to which
subparagraphs 16(b) relates)

[Yes, as the Notes have more than 27 coupon
payments, Talons may be required if, on exchange into
definitive form, more than 27 coupon payments are
still to be made/No]

The Issuer [and the Guarantor] accept[s] responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing Supplement.
[[Relevant third party information] has been extracted from [specify source]. The Issuer confirms that such
information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able to ascertain from
information published by [specify source], no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced

information inaccurate or misleading.

Signed on behalf of [name of the Issuer]:

[Signed on behalf of UniCredit S.p.A.:

BY . BY .
Duly authorised Duly authorised
By BY .
Duly authorised Duly authorised]
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Part B— OTHER INFORMATION
RATINGS
Ratings: [The Notes to be issued [[have been]/[are expected to be]]
rated [insert details] by [insert the legal name of the
relevant credit rating agency entity(ies)].
INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE
[Save for any fees payable to the [Managers/Dealers], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved
in the issue of the Notes has an interest material to the offer. The [Managers/Dealers] and their
affiliates have engaged, and may in the future engage, in investment banking and/or commercial
banking transactions with, and may perform other services for, the Issuer [and the Guarantor] and
[its/their] affiliates in the ordinary course of business - Amend as appropriate if there are other
interests]
[USE OF PROCEEDS
Use of Proceeds: [®]

(Only required if the use of proceeds is different to that
stated in the Offering Circular)

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

(i) ISIN Code: ISIN Code:

(ii) Common Code: Common Code:

(iii) [CUSIP: [@®]] [1

(iv)  [CINS:[e]] []

(v) Any clearing system(s) other Any clearing system(s) other than Euroclear Bank

than Euroclear Bank S.A/N.V. S.A/N.V. and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme and
and  Clearstream  Banking, the relevant identification number(s):

société  anonyme and the

relevant identification

number(s):

(vi) Delivery: Delivery:

(vii) Names and addresses of Names and addresses of additional Paying Agent(s) (if
additional Paying Agent(s) (if any):
any):

(viii)  Deemed delivery of clearing Deemed delivery of clearing system notices for the

system notices for the purposes purposes of Condition 17:
of Condition 17:

(ix) Intended to be held in a manner [Yes. Note that the designation "yes" simply means that
which would allow Eurosystem the Notes are intended upon issue to be deposited with one
eligibility: of the ICSDs as common safekeeper and does not

necessarily mean that the Notes will be recognised as
eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and
intra day credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon
issue or at any or all times during their life. Such
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Applicable Pricing Supplement

DISTRIBUTION

(i)
(i)

(iii)

(iv)
v)

(vi)

Method of distribution:

If syndicated, names and
addresses of Managers and
underwriting commitments:

Date of
Agreement:

[Subscription]

Stabilising Manager(s) (if any):

If non-syndicated, name and
address of relevant Dealer:

U.S. Selling Restrictions:

recognition will depend upon the ECB being satisfied that
Eurosystem eligibility criteria have been met.]/

[No. Whilst the designation is specified as "no" at the
date of this Pricing Supplement, should the Eurosytem
eligibility criteria be amended in the future such that the
Notes are capable of meeting them the Notes may then be
deposited with one of the ICSDs as common safekeeper.
Note that this does not necessarily mean that the Notes
will then be recognised as eligible collateral for
Eurosystem monetary policy and intra day credit
operations by the Eurosystem at any time during their life.
Such recognition will depend upon the ECB being
satisfied that Eurosystem eligibility criteria have been
met.]]

[Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

[Not Applicable/give names]

(Include names and addresses of entities agreeing to
underwrite the issue on a firm commitment basis and
names and addresses of the entities agreeing to place the
issue without a firm commitment or on a "best efforts"”
basis if such entities are not the same as the Managers.)

[ ] [Not Applicable]

[Not Applicable/give name]

[Not Applicable/give name and address]

[Reg. S Compliance Category [1/2/3]; TEFRA D/TEFRA
C/TEFRA not applica